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Knights plc

Empowering a thriving future.
For our clients, our people and
our communities.

We empower our people

to deliver outstanding advice
that enables our clients to
achieve their goals, allowing
us all to thrive.

Delivered ahead of IPO aspirations

We do this by delivering legal and professional
services in a new way - our unique culture,
‘one team’ approach and commercial mindset
enables us to put our clients at the heart

of everything we do.

We believe we provide our clients with the best
service in the sector, combining the flexibility
to service their rieeds at scale, drawing from
our extensive high-quality legal expertise

and deep sector specialisms, and the value
associated with operating outside London.

We invest in the very best talent and enable
the team, through our structure, modernised
approach and supporting technology, to focus
on understanding our clients’ drivers and
building strong, longstanding and grawing
relationships with our clients.

This appreach is at the heart of our vision
to build the leading, full service legal and
professional services business outside |_ondon.

In fine with the Group's strategy to accelerate organic growth with carefully targeted
acquisitions which enhance or expand the Group's core offering outside London
and are considered a strang cultural fit, Knights has grown substantially, surpassing
all of the aspirations set out at the time of its IPO in 2018:

AtIPOQ Aspiraticns at IPQ Achieved in FY 2020
for FY 2020

Fee earners 350 750 934

Fee earner to 4.5:1 Increase leverage 4.8:1

suppert staff ratio of overheads

Geographical 6 offices 9+ offices 13 offices

footprint

Acquisitions 3 3+ acquisitions 10 acquisitions

(includes TF} since PO
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Ata Glance

Who we are

Knights has grown to be

a leading legal and professiondl
services business outside
London, with 934 fee earners
operating from 13 offices across

the UK.

Qur team’s deep expertise, sector insight
and understanding of our clients underpins
our reputation as a trusted adviser.

Qur high-quality advice enables our clients
to make informed decisions to make the
most of their opportunities and navigate
their challenges.

Sector
specialisms

Cur unique cukure and early adoption

of a corporate structure which underpins
our ‘one team’ apprcach are key drivers
of our competitive advantage. It ensures
our professionals are always working in
the best interests of our clients and the
success of the Group as a whole, rather
than focusing on an individual's or an
individual team’s performance.

What we do

Qur modern way of working ensures we always
deliver on our clients’ requirements in the most
efficient way possible, delivering value to them
without carrying unnecessary cost.

This allows our lawyers to thrive on gquality
work with quality clients, while professicnal
managers focus on running the business.

Knights provides a full service offering to corporate clients as

well as synergistic services to high net worth individuals, who are
typically clients of the Group’s corporate and commercial services.

Our extensive expertise has been strengthened further through the
recruitment of high-calibre talent and acquisitions during the year.

A full suite of services strengthened by sector specialisms
and non-legal services

B Agriculture and the food supply chain

B Consumer-facing

B Energy, waste and natural resources

B Financial and professional services

P Healthcare

I Industrials, transport and support services
B Property management and development

B Technology, media and telecommunications

Redal Estate

34.6%

Dispute Resolution

27.5%

Corporate

17.2%

7o

of total revenues

Private Client

14.4%




Strategic Report

Financial Highlights

Our innovative approach has driven significant year on
year growth, through a mix of double digit organic growth,
and selective acquisitions, including six this year.

Revenue Organic revenue growth rate %
+41% (2019: £53m) 2019: 15%

Underlying PBT' Reported PRT'
£13.6m £4.Im
+45% (2019: £9.4m7) -16.3% (2019: £4.8m")

Cash conversion' Net debt

80% £15.9m
2019: 131% 2019: £14.1m

Underlying EPS? Reported EPS
14.33p 2.44p
2019 11.31p" 2019 5.27p

Note

2019 figures have been updated to reflect the impact of IFRS 16. A full raconciliation is included in the Financial Review
on page 42 All movements from 2019 to 2020 have been calculated based on the 2019 IFRS 16 adjusted comparative.

2 The Group reports certain Alternative performance measures [APMs) as management beligvs these measires provide
valuable additional information for the understanding of the underlying trading performance of the business. In particular,
adjusted profit measuras are used to provids the users of the accounts a clear understanding of the underlying profitability
of the business aver time. Full dafinitions and explanations of these measures and recanciliations 1o the mest directly
referenceable IFRS lina itemn, are provided in pages 122-124.



Strategic Report

Service Line

Real Estate

Dispute
Resolution

Corporate

Employment

Private Client

All contentious and non-contentious
matters across the real estate
lifecycle from town planning

te asset management.

Resolving disputes across the
full spectrum of services.

Advising on all operational
activities across a variety
of matters and sectors.

Providing strategic HR advice

on a range of contentious and

nan-contentious iISsues across
a variety of sectors.

Advising cn a full range of needs
for high net worth individuals and
their families.

Service

- Asset management - Development - Property litigation
- Business parks - Mines & minerals - Retail
- Construction - Plot sales - Town planning

- Arbitration
- Litigation
- Mediation

- Banking - Intellectual property - Restructuring

- Commercial - Mergers, and insolvency

- Data protection acquisitions - Tax and regulatory
- Debt recovery and disposals

- Litigatiocn/Tribunals - Strategic projects
- Management - Strategic

training audits/reports
- Recrganisation - TUPE

- Complex - Tax and frusts
family matters - Wills over

- Conveyancing large estates

- Landed estates

Who we work with
We build longstanding We have the scale to flexibly deliver We are proud to work with a highly diversified

. . - high-calibre expertise across a range of client base of over 18,000 businesses and
relat,l onshlps with a_ran_ge services whilst retaining our trusted partner private clients, with no one client accounting
of clients from multinational approach, which ensures we really understand for more than 3.5% of revenue.
corporations to national our clients’ priorities and drivers.
corporates and small and By operating outside Landon we deliver value
medium enterprises. to our clients as we support them in achieving

their goals.

Where we operate

We are focused on key,

attractive markets in the

UK outside London, currently
operating from 13 offices where
we can be close to our client base
and build strong local market
knowledge and networks.

- Birmingham - Manchester
- Cheltenham - Nottingham
- Chester - Oxford

- Crawley - Stoke

- Leeds - Wilmslow

- Leicester - York

- Maidstone




Investment Case

A strong track record in a highly
attractive market.

City q (§]e] Iity We generally avoid developing a presence

in markets dominated by institutional firms.

from a competitive We will however enter these markets where

there is an opportunity to acquire an existing

COSt bq se business that meets our criteria to deliver

accretive value sustainably.

underlying profit before tax Lower competition in our markets means
there is less upward pressure on salaries,

allowing us to offer greater value for money
£13.6m
L]

» Read mare on pages 42-49

‘My 1 Industry leading working capital days
La ers WIt!'I facilitated by Knights’ culture and training of
] acommercida I Erotfessionlals on c(:jlien:.mar;altgem;nyttf supported
. y technology and actionable analytics.
Experlenced mindset _ _
Fee earners concentrate on client service,
Ope I’GtOI‘ while professional managers run the
H N H Working capital lockup days* business. | awyers focus on earning fees
del veri ng fl rSt 9 cdp p cdy with no distractions of running the business,
which is operated by an experienced senior
CIGSS retu rns 8 5 leadership team who can act with agility.

® Read more on pages 42-49

A scalable A fragmented market warth £2.6bn outside
L.endon provides a clear market apportunity
mOd el ta grow arganically, complemented by carefully

targeted acquisitions.

Proven and compelling platform for legal
professionals, with lawyers attracted by lack
of ownership risk asscciated with partnership
structures, sustainability of commercial

. success and development opportunities.
4 ° 8 .1 Culture and market positioning

drives organic recruitment and low churn.

Fee earner:
Non-fee earner ratio

P Read more on pages 42-49

Note
* Excluding acquisitions




Strategic Report

Operating outside of major city centres
contributes to reduced property costs, and
provides a more sustainable work-life balance
for our colleagues.

Fee earner to non-fee earner ratio well
above market average, aided by the use
of technology.

Deep client relationships and limited
sector and fee earner cencentration brings
diversity and resilience to our revenue base.

Track record of unlocking value from
acquisitions, with systems, processes
and culture fully integrated by our expert
team in under 2 months.

Investment in operational backbone
in 2019 provides bandwidth for future
growth, with fixed costs diluted as we grow.

This year we have scaled the business
in two existing kocations and entered
five new locaticns.

Profitable
growth

Highly cash
generative

Robust
platform
for growth



fragmented d
pressures on

A large and growing market out§ London

7

Estimated worth of overall
UK iegal services market

£33.4bn

2017/2018

Revenue of our addressable
market outside London

£2.6bn

per year

Growth rate of cur addressable
market outside London

3-5%

per year

* Source:

V

/ .

Bureau van Dijk, Mintel UK Legal Services Report 2018, The Lawyer UK Top 200 and Top 100 2019




Strategic Report

A fragmented and traditional market

The legal services market in the UK

is largely polarised between the major
law firms who operate from London and
internationally, and are typically focused
on the largest UK and international clients
and deals, high street law firms focused
on consumers, and small to medium sized
B2B focused independent law firms, who
are often subscale and operate out of a
single office regionally, serving businesses
typically headquartered outside London.
This latter market is our focus.

Strong market drivers

In our addressable market, there are ¢.160
firms operating outside London typically
having annual revenues of £2m-£60m.

The majority operate under the traditional
partnership model, rather than operating

as corporate businesses with a clear division
between management and fee earners.

There are a number of structural market
drivers in the UK professional and legal
services market, driven by evelving client,
regulatory and employee requirements.

The market opportunity

Clients are seeking a trusted adviser whose
in-depth understanding of their business
and their drivers better enables them to
achieve their goals. They are becoming more
demanding, as they look for value without
compromising on quality ef service and

a firm that can deliver all of their needs

at scale, including niche expertise,

The cost of operating is rising due to the
investment and expertise required to meet
ever-increasing security, compliance and
regulatory standards. For instance, increasing
requirements for due diligence to ‘know your
client’ so as not ta become a conduit for
crime, terrarism or money-laundering. Scale

is therefore an increasing advantage to support
these costs.

Ambitious and forward-looking fee earners are
attracted by the opportunity to do high-quality
work for exciting clients within a flexible,
inclusive, and friendly culture that will enable
them to fuifil their career choices, without the
need to take on the financial risk associated
with partnership. Fee earners typically build
trusted and long-lasting relationships with their
clients, so that clients often follow them when
they move firms.

These market drivers, together with a

clear desire across the sector for a more
rewarding working environment, mean that
there is a substantial opportunity for Knights
to continue to grow its market share from
its current level of 3%.

With the benefit of scale and low overheads,
Knights is an attractive choice for clients
seeking both city quality work and value,
and our unique culture provides excellent
opportunities for talented lawyers to futfil
their career choices, underpinning our strong
momentum in recruitment. We have warked
with over 25 clients who sit within the FTSE
100 or have similar market capitalisation.

COVID-19 is only exacerbating the structural
market drivers and is likely to accelerate
consolidation in the industry, as firms and
individuals increasingly look for change.

Knights is well placed to take advantage of this
trend with its strong balance sheet, scalable
operating platform and reputation for quality
waork, larger clients, and an attractive culture.



Chairman’s Statement

Revenue*

£74.3m

Financial year 2019 £52.7m

Underlying profit before tax*

+45%
o
Organic revehue growth

[0

Note
* See Glossary on pages 122-124.

8

Knights has delivered another
strong performance as it grew
organically and by acquisition,
in line with our strategy to
build the leading legal and
professiondl services business
outside London.
Balbinder (“Bal’) Johal

Non-Executive Chairman
21 July 2020
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Revenue increased by

41% to £74.3m {2019: £52.7m).
This reflected 10% or £5.2m
of organic growth, aided by
the recruitment of 108 new,
high-calibre fee earners. It also
includes a £10.5m contribution
from the six carefully selected
acquisitions made during

the year, which substantially
broadened our geographical
reach and depth of expertise,
as well as £5.9m relating

to the full year effect of prior
year acquisitions.

The Group's ongoing focus on profitable
growth enabled us to improve underlying PBT'
rargin to 18.3% (2019: 17.9%)}, resulting in

a 45% increase in underlying profit before tax®
to £13.6m (2019: £9.4m) and a 27% increase
in underlying EPS® to 14.33p (2019: 11.31p).

Importantly, this strong performance was
achieved whilst substantial investment was
also made in the operational backbone of the
business, in the first half in particular, with

a focus on growing operational leadership,
technology and office upgrades, as well as
increased automation. This investment is
already being leveraged, making possible the

the building of a sustainable business
the future.

A distinct business model and culture

together collaboratively and
to efficiently match the right

were already operating in a paperless way,
it atlso meant that the team has been able to
transition seamlessly to working from home,
with our ability to transact unaffected.

Unlike many legal service providers that focus
on the performance of individuals, Knights
fosters a highly collegiate culture where we
always work in the best interests of our clients
and the success of the Group as a whole.
Central to this, is that there are no fee earner
targets. We take a proactive approach to serve
clients as one team, so clients receive the best
quality service and value, whilst allowing all

of our team to develop and thrive. This unique
culture combined with the quality of clients

and work, means we are able to attract and
retain the highest calibre of legal talent.

A strengthened and diversified platform

Following ongoing recruitment and

the acquisitions made since our PO, we
now have over 930 fee earners operating
fram 13 locations outside London {up from
350 and 6 respectively at IPO}. We now
serve over 18,000 clients, including over
25 FTSE100 companies {or equivalent

by market capitalisation).

The expansion of our geographic reach and
client base, with an average matter size of
¢.£3,000, together with integrating acquisitions
into existing locations, has reinforced Knights’
resilience, leaving us relfatively well placed in
the face of current uncertainty. It has also left
us even better balanced for the different stages
of the economic ¢ycle, having strengthened
the depth and breadth of our expertise

across our core areas of Real Estate, Dispute
Resolution, Corporate, Employment and
Private Client.

In this context, our investments during

the year are strengthening our competitive
advantage in a highly fragmented market
through our greater capacity to deliver

a broader range of high-quality and good
value services closer to our clients, as their
trusted partrer.

Environmental, social and
governance matters

The Board recognises the importance of our
role in environmental, social and governance
matters {“ESG"). To reinforce the importance
our business places on ESG, we have
appointed one of Knights’ Non-Executive
Directors, Jane Pateman, as the Board
member responsible for driving our initiatives
in this area across the Group. An overview
of the Board’s approach to ESG is provided
on pages 28-38.

Current trading and COVID-19 update

The health and wallbeing of Knights’ people
has always been the Group’s priority and all
of our employees have been working from
home since 13 March 2020, ahead of the UK
government lockdown due to COVID-19.

Our focus on flexible working and business
continuity, supported by our previous
investments in secure, robust technology

have enabled our team to work effectively
from home and continue to deliver outstanding
client service.

As announced on 26 March, we moved
quickly to putin place a number of prudent
cost saving measures in refation to the
uncertainty created by COVID-19 that do not
compromise the prospects of the business in
the medium to long-term. This ability to act
swiftly demenstrated the benefit of a corporate
structure in which the senior leadership was
able to act with agility whilst supporting its
lawyers to remain focused on delivering

value te clients. These measures included
stopping or deferring all nen-essential capital
expenditure, eliminating discretionary spend,
reducing Board salaries by 30% and the
salaries of all staff earning over £30,000 by
10%, and making staffing reductions to reflect
a more prudent approach to resourcing.

These early actions have positioned the Group
well for the current market environment, albeit
it rernains difficult to predict the impact on the
activity levels of our clients. As a result, the
Board believes it would not be appropriate

to previde forward-looking financial guidance
to investors and analysts at this time. However,
whilst the market remains uncertain, we are
encouraged that early signs of a recovery in
instructions indicate an initial improvement in
miarket conditions compared with the disruption
experienced at the beginning of April.

We remain confident in the Group's resilient
business model, with our full service offering
and geographic reach supporting a highly
diversified revenue and clisnt base, industry
leading working capital management, and
advantagecus market positioning. These
strengths, together with a strong management
team, will see Knights emerge from the
near-term uncertainties in a strong position

in its market.

Balance sheet and liquidity

The Group has a strong balance sheet with

a conservative gearing level, good liquidity,
and is highly cash generative. Having
conducted robust stress testing, we are
confident that it is in a strong paosition to trade
through this uncertain pericd and beyond.

Dividend

The Board has decided it is not appropriate
to recommend paying a dividend given the
recent cost saving measures put in place
in relation to COVID-19.

Summary and medium-term outiook

Our resilient business model, combined

with a sirong financial position and being both
well invested and cash generative, provides
us with a robust platform from which to build
upen Knights™ unique proposition in the highly
fragmented and often under-invested market
for legal services outside London.

The Board is, therefore, confident that our
talented team will continue to deliver on our
long-term strategy to become the leading legal
and professional services business outside
l.enden, and that the near term challenges

for our industry due to COVID-19 will only
accentuate our market opportunity in the
medium-term.

Note

' See Financial Review on pages 42-49
¢ See Financial Review on pages 42-49
3 See Financial Review on pages 42-49



Chief Executive’s Review

We delivered a year of strong,
profitable, cash generative growth
and demonstrated progress in line
with our strategy to complement
organic growth with carefully
targeted acquisitions.

David Beech
Chief Executive Officer
21 July 2020

Revenue increase

£74.3m

(2019: £52.7m)

Acquisitions

£10.5m

Contribution to revenue

Underlying PBT* margin

18.3%

{2019: 17.9%)

Note
* See Glossary on pages 122-124
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This was reflected in both
clear momentum in the
recruitment of high-calibre
talent, up 135% on the prior
year, which drove organic
revenue growth of 10%, and
strong contributions from six
acquisitions. The acquisitions
strengthened our presence in
the East Midlands and Greater
Manchester, and expanded our
footprint into Yorkshire, the
South East and Birmingham.

Our investrments in aperaticnal management,
technology and infrastructure, enabled

this significant expansion tc be executed
effectively, with the Group’s staff more than
tripling since IPG in June 2018 to over 1,100
{or doubling in the last 12 months), and offices
expanding from 6 to 13.

The ¢.400 increase in fee earners and the
expansion of our fee earner:support staff ratio
te 4.8:1 was significantly ahead of the FY20
aspirations we set out at the time of PO in
June 2018. This has left the Group well placed
to take advantage of the £2.6bn addressable
market for legal services outside London
(source: Bureau van Dijk, Mintel UX Legal
Services Report 2019).

Throughout this expansion of the business,
we have worked hard to retain and develop
the Knights' ‘cne team’ culture which
ensures a collaborative approach to providing
high-quality services to our clients and
development opportunities for ail of the
Group's talent. In turn, our continued high
levels of client and colleague retention are a
key pillar of our sustained profitable growth.

During the year, our banks and shareholders
demonstrated their support for our strategy
through a £40m extended revolving credit
facility, agreed in February 2020, and a £20m
placing which was completed in March 2020
to primarily fund the Shulmans and ASB
acquisitions. These left us in a strong financial
position as we entered the more uncertain
environment created by COVID-19.

In February 2020, Knights alsc welcomed
a significant milestone as we became

a constituent of the FTSE AIM 50 which
recognises our rapid growth since IPO.

Driving organic growth

We continued to attract high calibre talent
during the year, with the strong momentum

in recruitment in the first half continuing inta
the second half. Overall, 108 new fee earners
jeined Knights organically during the year,
compared with 46 new fee earners in the
prior financial year. In addition, 18 senior fee
earners who have accepted positions and will
be joining us in the current financial year,

A significant proportion of these new

recruits join from Top 50 law firms looking

to further their careers at Knights, which

is testament to our reputation for interesting
work for a high-quality ¢lient base and the
development opportunities we offer the team.
QOur business model and culture remains a clear
differentiatar for many who wish to move away
from partnarships and/or work in a modern
professional services business. They are
primarily attracted by the highly coliaborative
and agile work environment, as well as the
reduced financial risks that are associated
with a classic partnership model.

We have also continued to invest to increase
the scale of our operational backbone and
geographical reach through new and improved
premises. This investment provides an
enhanced working environment for existing
tearn members and also attracts further talent
to the business.

Following the appointment of Richard King

as Chief Operating Officer in January 2019,

we have built a robust operational management
and support team to enable our growth. During
the year we have recruited 15 operational staff;
& directors (including an cperations director,

a recruitment director and two client service
directors) and a compliance manager, which
has provided the capability to scale up the
business effectively.

Alongside building out the operational teamn,
significant investment was made in the
Group’s [T and communications infrastructure.
This investment has underpinned a system
that now offers firm-wide information acress
one platform. The system has supported our
increased headcount and the swift integration
of acquired businesses. At Knights we

are constantly reviewing and adopting new
technology where it will improve efficiency or
provide insight to enhance our client service.

A great example of where the investment
in premises and platform have delivered for
the Group is in Manchester and in York.

During the first half of the year, the team in
Manchester relocated into new, larger offices
where the improved working environment and
more central location has enabled us to grow
by 79% to 86 fee eamers, (including 16 whe
foined as part of the acquisition of Croftons).
Our growth in Manchester has also added
momentum to our nearby Wilmslow office
which has grown by 33% to 8C fee earners
(since April 2018: 56), necessitating
additional space.

In the second half of the year, the Group was
able to leverage its existing operating platform
to enter York with a new office opening, and

a tearmn of 15, including 5 partners. We have
also invested during the year in expanding our
capacity in Oxford, providing capacity for up
to 200 fee earners.

Recruited

108

Fee earners including 24 partners

Client satisfaction

+60

>10 years average relationship
for top 10 clients

Acquisitions as a platform for
organic growth

We continued to build on cur strong track
record in selecting and integrating high quality
acquisitions with a strong cultural fit that
either take the Group into new key markets

or strengthen Knights’ service offering

in existing locations.

We have an industry-leading integration
methodology that ensures we deliver value
throughout our programme of acquisitions.
The methodology ensures clear management
ownership of individual transactions and

puts in place an experienced support team

to migrate acquired businesses onto our IT,
payroll, billing and cash collection platforms.
Rebranding, onboarding clients and teams,
migrating to new platforms, enhancing office
environments, securing culture carriers,
training, and modernising acquired teams’
approach to both delivering and being paid for
their legal services, have all become very much
‘business as usual’ tasks for the Group.

As a result of our approach, the Group's prior
year acquisitions have all performed well and
have provided platforms for further growth
in their respective regions during this year.

Strengthening our offering
in existing geographies

On 3 February 2020, we completed the
acquisition of Croftons Solicitors LLP
{'Croftons’), bringing to the Group a specialist
housing, regeneration and commercial real
estate law firm in Manchaster.

Established in the 1840s, Croftons has a
strong reputation for a broad spectrum of work
and is a trusted adviser to over 50 housing
associations, which is typically a very defensive
segment of the market with a high proportion
of recurring revenues.

n



Chief Executive’s Statement continued

Croftons’ 33 fee earners have integrated well
within Knights, belstering the Group’s presence
in Manchester and Wilmslow and broadening
its real estate offering. Initial synergies were alf
delivered as expected and Croftons continues
to perform well.

On 27 March 2020, Knights completed
the acquisition of Fraser Brown, bringing
to the Group one of Nottingham’s largest
independent law firms.

Established over 250 years ago, Fraser Brown
grew to offer a broad spectrum of commercial
and private client legal services to clients across
the East Midlands, significantly strengthening
the Group's presence and breadth of offering
in the region.

Its 81 fee earners have integrated well with
the Group's existing team in the East Midlands,
with initial synergy savings delivered in line
with expectations. We plan to build upon

our expanded East Midlands presence

by combining our current teams in Derby,
Lincoln and Nottingham into new offices in
Nottingham, providing critical mass in this
impartant market.

Birmingham acquisiticns position us well
in the important West Midlands market

We entered Birmingham with the acquisition
of EGL on 1 Novernber 2019, bringing to the
Group one of the only full service commercial
independent law firms in Birmingham and
further extending Knights' strength in its
existing corporate, dispute resolution, real
estate and private client service offering.

The Group subsequently expanded its
offering further in Birmingham through

the acquisition of ERT Law Limited (ERT),
a specialist in commercial litigation, servicing
a number of blue-chip and fisted companies,
on 17 January 2020.

ERT added 24 fee earners to the 28 acquired
as part of the EGL acquisition, providing us
with a significant and high quality platform from
which to grow in the important West Midlands
region, which is estimated to have a £250m
legal services market (source: Bureau van Dijk,
Mintel UK Legal Services Report 2019).

Both acquisitions were a strong cultural fit
which enabled them to integrate well and they
have performed in line with our expectations
following the realisation of synergies.

Establishing the Group in the attractive
South East market

On 17 April 2020, Knights completed the
acquisition of ASB Law LLP including ASB
Aspire LLP (‘ASB?), bringing us an entry into
the South East with a leading full service
commercial law firm in the region.

ASB is a culturally aligned, commaercial law firm
offering commercial, corporate finance, dispute
resclution and employment advice from offices
in Crawley and Maidstone, with 89 fee earners

and large corporate relationships.

its ambitious and innovative team has
successfully challenged conventional ways
of warking in the legal sector despite a limited
ability to invest for growth. However, they will
benefit from invastment as part of a broader
Group and we expect that our investments

in technology and training will allow the full
potential of the business to be realised.

The acquisition of ASB provides a platform

for grawth in the strategically attractive Scuth
East market, which is estimated to be valued at
£250m excluding London (source: Bureau van
Dijk, Mintel UK Legal Services Report 2019).

ASB has integrated well, with initial synergies
realised as anticipated and we expect to

be able to continue to grow our presence

in this region given ASB’s well located base
for the recruitment of high-calibre talent,
including lawyers who ne longer wish to
commute to Londan.

Knights also brings additional expertise,

scale and breadth of services to ASB’s large
corporate relationships (particulary regulatory,
tax and intellectual property), whilst we expect
to leverage the niche specialisms that ASB
brings, e.g. in the aviation sector, across our
widler gecgraphical footprint.

Leeds entry provides a strong platform
in one of the largest regional markets

On 24 April 2020 we completed the
acquisition of Shulmans LLP, providing us with
an entry into the Leeds market with a leading
independent law firm (source: The Lawyer UK
Top 200 2018). Having been founded in 1981,
Shulmans brought to the Group one of the
longest established independent commercial
law firms in Leeds, with 30 commercial fee
earners operating from a single office. Its full
commercial legal services offering includes
corporate, litigation, employment and real
estate, which is well matched to Knights'
existing specialisms.

Shulmans provides Knights with a platform
for growth in one of the largest regional
markets for legal services in the UK; the
Yorkshire market is estimated at £440m
(source: Bureau van Dijk, Mintef UK Legal
Services Report 2019). it alse brings
capacity for material organic growth through
recruitment, with capacity to expand to

up to 225 fee earners, and further bolt-on
acquisitions in the region, in time.

Shulmans also brings access to city
relationships for our York office, which we
recently established crganically and we expect
the combination of the two officas in this region
to be able to replicate Knights' successful
strategy for entering the North West market

by opening the Wilmslow office organically in
May 2017, followed by the acquisition of Turmer
Parkinson in Manchester in June 2018 with 44
fee eamners. The combination of the two offices
generated material organic growth opportunities
resulting in circa 166 fee earners across the
combined cffices today, with the Manchester

acquisition adding momentum to recruitment
efforts in the nearby Wilmslow office.

We are working towards a similar outcome
for Leeds and York.

Shulmans is culturally aligned to Knights

but provides an opportunity to modernise

a busingss which has operated under a more
traditional model previously. it has now been
integrated, with the significant anticipated
Initial synergies having been realised as we
continue to enhance its margins, through the
implementation of Knights’ cperating maodel.

The acquisition provides a strong platform
in this key market for further arganic growth
through enhanced recruitment, investment
in people and technology, client wins and
cross selling.

GOVID-19 update and medium-term outlook

We are proud of the way in which our people
have responded to warking from home, as
they continue to deliver outstanding service

to our clients, without any impact on our ability
to transact, and we are planning to continue to
work from home until September at the earliest.

We believe our early and prudent acticns
to manage costs have positioned the Group
well to trade through the current environment.

With the benefit of recent acquisitions, we
have built upon our resilient business model
with & well-balanced, full service offering and
highly diversified revenues by client, sectar
and geography. During lockdown, the benefits
of this model were evident, and the integration
of recent acquisitions has been ahead

of expectations.

Whilst the market remains uncertain, early
signs of & recovery In instructicns across
the Group pravides an initial indication that
market conditions have started to improve
compared with the disruption experienced
at the beginning of April.

In tha near term, our focus is on further
embedding fee earners from recent
acquisitions and on recruiting senior fee
earners, who typically bring a client following.

We are seeing a high level of quality
recruitment oppartunities with a strong
pipeline of candidates, many of whom come
from Top 50 firms, as they consider a move
away from traditional partnerships.

Beyond the near term, we anticipate that
COVID-19 will only accentuate the recruitment
and acquisition oppertunities for our resilient,
well-invested, diversified and cash generative
business in the highly fragmented and often
under-invested market for legal services
outside London.

We are, therefare, confident that our model
and culture will enable us to emerge in a
stronger position from this current environment,
underpinning the Board's confidence in the
Group’s medium to long-term success.
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Lastly, and maost certainly not least, | would

like to pass on a sincere thanks to the Board,
to the leadership team and te all my colleagues
at Knights for their continual hard work,
support and fantastic contribution this year in
delivering a strong set of results and achieving
censiderable further strategic progress.

oS

David Beech

Chief Executive Officer
21 July 2020

565

We are proud of the way in which our people have
responded to working from home, as they continue
to deliver outstanding service to our clients, with
no impact on our ability to transact.

We believe our early and prudent actions to mancge
costs have positioned the Group well to trade through
the current environment.”

David Beech
Chief Executive Officer




Business Model

Fuelled by our passion for creating the leading legal and
professional services business outside London, our business model
enables us to deliver value by executing our four strategic pillars:

Inpu Key Str:

Clients

Seeking
business advice
that matters

Grow

Organically

Fee Earners Culture Operations Financial
Seeklﬂg B An empowering culture P Corporate structure B Cash and capital
Opportu nities to - Unleashing fee earners’ - Separate and strong - Highly cash generative
H H talent through our leadership team, maodel, supports
gl’OW ina SUD p Or'the coltaborative and friendly, with broad experience investment in people,
environmeaent target free environment beyond the legal sector technalogy and
. infrastructure

- ‘One team’ culture, where - Enabling fee earners to
resources flow quickly focus entirely on what they - Strong balance sheet,
to create the right team do best, servicing clients aided by industry-
far the cli ’ leading working capital

ar the client - Commercial and m 9 g cap
. . anagement

- Entrepreneurial, can-do entrepreneurial approach
mindset, where fee earners is embedded in our culture. - Support of the
can be themselves, -, UK’s strongest quality

. B Efficient and
Law Firms rowth funds.
B Trusted advisors to clients scalable platform 9 "
H B Acquisition track record
Seeklng - Gommercial, business - Single technology platform Quisttion
outceme mindset, delivers efficiency, speed - Identifying the right
a platform 10 get underpinned with expertise of service, and makes businesses, driven
to the next stage and local knowledge collaboration easy by a strong cultural
. ) ) and strategic fit

- Big enough tc deliver, - Flowing work to the strategic f
small enough to care right expert or level of - Integration is
L ) ith experience, to optimise ‘business as usual’,

- bang-term partnering wit value for clients led by an experienced
clients that want the best and dedicated team
and respect those that - Rapidly assembling teams
deliver it. to deliver on short lead - Rapidly unlocking

time or high volume needs existing and creating
of clients. new value sustainably.

Principles
888 Ong team @ Quality mu Commercial
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Exploit Technalogy
and Data

Scale the
Operation

Strategic
Acquisitions

Pad

i

Delivering value for clients

utputs

Clients

B We deliver results that matter to our clients as we are led
by their goals, and use our commercial mindset, market insight
and legal expertise, to deliver optimal business solutions.

P We are trusted advisors, as a result of our understanding
of our clients, their experience of our advice, and because
of who we are as people.

B We structure our resources to deliver the best solution,
underpinned by a high-quality efficient service, enabled
by our one team approach and low overheads.

Accelerating career ambitions

+60

Employees

25

No. of FTSE 100
clients

70%

Growth of clients
using more than
one service

¥ We provide an environment that attracts energetic,
commercially minded innovative professionals.

P Our fast growing business, one team approach and drive
to change the delivery of professional services, provides
outstanding opportunities to flourish.

P Fee earners focus on what they do best and love, servicing
clients, without the time and emotional drains of targets,
politics and management meetings.

Unlocking value from acquisitions

95%

Retention

Shareholder

+36

ENPS

108

New fee earmers

B We carefully select strategic acquisitions that have a strong
cultural fit, with people who share our befief there is a better
way to deliver professional services.

B We quickly release value from cost synergies by implementing
the Knights operating medel.

B We accelerate growth by bringing scale and new expertise
to acquired teams to be better able to serve their existing
clients, win new ones, and expand their reach to serve
existing Knights clients.

Q Pioneer )})( Agile

14.33p 39%

3 year profit CAGR

Adjusted earnings
per share

Communities

27%

TSR

4

working hours a
month per employee
available to the
community

A

1.6m

printed pages
saved per year

Ambitious

9%
o
Energy reduction

through use of
LED lighting




Our Strategy

To build the leading legal and professional
services business outside London.

We have made considerable progress in line with this strategy by accelerating
organic growth with carefully targeted acquisitions which enhance or expand
the Group’s core offering and are considered a strong cultural fit.

Strategic pillars What we did this year
10% 108
°
Organic growth Net new fee-earners
Grow
Organically 3 9 0/ ] 7
0
Joined from Top 50 law firms Fee earnears entered York with
Read more on pages 20-21 CapaClty 120 gI’OW ‘t() 50
i { Market expansions Scale-up existing markets
Strategic
EE I 425 100%
O
Read! more on pages 22-25 New fee earners via acquisition On track to deliver target cost synergies
4.8:] ]
Fee earner ratio Dedicated integration team created

Scale the

Operation 3 6

Group operation hubs established  New Directors

Read more on pages 24-25

8% 3
i 0
of admin work automated Acquisitions’ IT integrated in parallel

Exploit Technology

and Data 70% 0 %

Growth of clients using COVID-19 impact on ability
Reag more on pagss 26-27 more than one service o transact
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What are our priorities

B Serving existing and new high-quality clients with more than one service
B Develop and promote existing talent and continue to hire high-gquality fee earners

P Expanding to select new gecgraphies.

P Remain a leading consolidator in the micd-tier UK legal services sector through selective,
high-guality acquisitions

P Target firms to accelerate growth in existing markets, or those with attractive positions
in Nnew geagraphies and niche specialisms

P Continue to realise targeted cost and revenue benefits, then accelerated growth under
Knights cwnership.

P Continue to create economic scale through the Knights platform
P Continue to invest to create sufficient capacity anead of growth

P Accelerate how quickly new fee earners master the Knights business maodel.

P Expand the capacity and increase the economic scale of our operations backbone
P Grow the business through acticnable business intelligence

» Enhancing service to clients through real time delivery and one team collaborative working.




Strategic Progress

Driving synergistic growth

A presence in the largest
city in the region provides
Knights' local offices with
access to city relationships
and boosts recruitment.

Manchester

Wilmslow

Knights successfully entered the legal

market in the North West in 2017/2018 through
a combination of both organic growth and

an acquisition.

The Wilmslow office was cpened organically

in May 2017 and grew to 56 fee earners
before the acquisition of Turner Parkinson

in Manchester in June 2010, adding a further
44 fee earners. The combination of the two
offices added momentum to recruitment
efforts in both offices, with new hires, including
many from Top 50 law firms, attracted to the
combination of working close to home with
the optionality of a city centre presence.

The recent acquisition of Croftons in

February 2020 has also boosted our Real
Estate services in the region with a new
specialism in housing associations and
regeneration and is already providing further
opportunities for our wider North West team,
where Croftons would previously have had to
outsource certain work. The benefit of cur dual
locations in the region was also seen when we
integrated Croftons, with some of the team
having moved into Manchester whilst some
joined the Wilmslow offices, where they didn't
need to be in central Manchester.

The resulting organic growth opportunities in
the North West have led to a strong regruitment
drive which has seen us grow to 166 fee
earners across the combined offices today,

Having not placed in the top rankings for the
region in previous years, our ranking as the top
legal service provider for corporate M&A in the
North West in 2019 is testament to Knights'
growth in the region in recent years,

This approach to entering
a new market is currently
being replicated in Yorkshire.
Following the organic opening
of our York office in February
2020, we announced the
acquisition of a leading
independent firm Shulmans
{Source: The Lawyer UK Top
200, 2019), based in Leeds.
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Strengthening our core services

B A growing team of 382 professionals, with new practices established in the Midlands, Yorkshire and

the South East, as well as increasing breadth and depth of our offering in the North West
Real B Built critical mass in our conveyancing and development teams and added to our expertise in remortgaging
Estate and hausing and regeneration

B Newly instructed by Barrett Homes to advise on planning and breadened our relationship with longstanding
client Dunelm.

B Expanded from 126 to 247 fee earners, with a team of new recruits joining us from a Top 50 law firm in Manchester
and a strong presence estabiished in Birmingham following the acquisition of litigation specialists ERT
Dispute B Delivered property litigation services to a number of notable FTSE 100 retail clients

Resolution P Added relationship with Mitchells and Butler and Biffa plc to our already impressive client base which includes
two international energy providers, FTSE 100 and Euro 200 companies, shareholders of SMEs, partners and
diractors of professional firms.

B Our 102 strong team now includes a sizeable presence in Birmingham and Leeds, following the acquisitions
of EGL and Shulmans

P Advised on a number of high-profile restructuring, insolvency and refinancing matters across the UK,
as well as heing recognised as the Nerth West's Leading Adviser for deals in Experian’s M&A review

P Notable deals include acting for BGF to advise on a reinvestment of £13m to international web hasting
business Miss Group.

Corporate

B Expanded from 31 to 47 fee earners, with a team of new recruits joining us from a Top 50 law firm in Manchester
B Advising on a number of strategic HR projects following the COVID-19 pandemic
® Added relationships with Monaysupermarket.com and Hertz Europe to our already impressive client base.

B A specialist team continue to deliver high-quality services to high net worth individuals and their families
B Advise langed estates clients throughout the UK
B A 149 strong team of fee earners (2019: 81).

Private
Client

Sector specialisms

B Agriculture and the B Energy, waste and B Healthcare P Property management
i d devel t
food supply chain natural resources B Industrials, transport and developmen
B Consumer-facing B Financial and and support services B Technology, media and
professional services telecommunications
Knights is very important to us as Knights is an integral part of our
a partner, representing great value, business - for all intents and purposes,
but also trust and integrity. almost our in-house lawyers.
When we need to get things dene very quickly, Knights will Qver the more than ten years we've worked with them, they
do everything they can to get our projects over the line and, when have been involved in every single acquisition. Knights’ team
we deal with complex issues, they will put the right expertise our is very approachable and they have depth to their teams across
way to deal with those situations. We hope our lengstanding commercial property and litigation, where they are able fo bring
relationship continues a long way into the future.” in additional expertise quickly and in a cost-effective manner.
| would describe Knights as commoercial, efficient, profassional,”
Ed Gretton
Head of Legal at Hanson Martin Pryce

Fprop plc
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Strategy in Action

We have continued to deliver

double-digit organic growth
in a growing market.

Grow
Organically

20




Strategic Report

The key ways in which we delivered on our organic strategy

this year were by:

Attracting new talent

39% of the 108 net new recruits this year
joined Knights from Top 50 law firms, which
is testament to our reputation for interesting
work and a high-quality client base as well
as the development opportunities and culture
on offer. Many of these new colleagues have
been attracted by a move from partnerships
to a highly collaborative work environment

in which they can focus on delivering quality
work to their clients unburdened by the
financial risks associated with partnership.
Cur career-supporting culture is not only
ensuring we have an exciting recruitment
pipeline but, impaortantly, it is also enabling
us to maintain market-leading retention rates.

Targeting new geographies: York

465

Knights operates very differently to the
traditional law firm mode! which is refreshing
and makes so much sense.

| was particularly attracted to its strong team culture and ethos that people
come first, always. 'm already finding that our team-based approach has
connected me tc new and exciting clients, with my colleagues actively drawing
upon my expertise and intrcducing me to their contacts. | was delighted to join
Knights at an exciting juncture and to have the opportunity to help accelerate
the growth trajectory of the team here.”

Sally Hulston
Partner, Employment, Wilmslow

Knights entered its tenth city in February

2020 with the anncuncement of a new office
opening in York. The move into the Yorkshire
region, with an estimated market size of £440m
{source: Bureau van Dijk, Mintel UK Legal
Services Report 2019), was in line with Knights’
strategy tc target new geographies that have
been identified as suitable for consolidation

of the highly fragmented independent law

firm space. Led by Jonathan Moore, who has
more than 20 years’ experience in York's legal
services market, the opening of a new office
with a team of 16 marked our entry into the
region with a full service offering and capacity
to support further growth in the city.

Building out our specialisms: Dental

36,

I was attracted to the idea of being part of

a new office startup in York because the Knights’
culture that is genuinely centred around trust,
transparency, teamwork and the development

of people is something very differentin the

legal sector.

Without the pressures of individual or team billing targets and traditional partnership

distractions, our primary focus is on delivering a premium client service and that
is the perfect foundation upon which to build a new office from a standing start.

The lateral hires we've made from national and internationat law firms, together
with our full iegal service capability means that the businesses and individuals
of York and North Yorkshire now have a legal services business local to them
that can cater for all of their legal requirements - the potential is enormous.”

Jonathan Moore
Office Partner, Real Estate, York

We continue to expand the depth and breadth
of our service offering, including with new
specialisms. This year, we have expanded

our existing specialisms of Healthcare and
Empleyment and recruited talent in other niche
areas, inctuding Aviation.

Having previously worked in a smaller firm
specialising in advising dental practices, | joined
Knights because it gave me a platform to grow
my client offering and work on a greater number
and variety of transactions.

The corporate structure at Knights has allowed me to provide a better

and fuller service to clients, with its clear separaticn between management

and lawyers allowing me to focus on doing my job> as a lawyer, which has
enabled me to grow our client base significantly.”

Jonathan Tyson
Partner, Corporate, Stoke
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Strategy in Action continued

Strategic
Acquisitions

Knights plc, Manchester

22

Our pipeline of acquisition
candidates grew through 2019,
as we continued to build upon
our reputation as a good owner
of acquired businesses.

This is providing a breadth of potential opportunities for
Knights to bolt on and integrate businesses in areds that
we have identified as suitable for consolidation of the
highly fragmented independent law firm sector. During
the year we continued to build on our strong track record,
successfully completing the aequisitions of a number

of firms, with the respective sellers attracted by the
opportunities that Knights offers.
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We have also shown over time that we are able to support the
ambitions of the people that join us via acquisition through:

Unleashing the potential of the talented people we acquire

For many of the individuals that join Knights
as part of acquired businesses, it offers the
opportunity to expand their role, which in turn
provides Knights with broader talent across
its management team to drive the business
forward. For instance, James Sheridan has
become one of the Group's Client Services
Directors, with responsibility for the North West
region and for leading the recent integraticn
of Shulmans, the Group’s largest acquisition
to date. Since jcining the Greup in 2018, James
has grown our presence in the Nerth West

to ©.180 fee earners, with Knights providing
the financial, operaticnal and cultural platform
to allow him to develop his skills and apply
themn to maximum effect.

Benefitting from increased scale

465

We have significantly developed our North West
presence since becoming a part of Knights, with

the acquisition enabling me to broaden and deepen
my client base much more quickly than I was
previously able to within a partnership.

Our team was ranked as #1 for M8A by volume of deals in the North West

in 2019, which is a huge testament to our growth. | was alsc delighted to take

on a broader role in developing Knights through leading the integraticn of
Shulmans earlier this year, and believe that coming from a business that was

acquired by Knights gave me invaluable experience for ensuring the smooth
integration of future acquisitions.”

James Sheridan
Client Services Director, Manchester

Knights completed the acquisition of ASB
Law LLP in April 2020, a firm which had built
up strong relationships with a number of large
corporates as well as a niche specialism in the
aviation industry, amongst others. Following
the acquisition by Knights, the business was
able to attract work from major clients requiring
greater scale and breadth than ASB was
previousty able to provide due to resource
constraints. The scaled-up support offered 1o
clients encompasses the ‘one team’ approach
at Knights, with clients able to draw on an
ever-growing network of talented lawyers
across a broader range of expertise as part

of a larger business.

Accelerating growth into the wider region

56

Joining Knights has enabled us to engage with
our network of contacts on matters they previously
thought our firm did not have the capacity to deliver.

In recent months we have built on our strong relationships and attracted some
high-profile work — most recently we have provided employment advice and
collective consultation support for employees of a large tour operator and airport,
which wouldn't have been possible without utilising the wider pool of talented
lawyers across Knights, The cultural fit has been great and the opportunities

we are already seeing is a hugely exciting motivator for the whole team.”

Lyndsey Ratcliffe
Partner, Dispute Resolution, Crawley

Shortly after its acquisition of Spearing
Waite, Knights acquired Leicester-based
Cummins Solicitors in January 2019 to
bolster its offering in the city. The high-calibre
amployment specialist allowed Knights to
bring a fuli service offering to Leicester, and
the Group has seen significant growth in the
Midlands since, increasing the number cf fee
earners in the region to 213,

6

We built a strong reputation as a small independent
specialist in the employment sector but felt that
further expansion beyond our existing local client
base would be difficult without further backing.

In particutar, we found it hard to break in to the Birmingham market alone. We had
followed Knights” impressive growth story in the region prior to acquisition and were
delighted to join a strong and independent group that we knaw would help us to fulfit
our ambitions to win in the wider market. Since that time, | have helped Knights to

expand into Birmingham with the acquisitions of EGI. and ERT, giving us a leading
position across the region.”

Michae!l Cummins
Client Services Director, Birmingham
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Strategy in Action continued

During the year, we built
x operational strength in the
Scale the business in preparation for
Operation anticipated growth.

Significant investment was made during the first half of

the year to ensure the Group had the capabilities to harvest
future opportunities as they arose throughout the year.

This investment in our platform ensures the sustainability

of our success into future periods, with operational capacity
across our leadership and systems allowing us to continue
to benefit from economies of scale.

A6

Our investment in professionals

wha have built their careers in
operations leadership and delivery,
together with our systems and office
spdce investments, means we havea
sustainable and scalable backbone to
support our rapidly growing business.

During the year this has resulted in us doubling fee earner
recruitment, automating ¢.8% of administration work, alongside
the successful integration of 6 acquisitions, 3 of which were
delivered remiotely during the COVID-19 pandemic.

The strength of our operational backbone means we can

operate with both excellence and efficiency, as evidenced
by our fee to non-fee earner ratio, which increased to 4.8:1
in the period against an industry nerm of 1.6-2:1."

Richard King
Chief Qperating Cfficer

New fee earners:

24



Strategic Report

Investments

38

B Added 6 Directors
to our leadership team

P Upgraded technology
and infrastructure

Successful integration: How we do it

~

P Formed specialist
integration team

¢

B Modemisation
of office space

Qur tried and tested formula allows us to treat acquisitions as a ‘business as usual’ task:

Phasel

B Our specialist in-house
team manages the M&A
and integration process,
including due-diligence,
finance and HR

B Acquisitions are selected
with cultural fit in mind
as full cultural integration
is a top priarity to ensure
retention of key staff

B Integration workstreams are
established before the deal
is finalised, with a Client
Services Director providing
clear senior ownership at
every stage of the process.

Phase2

B Planning for the transfer
of IT systems begins well
in advance and takes place
over a weekend, ensuring
negligible disruption to
the lawyer workflow

B Split exchange and
completion facilitates
a smooth and
efficient precess

B Rebranding always takes
place on completion, with
support to ensure continuity
of service to clients.

Phase 3

B Back office restructured
to remove support service
inefficiencies, in ling with
our 4.8:1 fee earner to
support staff ratio

B A structured and ongoing
pregramme of training
and one to one support
to help new colleagues
adapt to Knights’ Cperating
Platform and master our
business model.

Phase 4

B Continually building valus
by helping fee earners to
adopt Knights' modernised
way of working,
collaborative culture and
commercial mindset,
to deliver improved fee
earmer service quality and
efficiency aver time

I Building a business
externally by focusing
our sales, marketing and
recruitment teams to create
a strong reputation and
develop relationships
in the new market.

565

Prior to joining Knights,
the Shulmans team didn't
have the systems to work
seamlessly from home.

Knights’ IT tearmn were able tc quickly
support our entire infrastructure to allow

for remote working, an impressive feat and
one that was crucial to our ability to weather
this crisis. When Knights completed the
acquisition, our systems were integrated
over the weekend meaning we could continue
client wark on Monday morning.”

Marcus Armstrong
commenting on the recent acquisition
of Shulmans

Initial synergies generally achieved 2 months after completion, releasing significant value fraom the acquisitions in the short term.

(505

Having full access to

the enthusiastic sales,
marketing and recruitment
professionals of Knights
has been a game changer
for me.

Knights has supported me to build business
in a way that I've not experienced before.”

Richard Wiison
commenting on his experience
of joining Knights

35

Knights’ results-driven
and collaborative
culture has proven to be
a real motivator for our
ambitious team,

With the best-in-class technology we have
adopted, as well as the commercial acumen
built through training and mentoring, our
original team and client base has gone

from strength to strength.”

Martin Billings
commenting following the acquisition
of BrookStreet des Roches in April 2019
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Strategy in Action continued

Exploit Technology
and Data

We have continued to

expand the depth and breadth
of our use of technology to
develop the scalability and
efficiency of our operations,
and increasingly, to enhance
our services to clients.

Our strong foundation of a fee earner base skilled in using
technology, together with a single IT and data platform
for the business, has enabled us to continue our progress
in expanding the business impact of IT.

Most visible has been our ability to instantly onto our platform with shut down of all their

switch to home working with no impact on systems in a matter of weeks after acquisition.

productivity during the pandemic, the 20% Equally, we have made significant progress in

efficiency increase in fee earner to operations using technology 10 enable fee earners to work

staff ratio, and the integration of £ businesses more seamlessly and ‘real time’ with clients.
One platform
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Scaling our operating backbone

Measures of success

Our single platform is a key strength
that we continue to invest in, to sustain
ouwr ability to operate as one business
as we rapidly grow, create efficiencies
at scale, and increase our acquisition
integration capacity.

Growing the business

B We have reduced administration waork
by ¢.8% through automation of many
time intensive transactional processes
particularly in Finance and IT. This has
been a key contributor to our fee earner
to non-fee earner ratio increasing from
4.0:1 10 4.81

B Our upgraded acquisition integration
capability enables us to manage the
transition of multiple acquisitions in
parallel, notably defivering three in
parallel whilst in COVID-19 lockdown.

Fee earner: non-fee earner ratio

4.8:1

We are increasingly creating value

by exploiting rich sources of data and
codifying our knowhow, to identify
and action ocpportunities to grow
revenue and cash conversion.

Enhancing service to clients

I We have increased our suCcess in
attracting new clients and growing the
number of services existing clients usse,
by creating a system using algerithms on
market and proprietary data, that better
identifies prime prospects for our sales
team and fee earners to target. This has
been a key contributor to us successfully
winning 57 % additional clients and
increasing the number of clients using
more than one service by 70%

B Created a system that takes faster
action and reduces the effort to deliver
timely cash conversion and low bad debt,
by automating some steps and creating
exception alerts for others, powered
by combining payment history data
and our best practice.

Acquisitions integrated in parallel

3

Growing our capability to work more
seamlessly, transparently and faster
with clients, is a continued focus,
with cloud technologies creating
many new opportunities.

. 20%

B Accelerated document signing from hours
to minutes by introducing e-signatures,
as a result of working with a software
previder to enhance our capability to meet
the complex legal signoff process needs

P Our existing online collaboration suite
proved invaluable during the COVID-19
pandemic. The pandemic and our
investment into new capabilities such

as shared tasklists and group chat is fueling

our clients and ourselves to reimagine how

we can work together even more efficiently

P We now offer bespoke interactive client
dashboards so clients can get updated
progess information faster, with less effort,
at anytime, from anywhere.

Growth in clients
using more than one service

70%

Additional clients

57%

Efficiency increase in fee earner to operations staff ratio
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Corporate Sustainability

Building a sustainable business that
enables all its stakeholders to thrive.

Knights is committed to building Taken together, these goals form a key appointed Jane Pateman as its Board Director
a sustainable business that enables all part of the Group's overall drive to transform with overall responsibility for Environmental,
its stakeholders to thrive: a business that legal services away from the traditional Social and Governance strategy. Jane and
minimises its impact on the environment, maodel of working and are critical o its wider the Executive Directors will focus on shaping
looks after its people and communities investment cage. the Group’s strong existing activity into

and operates ethically with the highest a strategjic programme 1o support Knights

.nghts ls.proud of the.prog.r 88 'F has mad.e in making an increasingly positive impact
in enhancing the sustainability of its operations

. into 2020 and beyond.
but wants to go further. This year the Group

levels of governance.

Managing our
business for
the long-~term

Our
sustainability

pillars

Caring for our
people and our
communities

Looking after
the environment
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The Group focuses on three key pillars within its

sustainability approach:

Managing our business
for the long-term

Aiming for the highest
standards of corporate
behaviour and running
its operations with high
ethical standards

B Read more on page 30

Key performance indicators

Whilst the Group is continually evalving its measurement of these areas, it currently focuses on

Caring for our people
and our communities

Through fostering ¢
diverse, tearm-based,
meritocracy-driven
culture and encouraging
community contributions

B Read more on pages 32-34

Looking after
the environment

With a focus on cutting

our carbon footprint
and paper consumption

B Read more on pages 36-38

the following KPls to measure the effectiveness of its support of colleagues and the community.

Managing our business
for the long-term

P Board role and diversity

The Board has an effective blend of financial

and public market experience, diversity,
skillsets and capabilities with backgrounds
in operations, human resources, accounting
and finance disciplines across a wide range
of industries.

P Business ethics
Knights has a rigorous ‘Kncw Your Client’
process to ensure that its business is not

used as a conduit for the proceeds of crime,

terrorism or money-laundering.

B Compliance
Fee earning colleagues receive mandatery
compliance training during the onboarding
process and are required to refresh this
every year.

Caring for our people and
our communities

B Retention
Knights enjoys relatively strong employee
retention levels, with less than 5% churn®.

B Flexibility
Knights tries to offer 4 working environment
to suit everyone; last year, a total of 24%
of colleagues worked flexibly or part time.

B Employee ownership
Knights is proud to be able to offer
colleagues a stake in the business;
as at February 2020 78% of employees
are shareholders via the Group's various
share plans, meaning they retain a direct
interest in its future prospects.

B Community
Our aspiration is to deliver four hours per
month, per colleague to our communities
through the 40urCommunity programme.
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Looking after the
environment

B Paper consumption
Within the Group’s physical office estate,
the number one environmental impact
is paper consumption, saving 1.6m pages
per year.

P Energy reduction
There is alsc an ongoing upgrade of all
light bulbs to LED across all our sites which
target a reduction in energy use of 9%.

P Business travel
The recent impact of COVID-19 has
seen many more internal and client
business meetings conducted by video
conference, a trend that will support
stronger client delivery, improved working
conditions and staff welfare, and reducing
its environmental impact.

Knights is a business where the day job is intrinsically linked to doeing the right
thing; whether that’s developing and empowering colieagues to deliver the best
advice, creating a fuffilling and purposeful environment for our peaple, or holding
ourselves to the highest standards of conduct throughout our business operations.

I'm delighted to be overseeing the drive for greater sustainability at Knights,
and I'm looking forward to bringing some of my own background to bear in shaping

a strategy for 2020 and beyond.”

Jane Pateman, Non-Executive Director: Knights ple, Group HR Birector: Biffa plc

Note
* See Glossary on pages 122-124
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Managing our Business for the Long-Term

Knights runs its operations
with the highest standards

of corporate gov
conduct. All of thi

by a Board of Directors who bring

ernance and
S IS overseen

a wide range of relevant skills

and experience t

Board role, diversity and independence

O bear,

The Board guides Knights’
approach and is committed

to extending its values to

all stakeholder groups,

including shareholders, clients,
employees, governments and
regulators, and the communities
in which it operates.

Further details of the Board’s outreach

are detailed in our Section 172 statement
on page 39 of this Annual Report.

Business ethics and compliance

The Board is comprised of three
executive directors, the Non-Executive
Chairman, and a further two independent
Non-Executive Directors.

The Board believes that the Directors have an
sffective blend of financiat and public market
experience, diversity, skillsets and capabilities.
Only one member of our Board - CEQ, David
- has a legal background, with the rest of the
Directors bringing broad experience from
operatiohs, human resources, accounting

and finance disciplines across a wide range
of industries.

Board members

6

Building a culture where

the Knights team operates
responsibly, sustainably and
with integrity is essential to the
long-term success as a Group.
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The Group is govermed by the Solicitors’
Regulation Authority and its rigorous
approach to conducting its business

to the highest standards.

Knights has a rigorous ‘Know Your Client’
process 1o ensure that its business is not used
as a conduit for the proceeds of crime, terrarism
or meney-iaundering. The Group conducts
thorough audits on clients’ background

before working with them, and its dedicated,
independent in-house compliance teams
rigorously monitor all work being conducted
throughout the business ¢n an ongoing basis.

All fee-earning colleagues receive mandatory
compliance training during the onboarding
process and are required to refresh this
every year.

Anti-Bribery and Corruption

Knights is commitied to maintaining the highest
standards of ethics and compliance with all
relevant laws wherever it does business. The
Group does not tolerate any form of bribery or
corruption and requires ail individuals warking
for it to comply with anti-bribery and cormuption
laws and ethical standards.

Whistleblowing

All employees of Knights should feel able

to raise concerns about any safety, legal

or ethical issues. If they feel unable to report
these concerns to a manager, the Group also
provides a whistleblowing process, which

is detailed on its website.

Meodern Slavery

The Group has a zero-tolerance approach
to modern slavery anywherg in its supply
chain and a full copy cf its policy is detailed
on its website.



Ijoined Knights plc in November 2018
having worked in-house as a senior
member of the Ethics & Compliance
function at a global energy company and
within financial institutions managing
compliance and investigations.

| am excited to be part of such a forward thinking and agile
team at Knights where risk and compliance is held in high regard
and plays a key part in each step the business takes.”

Elinor Lloyd
Compliance Director, Knights plc
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Employee engagement and culture

Knights’ culture is a source
of immense pride and the
Group firmly believes that
it'’s a key differentiator for
clients and colleagues alike
in a crowded market,

biversity and inclusion

Abhove all, Knights aims to create a positive
environment that empowers colleagues

to be themselves, supports them to take
responsibility and provides them with a
fulilling rofe and development opportunities.

The Group has a culture of productivity and
encourages a high level of flexible working.
Last year it saw 24% of colleagues work
part-time, enabling them to choose a work
and personal kife balance.

The Group’s senior management teams
maintain regular communications with
colleagues and encourage them to share
feedback. Senior management have hosted
regular calls through the COVID-19 situation,
with the CECO holding several ‘all hands’
meetings with over 80% participation

and cver 200 questions answerad.

Knights’ core ethos is focusing
on what people contribute,
not their backgreund.

Health and safety/wellbeing

This approach delivers excellent outcomes
when it comes to diversity and we believe
that these diverse teams make the best
long-term decisions and ultimately position
businesses for sustainable growth.

The Group has market-leading levels
of gender diversity, with 45% of cur upper
quartile fee earners being female.

Whilst we are proud of our gender diversity,
we continue to look at this area more broadly.
Our strategy is based on understanding each
individual and creating an environment where
everyone can thrive. Whilst we don't formally
measure it, we subsequently see people from
many different saciceconomic, ethnic and
religious backgrounds thriving at Knights.

Knights is committed

to ensuring the wellbeing
and safety of employees
in alf offices.

Pay and conditions

Policies and procedures comply with
relevant local safety, health and welfare

at work legislation, as appropriate.

The Group also uses Grade A office space
fitted to high standards in order to provide
the best working environment,

As Knights acquires other businesses and
operates multiple sites with legacy policies,

it overlays a single Knights Health and Safety
framework that ensures a consistent approach
within the organisation.

The Group places significant focus on
the wellbeing of its colleagues providing
an Employee Assistance Programme and
a Helpline where colleagues can speak
to a professional about any professionat
or personal issues. During the GOVID-19
lockdown, world renowned performance
coach Jamil Qureshi ran group sessions
and 1:1s on mindfulness and wellbeing,
attended by over 440 employees.

Knights' structure enahles
the Group to maintain fair
and appropriate levels of pay
throughout the organisation.

Due to the Group’s corporate PLC model,
colleagues do not have to take on the
financial risks associated with a partnership,
and the majority of its Board are not lawyers,
meaning they retain an external perspective
when setting remuneration levels.

The Group also operates various share plans
which enables all employees to become

shareholders and share in the future success
of the Group. Since our IPQ, where we
launched our first share incentive plan,

we have rolled out two ShareSave schemes
and also launched a Long-Term Incentive Plan
for key non-fee earning roles. Qver 75%

of employees are currently enrollec in a plan.
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Caring for our People and Communities continued

Peopie helping others

Knights believes that people
who help other people are
more engaged and have
deeper perspectives on their
community. It's those people
who are best placed to drive
a business forward in the
long-term,

Community

The Group ig, therefore, focused on
enabling colleagues to support their local
communities through its flagship programme
ACurCommunity. This gives colleagues

4 hours of work time per month 1o spend
helping local causes.

The Group believes the programme has a huge

impact on the wellbeing of staff and enables

them to use their individual skifis to best effect.

Our aspiration is to deliver
50,000+ hours to our
community through the

40urCommunity programme.
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Hospice of the Good
Shepherd in Chester

The Hospice have been working on their
grounds for some time, but there was a parcel
of land - a steep incline which, crucially, faces
on ta a number of residents’ rooms - that
needed to be de-weeded and prepped for
seeds to be planted.

The Trussell Trust/
West Chester Foodbank

Bridie Conboy and Emma Scott from
Chester volunteering for The Trussell Trust/
West Cheshire Foodbank at Tesco.

Europe Corporate
Games 2019

Colleagues tock part in the Europe Corporate
Games 2019 hosted in Coventry, whose official
Charity was Z0&'s Place Baby Hospice.

Harvest Festival for Alice
Charity in Stoke

Colleagues donated over 100 items of non
perishables foods and perscnal hygiene
products for the charity's ‘peoples pantry’.
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Looking After the Environment

Knights is conscious of its
impact on the environment
and committed to making
positive changes at every
level of its business.

In comparison with other sectors, the Group is fortunate that
its environmental impact is relatively low, but climate change
is a global challenge and every business has to play its part
in minimising the footprint of its operations.

Offices

Within the Group’s physical
office estate, the number

one environmental impact is
paper consumption, which has
traditionally been used heavily
in law firms. The Group is also
conscious of the impact of other
forms of office consumption,
including electricity and

other consumables.

Qutside the office

In recent years, Knights has made
significant investments into digital working
practices, which is enabling the Group to
cut the use of paper across its operations
and recently enabled a rapid response

to ‘work from home’ measures imposed
during the COVID-19 lackdown.

These investments range from the extensive
roll-out of software that enable the creation,
review and sharing of information digitally
across the organisation to increasing the
use of electronic signatures, We have also
made positive changes to our storage and
transportation palicies which are reducing
the number of journieys connected to sharing
documentation within cur business.

The Group has specific targets around
the use of paper, which are detailed
at the end of this section.

Alongside cutting paper censumption, the
Group has several other waste management
policies in place which are designed to reduce
its carbon footprint.

These initiatives are led by Chief Operating
Officer Richard King, who brings significant
experience in enviranmental sustainability from
his previous roles, and focus on many other
areas of the business, including full recycling
in all offices, eliminating the use of single-use
water bottles, coffee pods, cups, cutlery and
crockery and enhancing energy efficiency,
with the ongeing upgrade of all light bulbs

to LED across all our sites set to reduce
energy consumption by 9.9%.

Qutside iis office estate, the
Group's greatest environmental
impact is from travel by
employees going to, from

and between offices, and to
and from clients. The Group
therefore aims to encourage
and sustain flexible working
amongst its employee base,
reducing the amount of times
people need to travel to, from
and between offices to conduct
their roles.
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This involves investment in digital working
practises, inciuding the roll-out of platforms
such as Microsoft Tearns and Zoom, and
training for senior managers across the
organisation in how to manage remote working.
Where possible, the Group is also entering into
sensible, forward-thinking conversations around
business travel with our clients, many of whom
share similar averall goals.

The recent impact of COVIO-19 has seen many
more internal and client business meetings
canducted by video conference, a trend that
will only grow.

Looking to the future, the Group is determined
to continue to be proactive in changing what
is a traditional sector, believing that greater
flexibility can support stronger client delivery,
improved working conditions and staff welfare,
and reducing its environmental impact.
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Knights rapidly modernises
the businesses it acquires
and invests a substantial
amount in improving their
digital infrastructure.

Financial Statements

The Group recently acquired EGL and
immediately migrated the business on to
the Knights platform from its older systems,
digitised all paperwork onto the Knights
platform and equipped all fee earners with
technclogy and training on ‘paper-lite’
ways of working.

The pictures below show the office

space before and after it became part
of the Knights organisation.




Looking After the Environment continued

SECR

Greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) statement

In line with the Companies Act 2006 {2013 Regulations) and the
recently introduced Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting
(SECR) requirement, Knights plc is disclosing its annual Global
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions here. We are required to report
the Company’s emissions of carbon dioxide equivafence {CO,e),

a CO,e intensity value, and the consumption of supplied electricity
in the UK. The methodologies and processes used to cailculate
these emissions are also disciosed.

The table below includes emissions for the
combustion of fuel (Scope 1) and purchased
electricity {Scope 2) of the premises

and cther assets awned or operated by
Knights plc. Knights plc purchases natural
gas for a small number of premises; however
measured consumption values are not widely
available. As the level of consumption is
estimated to be immaterial, these figures

are omitted fram this repart. Going forward,
Knights plc aims to improve its collection and
reporting of gas consumption and subsequent
GHG emissions. Knights plc does not directly
own or lease company vehicles; therefors,
only Scope 2 emissions are disclosed in this
repart. All of Knights pic's operations are in the
UK, therefore all values below are both Group

tatals and UK totals. They are, therefore, not
separated out as required by SECR regulations
for organisations that have an international
carbon footprint.

This is the first vear of GHG emission reporting
for Knights. I future reports, year-over-year
data will be disclosed to show performance
and progress. Despite only reporting
performance data for the first time this year,
Knights has made reducing its envirohmental
impact a key focus area of the business.
Significant investments into digital working
practises has enabled the Group o cut its use
of paper while decreasing the need for physical
business travel. These investments range from
the extensive roli-out of software that enable

Paper consumption reduction

68%

vs. industry standard

Energy reduction

9%

through use of LED lighting

the creation, review and sharing of information
digitally ta increasing the use of electronic
signatures. Positive changes have also been
made to our storage and transportation
policies which reduce the number of journeys
associated with sharing dacumentation across
our business. The Group has specific targets
around the use of paper and has several other
wasté management and recycling policies in
place that are designed to reduce the Group's
carbon footprint; these include full recycling

in all offices, sliminating the use of single-use
water bottles, coffee pods, cups, cutlery and
crockery and enhancing energy efficiency.
There is also an ongeing upgrade of all light
bulbs to LED across all our sites which target
a reduction in energy use of 8.9%.

Energy consumption 2020 Upnit
Scope 11 0 Kilowat! hours of energy used
Scope 22 378,537 Kilowatt hours of energy used
Total 378,537 Kilowatt hours of energy used
CO,e emissions 2020 Unit
Scope 11 0 Tonnes of COe
Scope 22 96.8 Tannes of COe
Total 96.8 Tonnes of COe
Carbon intensity 2020 Unit
Reference 1! Area 5,309 Sauare metres (office area for Group)
Beference 2; Revenue 74 mil GBP (revenue far Group in 2020}
CO,e by area 18.23 g CO,e per m®
1,308 Kg CO,e per EGBP million of revenue

CO,e by revenue

' Scope 1 emussions are traditonally emitted from fuel consurngtion in either buildings or company leased/owned vehicles. Emissions from persanal or privately-hired vehicles used for company
business are cansidered 1o be Scape 3 (under the GHG pratocol} and as such are nat included in the ‘Operational contral’ boundary approach adopted by Krights ple (see 'Methadalagy and
scope’). Energy and emissions from the small amount of natural gas consumed are not included in this ¥8port, but itis plantied that they be included in future years.

Methodology and scope

Garbon Dioxide equivalence (CO,e)
emissions data have been collected,
calculated, consolidated and analysed
following the GHG Protocel (Corporate
Accounting & Reporting Standard) foliowing
the ‘operational control’ approach. Emission
factors of supplied electricity for locations
waere sourced from the UK Government
GHG Conversion Factors for Company

a8

Reporting (DEFRA agency) - this is the
annual average GO,e emissions of the UK's
electricity grid. The boundary for reporting
includes assets {n the case of Knights these
are offices) that are owned or cperated by
the organisation. Energy consumption values
and their corresponding GHG emissions are a
mix of measured data such as elactricity bills
{approximately 55% of data) and estimated

Scope 2 emissions are derived from electricity consumption at Knights ple's offices. They are a mix of measured electricity consumption and estimated values {see "Methedology and scope’).

values based on cffice area size {approximately
45% of data). Data estimation is primatily due
to offices being in shared locations where
supplied erergy is nat specifically provided to
Knights by the landlord or building manager.
Gaing forward, Knights ple intends to collect
mare ‘measured’ energy data and reduce the
niead for astimatians.
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Engaging with Stakeholders

This section of the Strategic Report describes how the Directors act in line with
Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006, and continue to have regard for:

the likely consequences of any decision
in the long-term;

the interests of the Company's employees;

the need to foster the Company’s business
relationships with suppliers, customers
and others;

the impact of ihe Company’s operations
on the community and the environment;

the desirability of the Company maintaining
a reputation for high standards of business
conduct; and

the need to act fairly between members
of the Company.

Financial Statements

The Board identifies the Group’s key
stakeholders as shareholders, employees,
clients, regulators, suppliers and cemmunity
participants, and it is committed to effective
engagement with these stakeholders ensuring
the interests of all stakeholders are given equal
importance when making key decisicns.

Set out below is a summary of how the Board fulfils these duties in respect of each of their key stakeholders.

The Board regularly engages with shareholders
and is committed to an open dialogue and

fair and equal treaimeant of all shareholders.
The Chairman mests shareholders without
management present and reports to the
Board. The Board receives regular updates

on shareholder engagement and analyst
commentary and receives presentations

from corporate brokers on investor perception.

The Knights CEQ has a fult programme of
engagement with shareholders and presents
to the Group's fargest shareholders, as well

as sell-side analysts, following the full and half
year results. The CEQ and CFQ alsc meet
regularly with individual shareholders.

Qur Annual General Meeting (AGM) is

an important part of effective shareholder
communication, with all shareholders having
the opportunity to hear from the Company
and ask questions. The Board welcomes the
opportunity to engage with our shareholders,
fypically providing a brief update presentation
at each AGM and with all Directors available
to answer questions.

The Board would. however, welcome greater
participation from shareholders. and the current
COVID-19 crisis may alter the dynamics of these
meetings in the future. The Company is looking
at other ways to broaden the participation

of all shareholders.

The Board receives regular updates in refation
to employees and, during 2019, conducted

a number of Board visits to key cffices and
received regular updates via one-on-one
meetings, Board presentations and via the
Executive Directars.

The Group holds annual strategy days and,
as the Beard is in attendance, it is able to get
poth formal and informal instant feedback
from the Senicr Management team.

The Board has a clear and robust process
for engaging with regulators, as and when
appropriate, and monitoring risk registers. The
Boeard conducts regular regulatory compliance

reviews, with a dedicated Compliance secticn
in every board pack to analyse client risks.

Through the CEO and CFQ, the Board is in
contact with the Solicitors Regulation Authority
at least once a monih and, as an AlM listed
company, the Group is in regular contact with
our Nominated Advisor and the Financial
Conduct Authority.

Knights takes a proactive approach to
communicating with clients and updates are
provided to the Board by the Chief Executive
Officer. During the year, the Board receives
updates from senicr management con key
client issues via the business reviews.

The CEO and selected members of the

Board also meet existing and potential clients
at conferences and events {in light of the
COVID-19 pandemic these meetings have
occurred regularly through video conferencing
to maintain our strong relationships). The CEO
independently regularly meets with key clients
to strengthen relationships.

The Group's procurement policy includes

a commitment to sustainable procurement and
mitigation against the risk of modern stavery,
bribery or corruption anywhere in our supply
chain. The Group alse aims to cenduct itself
to the highest standards and pay all invoices
promptly. The Board plays a key oversight
role in these policies.

Knights’ Envirocnmental, Sustainability and
Governance sirategy is focused on adding value
to the communities in which we operate and is
detailed on pages 28-38 of this repori. Detailed
updates on this strategy and associated
programmes of work are provided to the Board
and discussed on its Risk Committes.

Acquisitions, refinancing and placing
during the year. the Group acguired six law
firms, providing additional scale, additional
practice areas and presence in a number of
key geographical markets in order to allow it
to detiver its strategy to be the leading legal

and professional services business cuiside
London. The acquisitions provide enhanced
revenue generation which in turn provide
returns to shareholders irs the longer terrm and
provide enhanced employment opportunities
as part of 2 wider Group. Prior to completing
the acquisitions the Board considered the
effects that the acquisitions would have on the
Group’s gearing and creditors in order to ensure
that executing the strong pipeline of acquisitions
would not adversely impact creditors interests.
In considering this the Group agreed to
refinance its existing factities by extending tts
revolving credit facility with HSBC UK and Allied
Irish Bark providing total committed funding

of £40m 1o provide the Group with additional
flexibility to further grow its presence across the
UK, and raised gross proceeds of £20m through
a placing which allows it to maintain a sirong
balance sheet. See page 22 of this report.

Addressing the impact of COVID-19

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and

the measures that have been taken by the
government to counteract the impact on public
safety the Board had to take swift and decisive
action to protect the health and well-being of the
Group's employees. In considering the needs

of the employees the Board took the decision
on 13 March 2020 prior to the government lock
down 1o require all employees to work from
home, The Board believes that the Group’s
previous investments in secure, robust systems,
infrastructure and technology platiorms have
enabled teams to work effectively from home
and that its investment, along with & strong
ieam culture, has enabled Knights 1o protect

its colleagues without adversely disrupting
service levels to clients which in turn maintains
both client relationships and in the longer term
shareholder relurns.

In addition, in order to preserve jobs in light

of the rapidly changing economic environment,
the Board took the decision to reduce Board
mambers’ salaries by 30%, and the salaries
of employees earning in excess of £30,000
by 10% with effect from 1 April 2020, in
addition to other cost cutting measures in
relation to non-essential capital expenditure.
These actions have been well received by
employees, our funders and our investors.




Non-Financial Report

Described below is how the Group
aims to comply with the Non-Financial

Reporting Regulation requirements as get
out in sections 414CA and 414CB of the

Companies Act 2006.

Requirement

Environmental
matters

Employees

40

Where to find
information

Looking after the
environment
pages 36-38

investment case
pages 4-5

Chairman's
statement
pages B-9

Chief Executive’s
statement
pages 10-13

Business model
pages 14-15

Caring for our
people and
communities
pages 32-34

Section 172
statement
page 39

We have set out where information related to
these disclosures ¢an be found in our Annual
Raport, including our business model which
is set out on page 14. The principal risks
relating to these matters and due diligence

undertaken in pursuance of our policies is set
out in the Risk Management section of our
Actnual Repaort, on pages 50-53 respectively.

Policy overview

The Group's materiality assessment has determined that Knights' environmental impact 1s
refatively low. As a people and services business, Knights’ key impacts are the consumption

of paper anct wider energy usage. We recogriise the nead to minimise our impact and continuatly
measure and monitor the environmental sustainability of its operations and, where possible,

sets targets to ensure that it operates with the minimal impact, Knights provides regular
erwironmental and progress updates to employees, clients and other interestec stakeholders,

A surnmary of its progress in 2019 is detailed on page 36 and KPls relating to the Group’s
streamlined energy and carbon reporting (SECR) is available on page 38.

As set out in the Investment case, pages 4-5, Chairman’s statement, pages 8-9, Chief Execulive’s
statement, pages 10-13 and Business Model, pages 14-15, our empicyees are an essential
component of our business with their health and wellbeing remaining a Group priority.

Health & Safety Policy: Knights ensure that, 50 far a5 is reasonably practicable, the health,
safety and welfare of ali employees working for the company and other persons whe may be
affected by its undertakings. The policy of management is to do all that is reasonably practicable
o prevent personal injury and damage to property. All smployees are informed of their persanal
responsibifities 1o take due care of the health and safety of themselves and to ensure that they
do not endanger others.

Knights ensures continued consultation with the workforce to enable all viewpaints and
recommendaticns to be discussed at regular intervals. The organisation has a systematic
approach {6 identifying hazards, assessing the risks, determining suitable and sufficient control
measures and informing employees of the corract procedures needed to maintain a safe working
environment. We will provide, sa far as is reasonably practicable, safe places and systems

of work, safe plant and machinery, safe handling of materials and substances, the provision

of adequate safety equipment and ensure that apprapriate information, instruction, trairing

and supervision is given. Management are committed to continually measure, monitor and revise
an annual plan to ensure that health and safety standards are adequatsly mainfained. The policy
is implemented by our Guality, Health and Safety Manager, who recommends any changes

to meet new circumstances.

Training: A wide range of training and development opportunities are available for all employees.
Fee-earning colleagues receive mandatory compliance training during the onboarding process
and are required o refresh this every year.

Diversity & inclusion Policy: Knights is an equal opportunities emptoyer, committed to ensuring
the workplace is free from unlawful discrimination, victimisation or harassment on the grounds of
age, disabillity, race, sex, sexual orientation, religion or belief. Knights values and is committed to
promoting equality and diversity within the workplace by seeking to ensure that all individuals are
treated fainy with dignity and respect and by recognising and encouraging individual contribution
within the organisation. Knights is comimitted to ensuring that all its employees and all applicants
for employment are protected from unlawfut discrimination. Knights does not discriminate against
employees. Knights has teading leveis of gender diversity for any professional services business
and publishes an update of its gender pay gap report on its website.

Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties: The policy covers our interest conflicts, which states
that Knights can never act where thera is an own intereat confiict with a new or existing client.
The SRA Standards and Regulations do riot aliow a client to waive or consent to a confiict of
interests with the business. Fee earners are expected to use their judgment and seek further
guidance and approval from Compliance in all cases where there may be a potential conflict.
Chient conflicts are covered under the SRA Standards and Regulations. Where there is a conflict
between new or existing clients, Knights cannot accept/continue instructions unless the affected
clients have a substantially commaon interest or are competing for the same abjectiva. Information
conflict and duty confiict are also covered by our policy, Krights provides periodic training on the
identification of conflicts of interest and compliance is monitored by the Compliance Officer for
Legal Practice, who is responsible for this palicy. Palicies are reviewed at least annually.

Whistleblowing: Emplayeas are encouraged ta repart any serious wrangdaing by the firm ar its
employees that falt short of its business principles. if they fee) unable 1o report these concerns

o a manager, the Group also provides a whistleblowing process, which is detailed on its website
and provided to employeas. Knights undertakes that no employee whao raises bana fide cancerns
under this Policy will be subjected to any detiiment as a result.
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Requirement

Social maiters

Respect for
human rights

Anti-corruption
and anti-bribery

Other relevant
policies

Duties
tc clients

Confidentiality

Business
continuity

Where to find Policy overview

information

Caring for our As outlined in Caring for Collsagues and Communilies, Knights is actively engaged in its
people and communities through both employment and community activities. Knights’ legal services
communities are also aimed at helping local businesses thrive and grow.

pages 32-34

Managing our

The Graup enables colleagues to support their local communities through its 4QurCommunity
programme, where colleagues can spend four hours of work time per month to offer assistance
to organisations, such as charities, schools, care homes, food banks and youth centres or any
organisation providing a social, educational, voluntary or charitable service to the community.

Knights' aspiration is to deliver 50,000+ hours to its communities through the programme.

Modern Slavery: The Group has a zero-tolerance approach to modern slavery anywhere

Business for the in its supply chain and a full copy of its policy is detailed on its website.

long-term , L, ) X

page 30 Tna Grpup S p.rocuremt.-)nt policy includes a commltment to sugtamable procgrement and _
mitigation against the risk of modern slavery, bribery or carruption anywhere in our supply chain.

Section 172 The Group also aims to canduct itself to the highest standards and pay all invoices promptly.

statement The Board plays a key oversight role in these policies.

page 39

Managing our
Business for the
leng-term

page 30

Section 172
statement
page 39

Summary

Knights has a rigorous “Know Your Client’ process to ensure that its business is not used

as a conduit for the proceeds of crime, terrarism or money-laundering. The Group conducts
thorough audits on clients' background before warking with them, and its dedicated,
independent in-house compliance teams rigorously monitor all work being conducted
throughout the business on an cngoing basis.

Anti-Money Laundering: Knights ensures its employees are aware of the law and are regularly
provided with training in how to recognise and deal with transactions that may be related to
meney laundering. Knights provides employees with training and a manual to explain its policies
and procedures, including reference to its Money Laundering Reporting Cfficer. Policies apply to
all clients and all matters. The firm is required to maintain records of client identification evidence
for at least five years from the end of our business relationship with a client. Employee obligations
are to carry out “customer due diligence” and to recognise and report suspicious transactions,
as well as avoiding tipping off a suspect about a report.

Anti-Bribery and Corruption: Knights is committed tc maintaining the highest standards
of ethics and compliance with all relevant laws wherever it does business. The Group does
not tolerate any form of bribery or coruption and requires all individuals working for it to
comply with anti-bribery and corruption laws and ethical standards.

Whistleblowing: All employees of Knights should feel able to raise concerns about any
safety, legal or ethical issues. If they feel unable to report these concerns to a manager,
the Group also provides a whistleblowing process, which is detailed on its website.

Knights is committed to providing an excellent level of service to its clients and to acting with integrity in all of its
dealings which is fundamental to cur business strategy. We will only accept instructions and provide advice where

we are able to meet cur commitment to client service. Where instructions or advice are outside the expertise or capability
of the business, they will be declined. Employees are aware of specific work types which require specific referral to

team risk supervisors. We will always consider the most appropriate style of communication bearing in mind the needs
and characteristics of the client. A member of the management team is responsible for client care at Knights and

reviews this policy al least annually to ensure continued excellence.

Confidentiality is a fundamental feature of our relationship with our clients. This duty continues beyond the end of the
retainer and even after the death of the client. The protection of confidential information is balanced against the duty

of disclosure. In practical terms, this means not speaking about clients, their details or their cases outside the office

or in situations where they might be overheard. This duty also applies to information about the Knights business itself.
Where employees cannot reconcile these two duties the protection of confidential information is paramount. Employees
can contact Mark Beech or consult the SRA handbook for furthar information. Breaches of confidentiality are reportable
offences and should be referred to the COLP. Breaches of confidentiality may be treated as a serious disciplinary offence.

Unforeseen events could cause considerable disruption to Knights’ normal business activity, the potential impact of which

could be long lasting, having an effect on health and safety, reputation, market confidence, operating efficiency and financial
sacurity. To this end, Knights’ policy is to take measures to protect itself to ensure it is prepared and efficient in responding
to such adverse situations. Best practice business risk management principles balance risk with the economics of investing
in cost effective loss prevention and minimisation. These principles include the highest regard for the safety and heaith

of employees, clients and the public, the continuation of the highest quality service tc our clients and the protection and
preservation of property and the environment. This has been amply demonstrated in our response to the COVID-19 crisis.
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Revenue {Em)

Reported profit before tax (Em)

underlying profit before tox* {€m)

70 7 4
- 136
60 ] 12
50 5 o . 10 o
43 43 ’
40 4 44 8
: - 349
2
30 a1 3 5
’ 25 51 48
20 202 2 4 4
10 1 2
o 0 ]
2016 217 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Adjusted EPS (p)* Average number of fee earners Underlying PBT margin*
2019 11.31 2019 402 2019 17.9%

Fees per fee earner* underying PBT per fee earner*
(g000} (£,000 Reported EPS
2019 131 209 bt 2019+ 527p
Financial results

2020 20197
Revenue 74,254 52,662
Staff costs ) ) (45578} (30,137}
Other underlying costs and charges o {15,060) {13,098)
Underl_ying profit before_tax* 13,615 9,427
Amortisation of acquisition refated intangibles (1,427) (693}
Non-recurring finance costs® {41} (2,038
One-off costs on acquisitions and 1PO* (8,090) (1,847)
Profit before tax L 4,058 4,849
EPS L e 244 ] 5.27
Adjusted EPS 1433 11.31

465

| am pleased to report strong performance

for the Group in the financial year, despite
suffering from the economic impact of the
COVID-18 pandernic during Aptil, which
historically is the strongest trading month for
the Group. We have continued to buiid on our
historic strong track record of growth in both
turnover and profitability over the past six years
with a further 41% increase in turnover and a 45%
increase in Underlying Profit Before Tax (PRT).
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Qur ceontinued focus on cash flow has resulted in strong
cash conversion of 80% for the year, with net debt being
lower than expected, positioning the Group well to deal with
the current economic uncertainty from the impacts of the
COVID-19 pandemic and to continue with our future growth
strateqy via recruitment and carefully selected acquisitions.

Revenue

Reported revenue for the period was £74.3m
compared with £52.7m in 2019 representing
a 41.0% increase.

Of this increase 20%, or £10.5m, was a result
of the acquisitions made during the financial
year, £5.9m relates to the full year impact of
acquisitiocns made in FY19 with the balance
coming from organic revenue growth.

Staff Costs

The Group achieved strong organic revenue
growth, of £5.2m (10%), which is testament
to our commitment to continue to strengthen
our core business. The organic growth is
primarily a result of the increased fees from
individuals recruited in the later part of FY19
and fees generated by the net new
recruitment of 108 fee earners during FY20.

2019 £52 662,000

+41%

Total staff costs represent 61.4% of revenue
compared with 57.2% n 2(19.

Fee earner staff costs have increased from
49.6% of turnover to 52.1% of turnover
reflecting the investment in fee earners across
all levels during the year. As many of our new
fee earners joined us during the second half
they have been with Knights for less than the
six months it would typically take to achieve
the full expected fee earning run rate.

As reported in the second half of FY 19 we have
continued to invest in our support functions in
FY20, focusing on increasing the management
resource available within the Group to ensure
we have a properly structured support team
with sufficient bandwidth to guarantee the
continued efficient integration of acquisitions.

Total staff costs

In addition to the COO appeinted in
January 2019, this investment has included
the appointment of a projects diractor,

a client services director, an operations
director, the expansion of our sales team
and further investment in the HR, IT and
finance support functions.

During the unprecedented pericd of working
from home due to nationwide lockdown we
have benefited from previous investments in
operational resource and IT as the business
was able to continue to aperate as normal
with no interruption to our ability to transact.
We also completed three acquisitions and the
related data transfers, onboarding and staff
training on Knights’ operating systems whilst
working remotely, which is testament to the
strength of our platform and dedication

of our teams.

Direct staff costs

These investments, together with the costs
of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors
as discussed in the Remuneration Committee
report, has increased our support staff costs
from 7.6% of revenue in FY19 to 9.3% of
revenue in the current year.

Management anticipates that these costs will
now start to be leveraged by the increased fee
generating capagcity of the business, supported
by the fact that, as at the end of the financial
year, the fee earning to support staff ratio

was at a [evel of 4.8 fee earners 1o every one
support staff (on a FTE basis} compared with
the average of 4.2 during the year.

Net fee earner recruits

61.4%

{2019 57.2%)

52.1%

(R019: 49.6%)

Investment in support

Support staff costs function £,000
(2019: 7. 6%
Note

* See Glossary on pages 122-124

™ The 2018 figures have been adjusted to reflect the impact of IFRS 16 as explained on page 124

108

(2019: 48)
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Underlying profit before tax*

During the petiod we have adopted IFRS 16in
relation to the accounting for lease contracts.
As set out in nate 37 to the financial staternants
this has resulted in reduction in profit before tax
of £0.5m compared with the level that wouid
have been reported under previous accounting
standards. The table below shows the impact

of IFRS 16 adoption on the results for the
financial year to 30 April 2020 and restates

the period ta 30 April 2019 for the adoption

of IFRS 16 for comparison purposes. All of the
commentary below is provided on an IFRS 16
bagis in both years, in Order to provide a more
meaningful comparison.

£9,427,000

+45°

Comparable
Reported Reported under
1AS 17 IFRS 16 1AS 17 IFRS 16
Aprit 20 Change April 20 Apiil 19 Change Aprii 19
— e FOOO£000 _fo00 fo00 £oo0  £000
Revenve T 7484 T 7asa 52,662 - 52,562
Other cpera'tingﬂincome ' 8es - 894 T4 - C 415
Staffcosts {45,578) B @5578 {30137 - (30,137)
Depreciation and amortisation charges 2,281 (1,905 @E7Te) (1,473 (1,319 2,789
impairment of trade receivables and 112) - {112) {439) - {439)
contract assets S
Other cperating charges (13,779 2,366 CE0A {11,184 1,603 {©.561)
Non-underlying costs - Booy - 8090  asn g7
Operatingproft 5317 27t 5588  8m7 287 8304
Finance costs ®7N 812) (1,489 (738) 679) (1,417
Non-recurting finance costs _ B (;41) - “an {2,038) - ] {2,038)
Profit before tax o C a9 (sa1) 4088 B241 (39 4849
Taxation @239 - (2.239) 20 - qgpap
Profit and total comprehensive income 2360 (sa1) 1818 4001 (3®® 3608
tor the year attributable to equity owners
of the parent
Basic EPS (pence) 316 2.44 5.84 5.27
Underlying earnings per share ipence) 14.30 14.33 11.88 11.31
Underlying Profit Before Tax 14,158 13,616 9,819 9,427
Underlying Profit After Tax 11,247 10,708 8,141 7,749

Underlying PBT excludes amortisation

of acquired intangibles, nan-underlying
transaction costs relating to the placing in
March 2020 and acquisitions made during
the year, restructuring costs as a result of
acquisitions and the cost saving exercise
undertaken in response to the COVID-19
pandemic and contingent consideration
payments required to be reflected through the
Statement of Comprehensive Income under
IFRS. i also excludes share-based payments
for one-off share awards made at IPO and
as part of the acquisitions, and the one-off
Share Incentive Plan offered to empioyees
as a result of the listing. Any share-hased
payments charges retating to ongeing

Reported profit before tax

SAYE and LTIP schemes are recognised
as underlying costs of the Group.

Underlying profit before tax has been
calculated as an alternative performance
measure in order to provide & more meaningful
measure and year on year comparison of
the profitability of the underlying business.
Underlying profit before tax has increased
by 456% compared with the same period last
year to £13.6m (2019: £9.4m), representing
a margin of 18.3% as compared with 17.9%
in the prior year. The improvement in margin
is a result of the increase in fee incorme
leveraging generzl overheads and finance
costs in the business which is particularly

encouraging given the level of investment

in the business. In addition to the investment
in fee earning and support staff as discussed
above, during the year there has also been
investment in othar areas of the business

in preparation for future organic growth.

For example the investment in the increased
office premises in Mancheaster at the start

of the financial year has led to an increase in
costs of approximately €750k, This investmeant
has altowed organic and acquisitive growth

in Manchester during the year with scope for
further expansion of up to 70 fee earners in the
future, providing opportunity to further leverage
overhaads and improve prafitability aver time.

The reported profit before tax for the year has
decreased by 16.3% to £4.Tm (2019: £4.8m
on a comparable (FRS 16 basis). The decrease
in reported profit befors tax of £0.7m in the year
reflects the net impact of increased revenue, the
leveraging of overheads of £3.56m, the decrease
in non-underlying finance costs of £2m and
the increased non-underlying costs of £6.2m.

Nofe
" See Glossary on pages 122-124

a4

The significant increase In the non-underlying
costs incurred due to the six acquisitions (FY19
four) and restructuring exercise undertaken as
a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. The non
undlerlying costs relating to acquisitions include
the recognition of some contingent payments
on acquisitions and the restructuring costs.

£4,849,000

-16.3%
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Earnings per share (EPS)

The weighted average number of shares

in 2020 was 74,675,462 (2019 68,533,094)
which gives a basic earnings per share (Basic
EPS) for the year of 2.44p (2018: 5.27p). Taking
into account the number of share options that
the Group has cutstanding at the year end
gives a diluted EPS of 2.41p (2019: 5.24p).

In order to compare the EPS year on year, the
underlying EPS has been calculated showing
14.33p in 2020 compared with 11.31p in the
prior year, This measure eliminates the effect
of any non-recurring and non-underlying costs
on the EPS calculation.

Corporation tax

Undetrlying EPS

Basic EPS

1.31p

14.33p

2.44p

527p

The Group’s tax charge for the year was £2.2m
{2019: £1.2m} which was made up of a current

corporation tax charge of £1.9m and a deferred
tax charge of £0.3m (2019: credit of £0.1m)}.

The deferred tax charge arises due to the
charge on the acquired intangible assets and
the increase in the expected future corporation
tax rate from 17% to 19%.

Dividend

The total effective rate of tax is 55% based

on reported profits before tax. This has been
adversely affected by non-underlying items
{largely amortisation of acquired intangible
assets and the recognition of contingent
consideration on acquisitions against profits)
that are not tax deductible. The effective rate of
tax on the underlying profits of the business is
21% {see note 16 of the financial statements).

Effective rate of tax

21%

2019 17%

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the
resultant uncertainty of the effects on the UK
economy the board has introduced cost cutting
measures across the Group to ensure that the
business is in the best possible position given
the current uncertainty. Whilst these cost cutting
measures are in place, the Board has decided
that it would not be appropriate to propose

Balance sheet

a final dividend for the financial year at this
time. As such the total dividend for the year
ended 30 April 2020 will be the amount
already paid as an interim dividend, being
1.10p per share (2019: 1.87p per share).

Pence per share

1.10p

2019:1.87p

The Group adopted IFRS 16 Leases during the period. The table below shows the impact of IFRS 16 adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 30 April
2020 and shows the comparatives as at 30 April 2019 after adoption of IFRS 16 for comparison purpeses. As explained in note 3 to the financial
statements, the Group adopted the transition method for implementing IFRS 16 which does not require the restatement of comparative figures.

Reported Reported Comparable

1AS 17 IFRS 16 1AS 17 under IFRS 16

April 20 Change April 20 April 19 Change April 19

£000 £:000 £000 £°000 £'000 £000

Goodwill and intangible assets 89,135 T - 62,135 46,444 - 45,444
Right of use assets - 23749 23,749 - 19470 19,470
Working capital 27,681 ' - o 81 11762 - 11,762
Other net assets / (iabilities) Co12) - @0z (1618 - {1.616)
Lease liabiities ' (238449)  (23.844) LT (ep1g (19,018)
- o 94,804 @) 84703 56,590 4527 57,042

Cash and cash equivalentswwWWWW_' ey D 12,74 4,904 - 4,904
Borowings (28,650} (28650, (19,0000 S (is,000)
R e e I (115,?909] - (15,900] (14,096)ww e ______m
Deferred consideration T (2,850} o T (2,850 (3,239) T (3,239
Net assets 76,045 @5 75950 39,255 452 39,707

The Group's net assets as at 30 April 2020 increased by £36.2m reflecting the shares issued in relation to acquisitions in the year and the placing

in March 2020, and profit net of dividends paid during the year. The working capital as at the end of the year shows a disproportionate increase
when compared with the increase in turnover due to the three large acquisitions at the year end, with the full impact of the acquired working capital
but only two months of incorme included in turnover for the vear.
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Goodwill and intangible assets

Included within intangible assets and goadwill
is £29.4m of intangible assets, identified

an gurrent and prior acquisitions, such as
customer relationships, brand and computer
software. The balance relates to goodwill

of £39.7m arising from acquisitions.

The Board carries out an impairment review
of goodwill each year to ensure the canrying
value is supportable. Although the Board
cannot predict with any certainty the level
of future trading of the business given the

Warking capital

cuirrent econamic uncertainty, the value

in use of the goodwill was caiculated using

a number of different scenarios, some of which
assumed a considerably worse cutcome than
is anticipated by the directors. In all instances
the future trading of the business was more
than sufficient to justify the carrying value

of goodwill. Therefare as at 30 April 2020,

the Board concluded that the goodwill and
intangible assets were not impaired.

£69.Im

2019: £46.4m

Lock up days is the primary metric used by

the Group to measure the length of time it takes
ta convert wark racorded into cash received.

It is calculated as the combined debtor and
WIP days for the Group. Management of lock
up has continued to be a key focus of the Group
over the period as it drives the cash generation
necessary to support the growth strategy of the
Group. Total lock up days at 30 April 2020 were
105 compared with 93 the previous year.

Marnagement are satisfied with the level of lock
up at the year end which remains significantly
batter than the industry average despite being
adversely affected by the acquisitions during
the year that had langer lock up profiles when
acquired. Excluding the impact of extended lock

Net debt, financing ond leverage

up on acquisitions during the year, the lock up
at 30 April 2020 was 85 days (2019: 88 days).

Average lock up days of acquisitions was

137 days pre-acquisition which has reduced
to 130 days at the year end. Due to the
proximity of a number of the larger acquisitions
to the year end, lock up has not reduced
significantly in acquisftions as at 30 Aprit 2020.
We anticipate lock up of recent acquisitions
tq reduce to levels in line with the rest of the
Group during the first half of FY21.

The Group’s strong control over debtors is
reflected in a low level of bad debts. Total bad
debt charge for the year has reduced to just
0.2% of turnovar (2079: 0.8%).

Leck up days

85 days

2019: 88 days
Excludes the impact of the extended lock up an
acquisiions made during the year

Bad debt

0.2%....

2019: 0.8%

The strong cash conversion in the period,
together with the funds raised during the
Placing in March 2020 have resulted in net
debt of £15.9m at the year end which was
aver £1m belter than expectations. This figure
represents an increase in net debt from the
£14.1m as at April 2019 due to an aggregate
cash outlay of 23m relating 1o consideration
for acquisitions made during the period and
deferred considaration paid in relation {o
acquisitions in prior years, net of the £20m
procesds from the placing.

Cash conversion

During the year, the Group increased its RCF
facility to £40m (split between two banking
partners: AIB and HSBC). This increased
facility, together with the additional £19.2m
funds raised through a placing of shaves on
B March 2020 gives the Group good headroom
and pesitions the Graup well to both deal
with the economic uncertainty created by the
ongaing COVID-19 pandemic to continue its
growth strategy into 2021 through continued
organic recruitment and carefully selected,
culturally aligned aquisitions.

Net debt

£15.9m

2019 £14.1m

Leverage
{muitiple of adjusted EBITDA)

0.9

2019 1.2 times

Net ca;h gengfgfgdvf‘ra; Izhwdeﬂyin;;b—e?ating ac'tiyities*

Tax paid

Cash autflow far IFRS 16 loases (rér'\taf béyméhfs excluded

Freecashfiow
Underlying profit aﬂer tax*

GCash conversion

2020 2019

£o00 (IFRS 16 adjusted)

£:000

o YT 11,706

{2,907) (078

from operating activity cash flows under IFRS 16) - -
ST R e T R e e e — hﬁﬁ:&a«&
R

The cash conversion percentage measures the Group's convarsion of its underlying rrofit after tax into free cash flows. Gash conversion of 137% in 2019
was an excepiional resuft reflecting the cash flow benefit of reducing the lock Lip In acquired businesses down to a level in fine with the rest of the Group.
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Cash conversion of 80% in the year to 30 April 2020 reflected the
extended lockup in regent acquisitions.

Capital expenditure

During the year the Group has continued to invest in its systems

and premises to expand our capacity and ensure our professionals
continue to benefit from a high quality working environment, with
consistent systems across the Group to aid integration and supporting
our one firm culture.

The total £2.2m invested in capital expenditure (excluding right

of use assets capitalised as part of the adoption of IFRS 16) included
the following one-off non-recurring significant items reguired as a result
of the acquisitions and continued growth of the Group:

£m
Refurbishment of new Manchester premises Y
Refurbishment of Oxford hfemiseé V(td'expahd éépécity) - 0.3
Refurbishment of zdditional office sbéce in Wimslow 0.3
Provision of new / upgraded IT equipment 0.5
for acquisitions
T - o e e o e e e

Other capital spend in the financial year relates to general investment in [T,

communications and infrastructure required for the increase in the number

of employees, and to support our programme of rolling IT replacements
to enstre our technology s up to date and sufficient to meet the needs
of the business.

Due to the current economic uncertainty the Directors wish to monitor
the impact cn the business closely before committing to significant
expenditure. As such, the capital budgets for FY21 have not yet been
finalised. Nonetheless, the Group remains committed to ensuring all
acquisitions are fully integrated onto Knights' operating system with

a comparable high quality working environment.

Following entry into new markets through acquisition, we expect some
expenditure on new premises in Nottingham and 8Birmingham where

leases are due to expire in the next financial year. We have also committed

to new modern offices in a central Leeds location and we are reviewing
the need for investment in Matdstone and Crawley offices before finalising
budgets for the year,

Acquisitions

During the year we completed six acquisitions. The table

below summarises the net impact of the acquisitions during the
year and in FY19 on cash during the current year and in future
years. This shows the impact of consideration payable net of any
cash in the acquired businesses.

Cash Cash
impact from impact from Total cash
acquisitions acquisitions impact from
Financial in the year in 2019 acquisitions
year ended £m Em fm
2020 18.96 3.75 22.71
202t 6.08 232 8.40
2022 5.25 .65 5.90

The above includes estimated contingent consideration charged
as remuneration in the Income Statement.

Acquisitions compieted during the year were structured with a lower
initial cash outlay, altering the balance between cash, shares and
deferred or contingent consideration agread, as confidence in the
value of the Group’s shares has increased.

The strong cash and lock up management systems in the
Group mean that often we generate cash from the balance sheets
of acquired businesses.

Tax - Cash flow impact

Corporation tax

In FY20 the Group and Company fell under the large Quarterly
Payments regime for corporation tax for the first time. This had the
effect of advancing the corporation tax payments such that the full
estimated corporation tax for the financial year has been paid during
the year rather than only 50% under the prior year’s tax regime.

The cash impact of these additional tax payments during the year
was approximately £1.1m.

VAT

During the COVID-19 pandemic the Group benefitted from the
temporary ability to defer VAT payments until June. As at 30 April 2020
this had a positive impact on cash of approximately £0.8m. This deferral
of VAT will reverse impacting cash flow in FY21.
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Key performance indicators

The Group uses a number of key performance
indicators (KPIs) to maonitor the Group’s
performance against its strategic objectives.
These comprise 2 number of financial and
nion-financial measures which are agreed

and monitored regularly at Board meetings.

The financial indicators are caiculated
based on underlying results excluding any
one-oit fransactional and acquisition related
casts. The Board is of the opinion that these
operational factors are key drivers for the
Graup's financial success.

Number of fee eorners/Fees per fee earner

Top line growth is a product of the number of fee samers employed and the fees per fee
earner that they are generating, therefore these are two KPlIs that the Board menitors closely

on a manthly basis.

The number of fulf time equivalent fes earners in the Group more than doubled to 885 at the
end of the financial year from 426 at the start of the year, which reflected a combination of new
recruits and new joiners via acquisition partially offset by the restructuring exercise undertaken

as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Overall fees per fee earner of £119k were generated during the year compared with

£131k in 2019.

As a business that has always been focused on cash and profits rather than fees, fees per
fee eamar, although a useful benchmark, needs to be considered alangside ather profit hased
KPls as the fees per fee earner can vary from period to period based on a range of factors.

For instance, in the reporting year:

- As anticipated, the Group’s strong recruitment in the financial year reduced the reported fees
per fee earner. In the first year of recruitment, due to the necessary training and onboarding
processes that take place for all new recruits, it typically takes three to six maonths for new
recruits 1o achieve their expected run-rate on fee generation.

- During the year the Group continued to invest in paralegal and trainee resource to support

the more experienced recruits joining the business and to ensure teams had sufficient resource

at afl levels. As Knights includes paralegals and trainees as fee earners, this change in mix

brings dfown the average fee per fee earner.

- Acquisitions typically bring a lowsr fee per fee earner prior to full onboarding.

New recruits during the year generated £71k per reciuit and acquisitions during the year
generated £119k per fee earner, many of which have only been with the business for less

than six months.

From our first acquisition in 2012, management has been more focused on growth in
profitability and the cash generation of the business; therefore a mora important KPl and area
for focus by the Board is the underlying profitability of the business for the year and by fee earner.
The key drivers impacting underlying profit before tax for the year are discussed below,

Average full time equivalent
fee earners during the year

622

{2019: 402)

Fees per fee earner

£F119k

{2019: £131%)

Underlying profit before tax (PBT)

With the adoption of IFRS 16 during the year
the Board views the KPI of underlying PBT

as & more accurate measure of its performance
as this refiects all of the property and lease
costs incurred by the Group. The Board believes
that it is an important metric for monitoring

the profitability of ongoing cperations.

Underlying PBT excludes amortisation

of acquired intangible assets and one-off
transaction costs refating to the placing

of shares in March 2020, acquisitions
made during the year and restructuring
costs as a result of the acquisitions and the
cast saving exercise undertaken in response
te the COVID-19 pandemic. It also excludes
share-based payments for one-off share
awards afong with contingent consideration
payments required to be reflected

Note
* See Glossary on pages 122-124
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through the Statement of Comprehansive
Income as remuneration under IFRS
accounting conventions.

The undetlying PBT for 2020 has grown

by 39% over the 2019 comparative level.
This represents a PBT margin of 18.3%
compared with 17.8% in 2018 reflecting the
fact that the increased scale of the business
is further leveraging the overheads of the
business whilst also altowing the Group to
invest in new fee earners, support staff and
larger premises to provide a stable base for
future growth, As a result, undertying PBT
per fee earner remained telatively stable

at £22,000 per fee earner compared with
£23,000 In FY19, despite the additional
investment and recruitment in the year.

+45%

Underlying PBY per fee earnet

£22k

{2019: £23k)




Strategic Report

Fee earner to non-fee earner ratio*

The business model and use of IT systems
have been key in enabling the Group to
maintain a fee earner to non-fee earner staff
ratio that is much higher than the average for
the sector. This continues to be one of the key
differentiators in our business model enabling
the Group to generate such strong margins.

As at 30 April 2020, due to the growth in

the business via acquisitions and organic
recruitment the Group is operating at a ratio
of 4.8 fee eamners for every one suppan staff.

This is despite the investment in support

staff during the year and now places the
Group in an excellent positicn to continue to
leverage cverhead costs in the coming year.
However, the Board recognises the importance
of ensuring that the support function is always
sufficient for the business and that capacity

is in place befare any significant planned
growth. Therefore the Group will accordingly
continue to invest in support staff to create
the required sustainable base for future
growth meaning that this ratio may vary

over time dependant on where the Group

is in its investment and growth cycle.

4.8

{2019: 4.0)

In summary

The Board is pleased with the growth in fee income and
profitability during the year which has been achieved whilst
also investing significantly in the strengthening of the
management and support staff function as well as organic
income growth via recruitment.

The ability of the Group to deliver such strong results is
particularly pleasing given the significant impact of COVID-19

in the last month of the financial year. The Group's performance
together with the lower than anticipated levels of net debt,

due to the Group's excellent cash management, places us

in @ strong position to continue to grow the business both
organically through recruitment, and through selective
dcquisition opportunities.

b
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Kate Lewis
Chief Financial Officer
21 July 2020




Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Board is responsible for continually reviewing and assessing the principal risks
facing the Group, both from a financial and non financial perspective and 1o ensure that
controls are put in place to ensure the Groups® exposure to these risks is minimised.

Although risks and uncertaintics are formally reviewed annually by the Board, they are
continually considered by the Board in all business and strategic decisions.

The principal risks are identified as follows but the Board recognises that the nature
and scape of risks that the Group is expaosed to may change and as such this list is nat
intended to be exhaustive:

Principal risk Description

Professional The Group provides, amongst other things, legal, tax, and town planning services which gives rise
ti ability and to & potential fiability for negligence, breach of requlatory duties or other similar third party claims.

uninsured risks Such claims have the potential to cause financial loss and could also negatively impact the reputation
of the Group which ultimately could adversely affect the financial performance of the Group.

Regulatory and The legal sector is heavily regulated and as a result, in addition to the normal gavernment guidelines and
compliance risk

regulations that a business is subject to, the Group fs alse regulated by the Solicitors Regulation Authority
{SRA) and Information Commissioners Office (ICC). Non-compliance with any regutations could result
in reputational damage to the business and may have financial imphications.

Restrictions imposed by the Legal Services Act 2007 (LSA)

Knights Group Holdings Plc is a Licensed Body. The LSA places restrictions on the holding of ‘restricted interests’
in Licensed Body law fimns. This restricts the maximum shareholding that can be held, without prior SRA approval,
by a non-lawyer shareholder tc 10 percent of the issued share capital. If a non-authaorised sharehoider were to
obtain a sharehelding in excess of 10 per cent this would be classed as a criminal offence and the SRA cauld force
divestrnent or revoke the Licensed Body status of the Group.

Employee misconduct and litigation

As a professional services provider, the Group is exposed to the risk that personnel may engage in misconduct
or improper use of confidential client information. Such misconduct could damage the Groups' reputation or result
in regulatory sanctions and financial damage.

Personnel Ability 1o atiract and retain personnel

The ability to attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced personnel is critical to the Group's success

as they constitute the principal assets and contributors 1o revenue. There is strong competition in the marketplace
for such personnel and any difficulties in attracting and retaining such nigh quality personnal could impact

on the Group’s ability to deliver the financial forecasts.

Sucecession planning and dependence on key personnei

Tne Group's fulure success and strategy is dependent on the performance and retention of the Executive Directors
and senior maragement team. The loss of a key individual or the inability to expand the senior management team
as the business grows could negatively impact the reputational and financial performance of the Group.

\
- \
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Mitigation

The Group maintains comprehensive professional liability insurance to reduce or mitigate against any financial impact of claims made.
Claims are dealt with by a central team to ensure that they are dealt with effectively and in line with the Group’s compliance policy.
The Compliance team works closely with Insurers and the Regulatory bodies to ensure any risks are minimised.

The Directors consider compliance to be of paramount importance and feels that it has appropriate processes in place to ensure
compliance. Procedures are continually reviewed and amended to take into account up to date guidelines and advice.

The Board consider the Group to have a good claims history.

The Group has a strong Compliance and Regulatory team which ensures compliance with all necessary regulations. External advice
is taken if required. The Board is regularly updated on any regulatory developments so that it can ensure these are fully considered
in all business and strategic decisions.

The Directors work closely with the SRA to ensure there are no breaches and review shareholding regularly. The Board ensure that advisors
and sharehclders are aware of this issue.

Knights adheres to an Information Security policy that draws on best practice from ISO 270001 and Cyber Essentials plus. This policy
is delivered annually to all colleagues and new recruits on induction.

The Group takes data protection seriously and has in place robust data protection procedures to ensure it is compliant with GDPR regulations.

The Group invests heavily in working to attract high quality personnel with organic growth being a key focus for the Board. in the last year
the Group has employed a Recruitment Director whose primary focus is ensuring that high quality people with the right culture are identified
to join our group.

The Group also offers competitive remuneraticn packages in its current locations, flexible working conditions and a no targets team culture
allowing individuals to maximise their job satisfaction and work/life balance.

The Group enjoys low staff turnover and the Board strive to continuausly engage with its employees to ensure that employees understand

the drivers of the business and there is a continuous reinforcement of the transparent and collaberative culture despite the changing working
environment as a result of COVID-19 with employees having worked from home since 16th March 202D, with these working practices expected
to continue until at least 1 September 2020.

Employee contracts include restrictive covenant provisions to protect the business where possible.

During the year the Board has worked hard to expand and strengthen the management team of the Group to ensure the management structure
in place is sufficient to support the future growth of the business. In particular in the last year the Client Services team has grown with the
introduction of two new directors, a new Operations Director has been recruited and the operations team has been strengthened considerably
in order to seek to ensure that the execution and integration of acquisitions and the ongoing focus on organic growth and strengthening the
existing business can be maintained with a wider team taking responsibility for these activities.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Principal risk

Acquisition risk

Macro and
micro economic
environment

Reputation
and brand risk

Information
systems and
data security

52

Description

A key part of the Group’s strategy is to expand the business through the acquisition of culturally aligned,
earnings enhancing acquisitions. Detafled financial and legal due diligence is carried out however there
is the risk that there are unforeseen issues that adversely affect the reputation or forecast financial
performance of the Group.

If newly acquired businesses are not properly aligned and integrated this could have negative impacts cn the
rast of the business and cause reputational damage. There is alsa the financial visk that the acqguired business
does not perform as expecied.

Current uncertainty in the market as a result of the global pandemic of COVID-19 which is expected
to resuit in a general economic downturn which may have a negative impact on the financial performance
of the Group.

There are a large number of potential competitors within the legal and prafessional services market competing
for the Group's professionals and clients, any foss ef which could impact the financial performance of the Group.

Knights’ brand and the reputation of the Group and its professionals are driving factors behind the success
of tha Group. Anything that damages the Group’s brand or reputation could negatively impact the future
success of the business.

Damage tc the Knights' brand could have a detrimental impact reputationally which ultimately could have
financial implications for the Group.

The Giroup is heavily reliant on its information technology systems for ali day to day processes. A major T system
failure or a malicious attack, data breach or virus accidental could impact the ability of the Group to operate having
both reputatianal and financial implications.
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Mitigation

The Group has an experienced in house acqguisitions team that undertakes a robust due diligence process with expert external advice
being sought where necessary. Warranties and disciosures are obtained from the sellers as appropriate.

The Board recognises that cultural integration is critical to the success of every acquisition. During the year the acquisition and integration
teams have continued to be strengthened and the full integration plan utilised by the Group is under continuous review and built upon.

This ensures that all acquisitions are fully integrated onto the Group’s Operating System as scon as possible and a full training programme

is delivered fo all new colleagues, which can be delivered both remotely and in person so that integration of acquisitions is not compromised
despite the business currently working from home in line with government advice. Cultural integration of the new colleagues is key at all stages
of the acquisition and integration process and continues to be a focus with continuous reinforcement by the leadership team and the existing
employees of the business.

The Board believes its exposure to both macro and micro environmental factars is limited due to there being no reliance on any one
practice area, client or professional, and the Group's continuous focus on cash collection resulting in it having good headroom to counteract
the impact of the lock down measures taken by the government in March 2020.

As announced on 26 March 2020, the Group moved quickly to put in place a number of prudent cost saving and efficiency measures
in relation to the uncertainty created by GOVID-19, demonstrating the benefit of a corporate structure in which the senior leadership were
able to act with agility whitst supporting its lawyers to remnain focused on delivering value to clients.

The Board believes that the swift actions taken positicn the Group well to trade through the current environment, which has resulted
in a circa 20% decline in instructions. However, the Board is encouraged by early signs that market conditions have stabilised following
the particular disruption experienced since early April.

The Group expects that the number of law firms may decrease due to the uncertainty within the market and the traditional partnershig structure
operated by many law firms resulting in such firms having limited cash resources to counteract any decling in revenue as a result of the lock down
measures taken by the government. The Board believes that this positions the Group well to attract talent from potential competitors.

The Board also believes by maintaining the high quality work and strong client base, lawyers will continue to be attracted to Knights® business
which can be seen by its double digit organic growth in the fast year.

Management have in place detailed processes to ensure that all work is undertaken in accordance with the Code of Conduct

and Professional Ethics. Internal audits take place to identify any areas of non-compliance.

An open, candid and non-hierarchical culture is nurtured whereby all colleagues are expected to behave in accordance with the
internal processes in place.

The Group takes appropriate steps to protect its intellectual property rights. Corporate profile is a key pari of the Boards strategy
and external public relations advisers are engaged to assist where necessary.

The Groups systems are supported by appropriately qualified and experienced individuals and third parties. External expert advice
and support is sought when necessary. Critical systems fail over and recovery are regularly tested and no issues have been identified.
The Group liaise regularly with their key suppliers to continue to develop and improve the Operating Systems utilised by the Group.

Knights® Information Security Awareness fraining helps colleagues to identify and prevent fraudvmisuse of information and this training
is regularly updated to ensure that where certain risks are increased as a result of environmental factors (such as cybercrime in light
of COVID-19}, the business and colieagues are aware of any heightened risk. Beyond training Knights’ candid culture and team ethos
delivers a supportive high communication environment which ensures colleagues can ask questions and be guided as required.

This strategic report and the information referred to herein was approved on behalf of the board on 21 July 2020.

Kate Lewis
Chief Financial Officer
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Board of Directors

David Beech

Chief Executive Officer

Acorporate iawyer and former manager of a
private equity fund, David joined Knights in 2011
with the vision to transform the business into
the UK's numier ore iegal and professionat
services business outside London.

David acquired and remodelied Knights in 2012
with & clear strategy to transform the business
into a growth platform. Knights became a
pianeer in the UK legal sector being one of

the first law firms to secure external funding

in 2012 to fully corporatise the business and
create a clear separation between ownership/
management and partners.

Richard King
Chief Operating Officer

Richard has extensive experience of
fransforming cperating models, imegrating
acquisitions and expioiting technology to scale-
up and deliver operational efficiency in large
enterprises such as Procter & Gamble, Sheli
and a B2B cloud services start-up (Transora).

Previously, Richard was European
Gommercial Capabilities Director at Procter
& Gamble, He joined Knights 2s COQ

in January 2019, oversesing the scale-up
cf the oparating backbone and increased
use of technology to improve service quality
and operating efficiency.

Kate Lewis
Chief Financial Officer

Kate qualified as a Chartered Accountant

and has been a mermber of the ICAEW since
1986 having trained as an accountant at Dean
Stathamn. Kate spent aver 10 years as an Audit
Manager at Baker Tilly and KPMG.

Kate joined Knighis in 2012 as Finance Director,
overseeing the Knights' corporatisation and
subsequent refinancing with both Allied Irish
Bank and Permira and the IPO in June 2018.
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Balbinder (Bal) Johal

Non-Executive Chairman

Bal is CEC of MML Capital Partners,

an international private equity firm based

in London, New Yark, Paris and Dublirt.

Bal has led a number of investments for
MML including investments into CSI Ltd,
PIE/PSG Group, Banner Group, Arena Group
{(now plc), Clean Linen & Workwear, Instant
Offices, Optionis Group, ParkingEye and
The Regard Partnership and worked on others
including Vanguard, FiC and Redmill Snack
Foods. Bal is a Director on the Board of
most of these cornpanies.

Prior to MML, Bal was Investment Director

at 3i leading a range of high-profile investments
such as SmartStream, Jungle.com, Workplace
Systems pic, Telecity, Complete Care and
Recognition. Bal started his career as a
Management Consultant with Accenture later
working as a Financial Analyst at HSBC.

Steve Dolton
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Steve qualified as a Chartered Accountant

and has been a member of the ICAEW since
1888 having qualified with Grant Thorntan.

He has spent over 20 years in senior financiat
roles including CFO of NAHL plc, NSL Services
Group, Azzurri Communications, Safety Kleen
Europe, Walker Dickson Group and Peek plc
(including a 2 year period in Asia as

Regional Controller).

He is also currently Chairman of the Go Inspire

Group and Total Managed Document Solutions
Limited was previously a Non-Executive Director
of Oxford United Football Club until its sale

in February 2018.

Steve is Chair of the Audit Committee and
sits on the Remuneration Committee.

Jane Pateman
Non-Executive Director

Jane brings over 20 years’ experience

in senior HA roles at listed businesses
including Centrica and British Gas, and
cuiminating in her current role as Group HR
Director at Biffa plc where she is responsible
for developing the Pecple Strategy for
approximately 8,000 employees across

4 operating divisions.

Jane has a strang track record in driving
business benefits through the davelopment
and delivery of human capital strategies.
During her 10 years at Biffa, she has provided
significant support in delivering solutions
during major growth periods, including during
its IPO as well as driving people and cultural
integration for the multiple acquisitions Biffa
has made over the past 5 years.

Jane chairs the Remuneration Committee

and has taken responsibility for overseeing
the Knights ESG strategy. She also sits on
the Audit Committee.
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Chairman’s Introduction

The Board recognises the importance of high standards of
corpordte governance os the basis for promoting long-term
growth for the benefit of all of the Group's stakeholders.

As Chairman, | am responsible for leading The underlying principle of the QCA Code
the Board to ensure that it has in place the is ta "ensure the company is managed in
strategy, people, structure and cuture an efficient, effactive and entreprenetirial
ta deliver value to its stakeholders, and for manner for the benefit of all shareholders
ansuring that the governance arvangements over the longer term”, As a Board, we are
that the Group has in place are proportionate committed to providing the leadership

and appropriate for the size and the reguired to ensure that the culture that is
constitution of the Board and the complexity so integrat to the success of the business
ot the business. In accordance with the AlM is embedded within the business and work

tules the Group has elected to comply with the  hard to engage with employaes and ather
principles set out in the Corperate Governance  key stakeholders to ensure that this healthy

Code for small and mid-sized companies corporate culture continues to be delivered
published by the Quoted Companies Alliance through open and honest dialogue and we

in April 2018 {the QCA Code) as the basis of are delighted to set out below how we comply
its governance framework. with the QCA Cade.

The QCA Cotporate Governance Code

The Board has adopted the QCA Code. Set out below is how the Board currently complies with the key principles set out in the code.

Governance principie Compliant Explanation Further reading
Establish a strategy and Quir strategy is to be the leading legal and professional See pages 16-17
business mode! which \/ services business outside London and we aim to achieve

promotes long-term value this through:

tor shareholders

B organic growth which in particular includes;

B attracting new taient (be that individuals or teams) wishing
to be part of a progressive legal services business;

roli-out of new offices into target regionat locations;
outsourcing from pational and international firms;

increasing productivity through better use of IT;

enhanced cross-selling through the addition of new service
lines within the existing business; and

B acquisitive growth by continuing to acquire legal teams
or firms offering geographic expansian inta attractive
new regional Markets for Knights, and to further expand
offerings in existing regional locations.

Seek to understand and The CEQ and GFQ communicate regularly with shareholders, www knightsple.

meet sharehotder needs \/ investors and analysts, inciuding at our half-yearly and fuil year  comvinvestors/

and expectations results roadshows. The full Board is available at the Annual corporate-
General Meating {(AGM" to communicate with shareholders. governance

Take into account Agide from our shareholders, our clients, employees, suppliers, See pages 61-62

wider stakeholder and \/ and regulators are our mast important stakeholders. We engage

social responsibilities with these communities via regular communications i our

and their implications day-to-day activities, and via formal feedback requests. We also

for long-term success understand the importance that we can play in giving back

to our communities and cur ESG report refers to the role that
we piay in this regard.
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Governance principle

Embed effective risk
management, considering
both opportunities and
threats, throughout the
organisation

Maintain the Board
as a well-functioning,
balanced team led
by the Chair

Ensure that between
them the Directors
have the necessary
up-to-date experience,
skills and capabilities

Evaluate Board performance
based on clear and

relevant objectives, seeking
continuous improvement

Promote a corporate culture
that is based on ethical
values and behaviours

Maintain governance
structures and processes
that are fit for purpose and
support good decision-
making by the Board

Communicate how the
Company is governed

and is performing by
maintaining a dialogue
with shareholders and
other relevant stakeholders

Corporate Governance

Compliant

v

Explanation

The Board considers risk to the business at each Board
meeting and via its standing committees: the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Disclosure Committee.

Both the Board and senior managers are responsible for
reviewing and evaluating risk and the Executive Directors
meet at least monthly to review ongoing trading performance,
discuss budgets, forecasts and new risks associated with
ongoing changing trading.

The Board has three established Committees for Audit

and Remuneration and Disclosure. The compaosition and
experience of the Board is reviewed regutarly by the Board,
with external advice where required as given the size and
compasition of the Board, the Board does not consider
that a Nominations Committes is required.

The Board is satisfied that its current composition includss
an appropriate balance of skills, experience and capabilities,
including experience of the recruitment, people management,
technology and funding requirements.

The Board reqgularly considers the effectivenass and relevance
of its contributions, any learning and development needs and
the level of scrutiny of the Senior Management Team but at this
stage has considered that internal review is sufficient given the
size of the Board. This will be kept under continuous review.

Being a regulated law firm the Group is focused on
progressing a strong ethical corpaorate culture. The Board
implements a policy of equal cpportunities in the recruitment
and engagement of empleyees during the course of their
employment and recognises the importance of honest

and open feedback at all times to facilitate the growth

of individuals and teams within the business.

The Group prides itself on its culture, and maintaining that
cuiture through consistent engagement with its staff which

is integral to the Group’s success. The Group achieves this
consistent messaging in a number of ways including: regular
meetings with team leaders to understand the issues that the
staff are facing, all staff calls, particularly during COVID-19

to ensure all staff are fully informed about key developments,
and a clear and collaborative management structure which
encourages engagement at ali levels.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic
direction and management and meet regularly to review,
formulate and approve the Group’s strategy, budgets,
corporate actions and cversee the Group’s progress
towards its goals. The Group has a set of Reserved Matters
for approval by the Board has been established and

is regutarly reviewed given the growth of the business.

The Group is committed to maintaining good cemmunication
and having constructive dialogue with its shareholders.
Regular institutional shareholder meetings and PCFM

days are held with the Chief Exacutive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer to discuss Company performance,
particularly following publication of the Group's interim

and full year results.

In addition a range of corporate information (including copies
of presentations and announcements, and an overview of
activities of the Group} is available on the Graup’s website,

Further reading

See pages 50-53

See pages 60-65

See pages 56-57

See page 61

See pages 28-34
and 40-41

See pages 60-61

www._knightsplc.
comv/investors
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Corporate Governance Statement

Board composition

The Beard camprises six Ditectors, three

of whom are Executive Directors and three
of whom are Non-Executive Directors,
reflecting a blend of different experiences
and backgrounds further details of which are
set out on pages 56-57. The Board believes
that the composition of the Beard brings a
desirable range of skills and experience in light
of the Group's challenges and opportunities
as a public company, while at the same time
ensuring that na individual {ar a small group
of individuals) can dominate the Board's
decision-making.

Whilst the Chairman has a considerable
length of service and previous interest

in the Group, it has been determined that in
terms of inerest, perspective and judgemem
he remains independent and is supported
by the two additional independent
Non-Executive Directors.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for delivering

the Group's sirategy and for its overal
management of the business and meets
regularly to review, formulate and approve
the Group's strategy, budgets, corporate
actions and to constructively challenge the
Executive Directors who are responsible for
the day-to-day running of the Group. The
operation of the Board s documentedin a
formal schedule of matters reserved for its
approval which is reviewed annually to ensure
that it remaina current in light of changes to
ledislation, the size and grawth af the Graup
and changes within the sector that the Group
operates within.

Name Board
Balbinder Johal 9/10
David Beech 10/10
Jane Patehan Q/ﬂj '
Kate Lewis 10/ 1(5
Richard Kéng 9/10 -
Steve Dolt;m 10710

Directars ara expectad to attend all meetings
of the Board and of the Committees on which
they sit, and to devote sufficient time to
enatle them to fulfil their rles as Directors.
In circumstances where Directors are unable
ta attend any meeting they are provided all
papers 10 be considered at that meeting and
rAn pravide any cuninénts in advance of any
meeting for consideration by the rest of the
Board, The tahle below details the Directors’
attendance at scheduied manthly Beard and
Committee meetings in the financial year
2019/2020:

Remuneration Audit
1/7 -

777 3/3
77 an

* Buring the year additional meetings were held principally to approve the terms of the acquisitions undertaken within the

patiod, the placing and the refinancing.

In addition to the scheduled meetings the
Board holds pericdic strategy days to review
the strategic pricrities and growth cppertunities
for the business. The next strategy day is
expected to be scheduled once the effects

af the COVID-19 pandemic are claater, as the
evolving nature of the situation may present
additional opportunities in the short and
medium-term strategy adopted by the Board.

The Company Secretary supports the Beard
with cornpliance and governance matters
and ensures that all Directors are aware of
their right to have any concerns minuted, to
ask questicns regarding ongoing governance
reduiremeants and to seek independent advice
at the Group’s expense where appropriate.

Committees

The Group has established an audit committee
{the Audit Comimittes) and a remuneration
committee (the Remuneration Committee)

with formally delegated duties, autharity, and
responsibifities, and written terms of reference.
These terms of reference are kept under review
o ensure that they remain appropriate and
compliant with changes to legislation.

Each Committee is comprised of the Non-
Executive Directors {exciuding the Chair) with
Stephen Dolton chairing the Audit Commitiee
and Jane Pateman chairing the Remuneration
Committee. Each Committee has unrestricted
access to employees of the business or external
advisors to meetings, 1o the extent that they
consider it necessary in relation to any specific
matter under consideration. Both Cornmittees
have sought to utilise external advice with the
Remuneration Committee fiaising with FIT
Remuneration Consultants LLP for the purposes
of advising on the terms of the pedormance
share awards granted to certain PDMRs within
the business, and the Audit Committes mesting
with RSM, the Group’s auditors, both with and
without the presence of Executive Directors.

B0

The Group has elected not to constitute

a dedicated nomination committee, instead
retaining such decision-making with the

Beard as a whole given the size and nature

of the Board compositicn. The Board has
used external advisors to introduce any othar
individuals with skitis that the Board befieve may
be required in delivering its overall strategy and
this was how Jane Pateman was identified to
act as Non-Executive Director in January 2019.

Remuneration Commitiee

The Remuneration Committee
is rasponsible for:

P reviewing the performance of the Executive
Directors and making recommendations
to the Board an matters relating to their
employment and remuneration; and

B the granting of share options under the
Group's Omnibus Plan or any other share
scheme which it may adopt.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible for:

B ensuring the financial performance of
the Group is properly reported on; and

B monitoring the internal controls
of the business.

Each of the Commitiees meets regularly and
at least twice a year and the Chief Financial
Officer also attends meetings of the Audit
Committes by invitation to discuss any
matters of relevance. Details of the reports
of the Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committes can be found on pages 62-63
and 64-65 respectively of this Repon.

The Board has also constituted a disclosure
committes (the Disclosure Committee) to
enforce the Knights Group's inside information
policy and ensure compliance with the Market
Abuse Regulation (MAR) and the AM Rules for
Camparties in respect of insida information.



Strategic Report

Board effectiveness and culture

The Board considers the evaluation of its
performance to be an integral part of corporate
governance to ensure it has the necessary
skills, experience and abilities to fulfif its
responsibilities. The internal evaluation process
undertaken seeks to identify and address
opportunities for improving the performance
of the Board and to solicit honest, genuine and
constructive feedback. The Board considers
the evaluation process is best carried out
internally at this stage of the Company’s
development however his decision shalt

be kept under review.

In undertaking its internal review

process in particutar the following matters
are reviewed at least annually or more
frequently should the need arise:

B the Beard’s composition in terms
of skills, expetience and balancs;

B the independence of the
Non-Execulive Directors;

Board operational effectiveness
and decision-making;

conduct of meetings and effective
sharing of information and communication
amongst the members of the Board,

engagement with sharehalders and
ather stakeholders:

B Director contribution; and

B the Board's strategy and its implementation,

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the
process is appropriate for the business’ needs,
and deals with matters raised throughout

such periodic review processes to ensure

that constructive feedback is provided and

if required external support can be made
available in respect of any areas that may
require improvement.

The Board carries a breadth of experience

in sectors outside of the legal services market
with strengths aligned with enhancing Knights
culture. Following the evaluation undertaken
during the financia! year 2019/2020, the

Beard is satisfied that it has g good balance
of experience and skitls allowing for both
collaborative working and robust challenge.

Internal controls and risk management

The Group has implemented policies
on internal control and corporate
governance. These have been prepared
in crder to ensure that:

B proper business records are maintained
and reported on, which might reasonably
affect the conduct of the business;

B monitoring procedures for the performance
of the Group are presented to the Board at
regular intervats;

Cotporate Governance

budget proposals are submitted to the
Board no later than one month before the
start of each financial year albeit this policy
has been adapted during the COVID-19
pancdemic given the evolving impact of the
pandemic on the economy;

accounting policies and practices suitable
for the Group’s activities are followed in
preparing the financial statements;

the Group is provided with general
accounting, administrative and secretarial
services as may reasonably be required; and

interim and annual accounts are prepared
and submitted in time to enakie the Group
to meet statutory filing deadlines.

The Group continues to review its system

of internal control to ensure compliance with
best practice, whilst also having regard to
its size and the resources available. Details
of the Group's principal risks and how thase
are addressed can be found on pages 53-53
of this Report.

As might be expected in a business such

as Knights, a key control in the business is

the day-to-day supervision by the Executive
Directors supported by the senior management
team who maintain responsikility for key

areas of the operations. The adequacy of the
systems for internal controls is also reviewed
by the Audit Committee on an annual basis
and compliance issues are discussed at each
Board meeting in order to ensure that any risks
arising in a changing and evolving envirsnment
can be mitigated and/er eliminated.

Relations with stakeholders

The Board is aware that the long-term
success of the Group is reliant upon its
employees, clients, shareholders, suppliers,
communities and regulators. As such the
Group is cammitted to building a sustainable
business that enabfes all its stakeholders to
thrive: minimising the Group's impact on the
environment, looking after employees and
communities and operating ethically with the
highest levels of governance 1o ensure that the
Group's continued growth in accerdance with
its strategy reflects its stakeholders needs and
expectations as well as those of the Group.

In order to achieve these aims the Group's
senior management teams maintain regular
communications with colleagues and
encourage them to share feedback and

ta allow the candid flexible culture to thrive.
The level of communication with employees
has only increased during the COVID-19
situation with senior management hosting
regular calis with team leaders, the CEO
holding several ‘all employees’ meetings,
during which 75% of the time was dedicated
to Q&A and questions being answered
candidly in the moment. These sessions
had over 80% participation with over 200
questions answered.

fFinancial Staiements

The Group alse encourages regular feedback
from its clients and tracks its net promoter
scere to indicate the willingness of clients to
recommend the Group’s services. Based on
client respanses in the week comimencing the
Group's net promoter score was cut of which
is considered above average amongst its peer
group. The Group endeavors to ensure that
clients are met with regularly 1o canvas their
apinion on the service levels received and to
allow them to provide any feedback as to how
these relationships and/or services can be
improved. The Group has a strong track record
of retaining deep client relationships with some
of these relaticnships remaining in place for in
excess of 2b years across a number of service
lines provided within the Group’s business.

The Group’s business places a strong
reliance on technotogy and consequently
the Group works closely with its practice
management system provider to enhance
the practice management platform for the
benefit of the Group which in turn benefits
cur suppliers’ technelogy.

The Group maintains regular dialogue with

its regulator, the Soliciters Regulatory Adthority
(SRA) given its acquisitive nature and this
constant fransparent communication has
enabled the Group 1o deliver 6 acquisitions
within the financial year.

The Board is proud of the progress it has
made in enhancing the sustainability of its
cperations and in the current financial year
has appeinted Jane Paterman as its Director
with overall responsibility for Environmental,
Social and Governance strategy. Further
details of the steps that Knights has taken
to ensure it can uphold these principles are
detailed on page 29 of this report.

The Executive Directors meet with the
institutional shareholders both on an ad

hoe basis and on a more structured basis
around the publication of the Group’s interim
and end of year results. General information
abouwt the Group is available on the website
at www.knightsplc.com but both the Chair
and Stephen Dolton as Senior Independent
Director are available to discuss any matter
any shareholder may wish to raise if required.

Annual General Meeting (AGM}

The AGM of the Group
will take place on the
21st September 2020.




. the year ended 30 Aprrl 2020

i The Fiemuneranon Comm;ttee comp $ me as Chatr ofthe Cemm oo and Steva Dolton is the -

Remuneration Committee Report

" 'E':'Dear Shareholder, £

“1am pleased to present. the Durectors Remuneratt n Report for

otfver curmenit member of thie! Committes: We are bmh independent Nof\-Executwa Directors. -/

The Remiineration Committes continlies fo consider how bestto respcrnd to the' um.ertamty created |

. by COVID-19. As announced on 26 March 2020, all Boand members’ salaries have been temporarily. -
- radiiced by 30% and the saiarigs of all staff whose sslaries are. £3 000 or more have beén

ternporatily reduced by 10% {or to 5;‘3{3 0(!0 where the reductmn ‘would! take them below 230 BOO)

with eﬂect from 1 April 2020

. Jane Pateman Chair of the Remunerahon Commltt _

Responsibilities

The Remuneration Committee reviews the performance of the Executive
Directors and makes recommendations to the Board on matters

relating 1o their remuneration and terms of service. The Remuneration
Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on proposals

for the granting of share options and other equity incentives pursuant

tc any ernployee share option scheme or equity incentive plans in
operation fram time to time. During the year this included the grant of
options to employees as part of the Group's Save As You Earn {'SAYE")
share option scheme for 2020.

The Remuneration Commitiee mests as and when necessary and
met 7 times during the year.

Our performance and link to remuneration

As summarisad in the Chairman’s Statement on page 8, the Group
continued to grow both arganically and through targeted acquisitions
over the year. The Group performed well with a strong financial
performance continuing up unti! the last month of the financial year
where the impact of COVID-19 did result in some disruption to activity.

As disclosed |ast year an annual bonus arrangement was introduced
for Richard King for the 30 April 2020 financial year with a maximum
opportunity of 35% of salary based on an underlying EBITDA
performance range set at the beginning of the year. The EBITDA, for
the year was below the threshold range and thercfore ne annuat bonus
is payable.

Executive Director remuneration

Each of the Executive Directors has a service agreesment with the Group.
Each service contract may be terminated by either party serving six
romths’ written notice. At its discretion, the Group may make a payment
in liew of such notice or place the Execiiive Director on garden teave.
The service contracts also contain provisions for early termnination in

the event of various scenariog and contain typical restrictive covenants.

The key remuneration componemns of executive packages are
summarised as follows:

Base salary: The saiary of an Executive Director will be reviewed
annually by the Rernuneration Committee without any abligation

1o increase such salary. The current base salaries are shown below.
As noted above these salaries have been temporarily raduced by
30% with effect from 1 Aprit 2020:

- David Beech: £250,000 {effective from 1 August 2018). As outlined
in the Admission Document, it was recognised that a market-standard
salary for an equivalent CEQ of an AIM fisted company with a simitar
market capital of the Group is £250,000 (reference satary’) and that
this salary wouki become payable whan the Remuneration Committee
agreed that it had becorme appropriate for the Group to do so.
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In exercising their role, the Remuneration Committee has regard to the
recommendations put forward in the QCA Code and, where appropriate,
the QCA Remuneration Committee Guide and associated guidance.

During the year FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP (FIT) provided
the Committee with external remuneration advice, including on

all aspects of remuneration policy for the Executive Directors. The
Hemuneration Committee is satisfied that the advice received was
objective and independent. FIT is 2 member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and the voluntary code of conduct of that body
is designed to ensure that objective and independent advice is given
to Remuneration Committees.

Minimum Maximum
o treshold ™9 hreshola AN
EBITOA £m) 18.24 19.2 202 18.00
% Payable 25% 75% 1049 0%

Kate Lewis was entitled 10 be issued with a Restricted Stock Award
subject to the Group meeting an underlying EBITDA threshold for
the 30 April 2024 financial year. Although this performance thrashold
was met, Ms Lewis requested the award not be mads in light of the
COVID-19 reiated cost savings being operated across the Group.

No long-term incentives were granted to Executive Directars or vested
during the year.

The Remuneration Committes determined that Group performance
warranted the increase to the reference salary.

- Kate Lewis: £175,000 {effective from 1 March 2020). The salary
of the Chief Financial Officer was increased from £140,000 during
the year. The Remuneration Committee recognised that this was
a significant increase in percentage terms but was determined to be
appropriate considering both performance and external market data.

- Bichard King: £200,000 (sffective from 1st August 2019). The salary
of the COO was increased from £175,000 during the year to reflect
performance and external market benchmarks

Pension and benefits: Ancillary benefits include the reimbursermnent
of all reasonable and authorised out of pocket expenses, provision
of a private healthcare cover up to £2,000 and 2x salary life cover.
The Group also contributes to pension plans or as an additional
cash supplement in respect of the Executive Dirgctors at a rate of
3% in line with the automatic enrolment guidelines and which mirrers
the conlribution across all employees, positioned competitively

to the market in which the Group operates.
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Annual bonus: A plan was operated for Richard King [or the

30 April 2020 financial year with a maximum cpportunity of 35%

of salary with performance criteria based on profit-based targets as
set by the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
intends to agree a similar plan for the 30 April 2021 financial year with
targets to be set once the full implications of COVID-18 are understood.

A discretionary share plan, the Omnibus Plan: Share-based
awards may be granted in 3 forms as considered appropriate by the
Remuneration Committee:

- Restricted Stock Awards: Awards granted in the form of nil

or nominal cost share options, subject to time-based vesting
requirements and continued employment within the Group.
No performance canditions will apply to Restricted Stock Awards.

- Performance Share Awards: Awards granted in the form
of nil or nominal cost share opticns, whereby vesting is subject
to satisfaction of performance conditions and continued
employment within the Group.
Share Options: Awards granted in the form of a share option with
an exercise price equal to the market value of an Ordinary Share at
the time of grant, subject to continued employment within the Group.
Share options may or may not be subject to performance conditions.

The intention is to grant Performance Share Awards to Richard
King and Kate Lewis in July 2020 with EPS performance conditions
attached. The Remuneration Committee has determined that the
unprecedented COVID-19 circumstances means it will be unable
to set robust targets until later in the year and intends to set such
EPS targets within 6 months of the date of grant.

Non-Executive Directors

Bal Johal, was appointed Non-Executive
Chairman of the Group by letter of appointment
dated 1 June 2018. The appointment is subject
to re-election at the Annual General Meeting and
thereafter is terminable on 3 months’ notice by
either the Group or Bal. The annual fee payable
to the Chairman increased frorm £50,000 to
£60,000 with effect from 1 February 2020.

The other Non-Executive Directors were
appointed subject to re-election at the Annual
General Meeting and are terminable on one
manths’ notice by either party.

The current fee payabie for services as

Directors’ emoiuments

a Non-Executive Director was unchangsd
throughout the year at £40,000 with an
additional £10,000 payable to the senior
independent Non-Executive Director with
effect from 1 February 2620.

As noted above these fees have been
temporarily reduced by 30% with effect
fram 1 April 2020.

Asitis listed on AIM, the Group is not required
to provide all of the informaticn included

in this Report. Howsver, in the interests of
transparency this has been included as a
voluntary disclosure. The Report is unaudited.

| do hope that this Report clearly explains

our approach to remuneration and epables you
to appreciate how it underpins our business
growth strategy.

A KA

—_—

Jane Pateman
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 July 2020

Fees/ Benefits Bonus LTP Pension 2020 Total 2019 Total
basic salary
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Executive Directors
David Beech 231 - - - - 23 143
Kate Lewis 141 - - - 145 126
Richard King' 189 2 - - 6 197 83
Non-Executive Directors
Balbinder Johal 51 - - - - 51 43
Steve Dolton? 45 - - - - 45 41
Jane Pateman® 39 - - - - 39 13
Aggregate 708 448
Note
" Richard King was appaointed a Non-Executive Director of the Group on 1 June 2018 and subsequently appointed Chiaf Oparating Officer on 15 January 2019
¢  Steve Dolton was appointed a Non-Executive Director of the Group on 1 June 2018
*  Jane Pateman was appainted a Non-Executive Diractor of the Group on 15 January 2019
Long-term incentives

Type cf award Date of grant Number Exercise price Fair value Performance Vesting date

of shares per share atgrant conditions

Kate Lewis Restricted 29 June 2018 241,379 £0.002 350.000  N/A June 2021

Stock Award
Richard King Performance 29 March 2019 63,352 £0.002 183.75° EPS? July 2022

Share Award
Note

' Based on IPO price of £1.45

?  Based on 3-day average share price of £2.900482

3 3-year perfarmance period with vesting dependent on adjusted EPS perfermance in financial year 30 Agril 2022 EPS. 26% vesting for EPS of 20p and Increasing
on a straight-line basis to 100% vesting for EPS of 25p
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Audit Committee Repo

e o

Membrers of the Audit Committee and attendance

The Committee consists of two independent Non-Executive
Directors: myself (as Chair) and Jane Pateman. Kate Lewis,
the Chief Financial Officer and other Executive Directors may
attend the Committee meetings by invitation.

Duties
The main duties of the Audit Committee during the year included:

1 Monitoring the integrity of financial statements
The Cammittas reviewed hoth tha intarim and the annual finansial

statemments as well as related results anncuncements mads as
part of their disclosure. This process included a review of any
judgements made in preparing the results, ensuring sufficient
attentior was given to matters where significant estimation
was involved. This includes revenue recognition, accounting for
acquisitions and the use of alternative performance measures
which are used to enhance shareholders understanding of the
Group's financial parformance.

In consideration of the sigrificant accounting judgements used,
the Committee reviewed the recommeridations of the Chief
Financial Officer and received reports from RSM on their findings.

These judgements are as follows:

- Revenue recognition policy
The Group recognises revenue on legal and professionai
services provided based on the methodalogy set out
in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
There is estimation invalved in establishing the value that
will eventually be recovered on all of its contracts.

Management use the expected cutcomes as at the period
end to establish the estimated value and compare to historic
outcomes to ensure reasonableness. Estimates are updated
as work progresses and any changes in revenue recognition
as a result of a change in circumstances is recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income for that year. In relation to
any contingent matters, where the kelihood of success is less
than highly probable, the value recognised in contract assets
is further reduced to refigct this uncertainty. The Committee
considers that the approach adopted by management is
prudent and minimises the risk of overstatement of income
rasuiting in future revenue write-offs.
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The Committee met three times during the period and attendance

of the members is shawn on page 60 of the Carporate Governance
Heport. The Committee has also held discussions with RSM, without
Executive Directors being present 1o discuss any issues arising from
their audit work. Neither the Group nor its Directors have any
relationships that impair the external auditor’s independence,

- Accounting for acquisitions
During the year the Group made six acquisitions, Accounting
for these acquisitions involves significant judgement to
determine the allocation of purchase price, the treatment
of deferred consideration, assessment of the requirement
for any fair value adjustments, identification and valuation of
the intangible assets arising, and estimation of the useful lives
of these assets. Having reviewed roanagement’s approach
and the resulting accounting treatment, the Committee is
satisfied that the approach adopted is reasonable and fairly
represents the underlying transactions.

- Use of alternative performance measuwes
The Board uses a number of alternative periormance rneasures
to assess business performance. The key driver for revenue
is the number of fee earners employed by the Group and as
a result the Board uses measures based on underlying profit
before tax, fee earner numbers, ratios and fees generated
by fee earners. Ancther key focus tor the Beard is management
of its net debt position. The Board uses cash conversion and
lock up days to closely monitor these key drivers of the net
debt position.

The Audit Committee is satisfied that these are
appropriate measures to use as they monitor the inputs
that underpin the trading and cash performance of the
Graup, These measures are discussed in more detail

in the CFO's Review on pages 42-49.
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Risk management and internal controls

As described on page 39 of the Strategic Report and

page 61 of the Corporate Governance Statement, the Board has
established a framework of risk management and internal control
systems, policies and procedures. The Committee is responsible
for reviewing the risk management and internal control framework,
ansuring that it operates effectively. The Committee is satisfied
that the internal controls currantly in place are sufficient and
operating effectively for a business of this size.

At present the Group does not have an internal audit function
and the Committee beliaves thal in view of tho current size and
nature of the Group’s business, management is able to derive
sufficient assurance as to the adequacy and effectiveness

of the internal conirols and risk management procedures without
a formal internal audit function. This will be kept under review

as the business evolves.

Changes to accounting policies

During the year the Group has adopted one new accounting
standard namely IFRS 18, Leases. The implementation of this
standard involved judgements on the appropriate interest rates
to be used.

The Committee has reviewed the implementation of this
accounting standard and has reviewed the external auditors
assessment on its application.

Reviewing the extent of non-audit services provided by RSM
The Committee monitors the provision of non-audit services by
RSM to ensure this has no impact on their independence.

A breakdown of the fees between audit and non-audit services s
provided in note 15 to the financial staterments. The non-audit fees
are not significant and relate mainly to independent tax advice.

Overseeing the relationship with RSM

The Committee considers a number of areas when reviewing
the external auditor relationship, namely their performance
in discharging the audit, the scope of the audit and terms

of engagement, their independence and abjectivity

and remuneration.

The external auditor prepares a plan for its audit of the full year
financial statements which is presented to the Committee before
the commencement of the audit.

The plan sets out the scope of the audit, areas of perceived
significant risk where work will be focused, the audit timetable

Application of IFRSs, and new and forthcoming standards
There are no significant IFRS’s yet to be adopted that the
Committee expects to be relevant or have a significant impact
on the financial statements.

Impact of COVID-19 and Going Concern

Given the pandemic that arose during the year the Commitiee
has paid particular attention to the disclosures made in the
accounts in relation to Going concern. The Committee has
reviewed management’s approach to assess the potential impact
of on the business. The Going concern assessment focuses an
the Group's ability to meet its debts as they fall due and being
able to operate within its banking facility. The Committee has
considered the following:

- The Group’s current Revolving Credit Facility of £40m
available until June 2023. At the time of writing this has
£24m of undrawn availability.

- The mitigating actions and cost cutting exercises already
undertaken by management.

- The range of possible scenarios modelled by management
and the impact these have on resulting financial forecasts.

The Committee is satisfied with the application of IFRS 16 in
the financial statements.

The Committee is satisfied that there are no other changes in
accounting policies impacting the reported results for the year.

This work was conducted by individuals independent of the audit
team and therefore the Commitiee are satisfied the provision

of thase non-audit services does not impact the independence
of the audit team.

and any proposed remuneration. This plan is reviewed and
agreed by the Committee in advance of the detailed audit work
taking place.

Following its external audit process, RSM presented its findings
to the Committee for discussion. No major areas of concern were
identified by RSM during the year.

The Committee has confirmed that #t is satisfied with the
independence, objectivity and effectiveness of RSM UK Audit
LLP and has recornmended to the Board that the auditors be
reappointed. There will be a resolution to reappoeint the auditors
at the forthcoming AGM.

The Committee is satisfied that the Group would have
sufficient liguidity ta meet its liabllities as they fall due and
that the disclosures included in the accounts on page BG
on Going Concern and the impact of the COVID-18
pandemic are reascnable.

Steve Dolton
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 July 2020
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Directors’' Report

Annual Report and Accounts 2020

The Directors have pleasure in

submitting their report and the
financial statements of Knights
Group Holdings plc.

Principal activities and business raview

The principal activity of the Group is that of the provisian of egal

and professional services. The principal activity of the Company is

that of a holding company. The results for the year and the financial
pasition of the Group are disclosed in the detailed financiai statements
inclucied on pages 71-121. A review of the performance of the business
during the year and potential future developments is included in the
Chairnran’s report, GEQ's repaort and the financial review,

Dividends

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the resultant uncertainty of the
effects on the UK economy the Board has decided that it would not
be prudent to propose a final dividend at this time., The decision will
be reviewed before the AGM when there is more visibility of the tikely
economic impact. An internm dividend of 1.10p per share was paid
on 16 March 2020.

Fusture developments

The Board plans to continue to invest in technology, recruitment and
acquisitions within both the legal and non-legal sectors to support the
Group’s strategy of becoming the leading legal and professional services
business outside London. Further details of the Group's future strategy
can be found in the Strategic Report on pages 18-17.

Post balance sheet events

As at the date of signing the accounts, other than the consideration
of the potential impact of the COVID-19 pandemic that is discussed
in the Going Concern section, there are no significant Post Balance
Sheets Events that require any further disclosure.
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Directars and their [nterest in the shares of the parent company

The following Oiractors have held offise since 1 May 2018.

Name Number of shares %
DA Beech 32,500,000 39.60
KL Lewis 2,820 -
RA King 105,460 0.13
BS Johat 510,000 0.62
S Dolton 74,999 Q.09
J Pateman 10,000 oKzl

Director's remuneration payatile in the year ended 30 April 2020 is set
out in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 62-63.

Substantial shareholdings

As far as the Directors are aware the only noiifiable holdings equal
1o or in excess of 3% of the total issued share capital as at 30 April 2020
were as detailed below:

Name Number of shares %
David Beech 32,500,000 39.60
Merian Globa) investors 5,965,940 B.4%
Canaccord Genuity Wealth 5,186,475 6.32
Management {inst)

Kames Capita! 3,537,731 4.31
invesco 2,764,012 3.37

Directors’ indemnity provisions

During the period, and up to the date of approval of the financial
statements, the Group purchased and maintained Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance fer all of the Directors and Officers to indemnify them
from any losses that may arise in connection with the execution of their
duties and responsibilities to the extent permitted by the Companies
Act 2008.

Risk management

The Board manages financial risk on an angoing basis. The key
financia risks retating 1o the Group are discussed in more detail
in note 32 to the financial statements.

The Group's other principal risks and uncertainties are outlined
in the Strategic Report.
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Political donations

The Group has not made any political donations.

Disabled persons

The Group cperates an equal opportunities employment policy.

The Group will employ disabled persons where they appear to be
suitable for a particular vacancy and every effort is made to ensure
that all candidates are given full coansideration when any vacancies
arise within the business. Should any employee become disabled
during their employment full training will be provided and relevant
adaptations to their working environment made, where possible,

to ensure that they can continue their employment within the Group.
The Group works with all employees to ensure that their working
environment is appropriate and to ensure that all employees are
provided with sufficient training, development and support to enable
them to develop to their full potential.

Employee consultation

The Group places corsiderable value on the involverment of its
employees in the future success of the Group. Although the overall
strategic direction of the Group is managed by the Board, the Group
manages its day-to-day operations with the assistance of its central
management team. Local supervisicn is provided in each cffice by
the involvermant of office and team leaders who assist in ensuring a
common culture and working practice across the Group as a whole.

The management team regutarly lizise with all employees to ensure
they are fully aware of any key matters that impact the Group. As well
as regular informal meetings between management and employees,
the Group holds an annual conference where the strategy of the Group
is discussed through presentations and open discussion.

Further information on how the Group liaises with employees and
includes them in decision-making where relevant and encourages
participation in share schemes to enable them to share in the success
of the Group is included in the ESG report on page 28-38.

Engaging with stakeholders

The Directors have considered who the key stakehelders in the business
are and documented how they engage with each of these groups, noting
any key decisions made during the year. Details of this are included
within the $172 report on page 39.

Going concern

Tha Group and Company financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis as the Directors have a reasonable expectation that
the Group has adequate resocurces to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. The Group is strongly cash generative and as at
the end of the financial year had headroom of aver £24m within its current
debt facilities.

The Group’s forecasts show that the Group has sufficient rescurces
for both current and anticipated cash requirerments. In the period since
the COVID-19 pandemic broke, the Group has seen a meaningful
decline in the number of new instructions. The Group moved quickly
to implement a number of cost saving and efficiency measuras to
make sure it was best placed to deal with the uncertainty arising from
the pandemic and continues to menitor the level of new business

and costs on a weekly basis.

Although the impact of the pandemic appears to be reducing, the
situation is ongoing and the long-term outcome of this and the impact
on the wider economy and hence the Group’s business and clients is
stifl unknown. This makes it difficult to assess the impact on the Group
and Company’s future trading with any certainty.

The Directars have therefore modelled a number of scenarios, some
of which are much warse than the Directors anticipate the most likely
outcome for the Group. Under all circumstances the Group remains
profitable and operates within its current available banking facilities
with ne breach of covenants for the foreseeable future.

Auditor

Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this
Annual Report confirms that:

B So far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the Company's auditor is unaware.

B The Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
1aken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit information and tc establish that the Company's
auditor is aware of that information.

This canfirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of 418 of the Companies Act 2006.

RSM UK Audit LLP have expressed their willingness to continue
in office as auditor and a resolution to reappeint them will be
proposed at the forthcoming Annuaf General Meeting.

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board of Directors
on 21 July 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

JQ bWlei s

Kate Lewis
Chief Financlal Officer
2t July 2020
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for
preparing the Strategic Report and
the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Comnpany faw requires the Directors to prepare Group and Company
financial staternents for each financial year. The Directors are required
by the AM Rules of the Londen Stock Exchange o prepare Group
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS'} as adopted by the European Union (EU" and

have elected under company law to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and
applicable law} including FRS101 Reduced disclosure Framework.

The Group's financial staternents are required by law and (FRS
adopted by the EU 1o present fairly the financial position and the
financial performance of the Group, The Companies Act 2006 provides
in refation to such financial statements that references in the relevant
part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are
references to their achieving a fair presentation,

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless thay are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Campany and of
the profit or toss of the Group for that period.
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In preparing each of the Group and Gompany financial statements,
the Directors are required to:

a se!ect su\tame accoummg pohc;es and then apply them consnstently,

b make Judgements and accounting EStlI’T‘Ial'ES that are reasonable
and prudent

c. state whethar they have been prepared in accordance with IF RSs
adopted by the EU; and

d prepare the ﬂnanc;al staremems on the going cancern ba5|s unless
it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting

records that are sufficlent (o show and explain the Group’s and the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable dccuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and the Company and enable
thern to snsure that the financial staternents comply with the Companias
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for

the prevention and detection of fraud and other irreqularities,

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corperate and financial information included on the
Knights Group Holdings plc website.

Legislation in the United Kingdorm governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation
in other jurisdictions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Knights Group Holdings plc

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Knights Group Holdings plc {the ‘parent company') and its subsidiaries {the 'Group’) for the year ended
30 April 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, Conselidated and Company Statement of Financial Position,
Consolidated and Company Statement of Changes in Eguity, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial repaorting framework that has bheen applied in the preparation of the Group financial
staternents is applicable faw and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including Financia! Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion:

= the financiai statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 30 April 2020 and
of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

* the Group financial staternents have beeri properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

= the parent comparny financfal staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdem Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audht in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibiiities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsikifities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent

of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied to SME iisted entities and we have tulfillad our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit avidence we have obtained is suffictent and apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concermn

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you where:
» the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

= the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the
group's or the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a peried of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are autharised for issue.

Summary of our audit approach
Key audit matters - Group
e Valuation and recoverability of amounts recoverable on contracts and impact on revenue recognition

* Acquisition accounting and valuation of intangibles assets acquired

Key audit matters - Parent Company
* None identified

Materiality - Group

*  Qverall materiafity: £539,000 (2019: £500,000)

v Performance materiality: £404,000 (2019: £250,000)
Materiality - Parent Company

*  Overall materiality: £365,000 (2019: £85,000)

*  Performance materiality: £273,000 (2019: £32,500)

Scope
Our audit procedures covered 92.6% of revenue, 100% of net assets and 88.8% of profit before tax.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the Group financial statements

of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) we identified, including
those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allecation of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement
team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Group financial statements as a whcle, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matters.

Revenue recognition and contract assets
Key audit matter description

The Group's accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition is set cut in note 2.5. Note 4 sets out the critical judgements and estimates
applied by the Directors in relation to the valuations of unbilled contingent fee agreements and of amounts recoverable on contracts, which
may have a material effect on the amount of revenue recognised in the period, and note 5 to the financial statements gives detail on revenue.

There is a risk that revenue could be materially misstated due o recognising revenue in the wrong accounting period, or in the wrong amount.
Revenue is materially impacted by changes in the contract assets balance (amounis recoverable on contracts) which is subject t¢ judgemental
decisions by management. The Group has recognised revenue of £74.3million in respect of fees billed and accrued in the year, which consists
of a large number of relatively low value transactions.

Due to the large volume of transactions in the year there is a risk that not all of the matters in the year have been appropriately bilied. The Group’s

contract assets balance at the year end is £21.5million (see note 22). The contract assets are valued on a line by line {case by case} basis using an
estimated recovery rate at the period end. The process of valuing contract assets and, in particular, estimating recovery rates, is judgemental and

therefore considered to be a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in the audit
Cur response to the key audit matter included:

* assessing management’s revenue recognition policy for fixed fee arrangements, uncenditional fee-for-service arrangements, and variable
or contingent fee arrangements for compliance with IFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with customers

* assessing the reasonableness of the revenue figure in relation to fee-earner numbers and salary costs in comparison to prior financial years

s performing data analytics to test the revenue recognised by ensuring that the revenue transaction cycle was completed through to cash receipt
or inclusion in trade receivables

* comparing the current and prior year work in progress reccvery rates to the recovery rate achieved for the year ended 30 April 2020 for each
office (excluding those acquired in the year)

* comparing recovery rates used to estimate the value of contract assets at a month end during the financial year with subsequent actual
recovery rates on bills

« period-end cut off testing to ensure that contract assets and revenue had been recognised in the correct accounting periad

s reviewing the utilisation rates during the year for all staff and enguiring where these appeared to be unusually low tc test completeness
of the time being recorded to matters

* agreeing the recoverability of the balance of unbilled revenue to post year end billing and cash receipts, and where billing has not yet ocourred,
challenging fee-earners about the expected recovery, confirming unbilled revenue is recorded in the correct period and at the correct amount
and is supported by time costs incurred.

Acquisition accounting and valuation of intangible assets acquired

Key audit matter description

Refer to notes 2.4 (business combinations), 2.7 {goodwill) and 2.8 (intangible assets other than goodwill) which set out the accounting policies
in respect of business combinations and note 20 to the financial statements which gives details of the acquisitions made in the year.

During the year the Group made six acquisitions involving aggregate consideration of £35.9 million, including deferred consideration of £1.3 million
{note 20). Thare are significant intangible assets arising as a result of each acquisition, including geodwill of £13.3 million and customer relationships
of £11.1 million. The determination and allocation of the purchase price, the identification and valuation of the intangible assets arising, and the usetful
lives of these assets, particularly the customer relationships, involve the exercise of a significant degree of management judgement and is therefare
considered to be a key audit matter.
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Independent Auditor's Report continued

to the Members of Knights Group Holdings pic

How the matter was addressed in the audit

Our response to the key audit matter included:

= abtaining copies of purchase documentation and considering which party has contral, the date of acquisition, the date control
was cblained, the percentage acquired, the cansideration offered and details of any defarred consideration

» agreeing the amounts of consideration to cash amounts paid and the share consideration to share certificates issued and the market

price on issue

» confirming that the accounting treatment applied for each transaction is in accordance with relevant accounting standards

= reviewing and challenging the appropriateness of the assumptions used in the fair value calculations to value the custamer relationships
and agreeing these to supporting evidence, including the growth rate, custamer attrition rate and discount rate applied

* considering whether there are any other intangible assets which should be recognised as part of the fair value exercise

+ reviewing the useful life applied to customer lists and comparing this to historic cliem retention rates in the acquired businesses,
and considering ihe estimated remaining employment term for fee sarmers brought in with the acquisition

s canfirming that the disclosures made in raspect of each acquisition are in accordance with the relevant standard.

Qur application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we set certain threshelds which help us 10 determine the nature, tirming and extent of our
audit procedures. When evaluating whether the effects of misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whale,
could reasonably influenice the economic decisions of the users we take into account the qualitative nature and the size of the misstaternents.
Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality as follows:

Group Parent company
Overali materiality £539,000 (2018: £500,000) £365,000 (2019: £65,000)
Basis for determining overall materiality 3% of Adjusted EBITDA 0.5% of Net Assets

Rationaie for benchmark applied

The key metric used by management
and shareholders in assessing performance
of the Group is adjusted EBITDA.

The parent company does not trade;
its function is to hold investments in
the Group’s trading entities.

As a result the benchmark for this entity
is net assels.

Materiality in 2018 was calculated using
a blend of rates applied to income, profit
before tax and gross assets.

Performance materiality

£404,000 2019: £250,000)

£273,000 (2019: £32,500)

Basis for determining performance materiality

75% of overall materiality

759% of overall materiality

Reporting of misstatements
to the Audit Committee

Misstatements in excess of £26,900 and
misstatements below that Threshold that, in our

view, warranted reporting on quaiitative grounds.

Misstatements in excess of £18,200
and misstatements below that threshold
that, in our view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds.

An overview ot the scope of our audit

The Graup cansists of nine companents, all of which are basad in the UK,

The coverage achieved by our audit procedures was:

Number of Profit

components Revenue Net assets before tax

Full scope audit 3 92.6% 100% 88.8%
Total 3 92.6% 100% 88.8%

Analytical procedures at group level were performed for the remaining six components,

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than
the financial staterments and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except
to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereorn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statemants or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If we identffy such matetial inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to determine whether there is a2 material
misstatemant in the financial statemants or a material misstatamant of the ather infarmation, If, based on the waork we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

Wa have nothing to report in this regard.
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Opinicns on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinicn, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the information givan in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Repart for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the Strategic Report and the Directors” Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you
if, in our opinion:

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for cur audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

* we have not received all the informaticn and explanations we require for cur audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 68, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contre! as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ervor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent company's ability to continue as

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess the directors

either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altternative but te do so,

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordanice with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our respensibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
http://www.irc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made sclely to the company’s members, as a bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Emuud\us‘v b

GEOFF WIGHTWICK (Senior Statutory Auditor}

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Festival Way

Stoke on Trent

Staffordshire

S5T15BB

21 July 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 April 2020

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Nate £'000 £°000
Revenue 5 74,254 52,662
Other operating income 7 894 415
Staff costs 8 {45,578) (30,137}
Depreciation and amortisation charges 1 {4,276) {1,473}
Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets {112) {439)
Other operating charges 12 (11,504) (11,1864}
Operating profit hefore non underlying charges 13,678 9,864
Non-underlying operating costs 13 {8,090) (1.847)
Operating profit 5,588 8,017
Finance costs 14 (1,530} {2,776}
Profit befare tax 4,058 5,241
Taxation 16 {2,238) {1,240}
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year attvibutable to equity owners of the parent 1,820 4,001
Earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 17 2.44 5.84
Diluted earnings per share 17 241 581

76




financial Statements

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 April 2020

30 April 2020 30 April 2012
Note £'000 2000
Assels
Non-cutrent assets
Intangible assets and goodwill 19 69,135 46,444
Property, plant and equipment 21 5,562 3319
Right-of-use assets 21 23,749 -
98,446 48,763
Current assets
Contract assets 22 21,507 11,112
Trade and other receivables 23 27,046 13,671
Cash and cash equivalents 12,741 4,904
61,204 29,687
Total assets 159,740 72,450
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 24 164 147
Share premium 25 66,252 32,486
Merger reserve 26 {3,536) (3,536}
Retained earnings 26 13,070 10,158
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 75,950 39,255
Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities 37 21,078 -
Borrowings 27 28,650 12,000
Deferred consideration 28 127 1,611
Deferred tax 29 5,429 3,488
55,284 24,099
Current liabilities
Lease liabilities 37 2,766 -
Trade and other payables 30 20,019 12,105
Deferred consideration 28 2,723 1,628
Contract liabilities 22 177 120
Corporation tax liability 675 796
Provisions 31 2,146 1,447
28,506 16,096
Total liabilities 83,790 40,195
Total equity and liabilities 159,740 79,450

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 21 July 2020 and are signed cn its behalf by:

Q bloees

Kate Lewis
Director

Registered No. 11290101



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 30 April 2020

Share Share Merger Retained
capital  premium reserve  earnings Total
Note £'000 £7000 £'000 £'000 £°000
At 1 May 2018 100 - {3,536) 6,234 2,798
Prafit for the period and tatal comprehensive incame - - - 4,001 4,001
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments 9 - - - 356 356
issue of shares 24,25 47 32,486 - - 32,533
Dividends 1B - - (433) {433)
Balance at 30 April 2016 147 32,486 {3,536) 10,158 39,255
IFRS 16 impact 37 - ~ - 2,058 2,058
As at 1 May 2018 - restated 147 32,486 {3,536) 12,216 41,313
Profit for the period and total comprehensive income - - - 1,820 1,820
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments g - - - 789 789
Issue of shares 24,25 17 33,766 - - 33,783
Dividends 18 ~ - - {1,755} {1,755}
Balance at 30 Aprit 2020 164 66,252 {3.536) 13,07C 75,950
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 Apnl 2020

Financial Statements

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2018
£'000 (Restated}
Note £°000
Operating activities
Cash generated from operations 34 13,791 11,706
Non-underlying operating costs paid {3,398) (1,443)
Interest received 328 142
Tax paid {2,907) {(1,076)
Net cash from operating activities 7,814 9,329
Investing activities
Acquisition of subsidiaries 20 {11,907) (11,760)
Purchase of intangible fixed assets 19 {26) {90}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 21 (2,501) (1,214
Proceads from sale of property, plant and equipment 21 1
Payment of deferred and contingent consideration (3,966) (1,095)
Net cash used in investing activities {18,379) {14,158)
Financing activities
Preceads from issue of share capital 20,543 28,082
Proceeds of new borrowings 44,800 14,750
Hepayment of borrowings {35,150) {24,940)
Repayment of debt acquired with subsidiaries 20 (7,049} (8,308)
Repayment of lease liabilities {1,576} -
{nterest and other finance costs paid (1,411} (2,036)
Dividends paid {1,755} (433)
Net cash generated from financing activities 18,402 7,615
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,837 2,786
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the pericd 4,904 2,118
12,741 4,904

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

2019 cashflow restated to show £3,865,000 of cash acquired from subsidiaries as part of investing activities instead of financing activities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financig Statements

For the year ended 30 Aprit 2020

1. General information

Knights Group Hoidings ple (‘the Company’) is a public company fimited by shares and is registered, domiciled and incorperated in England.

The Company was incorporated in England as Knights Group Holdings Limited on 4 April 2018 as a private company limited by shares
{registered no. 11280101} and subsequentiy acquired Knights 1752 Limited ¢the previous parent company in the Group) and its subsidiaries
on 18 June 2018 through a share for share exchange. The Company was re-registered as a public Imited company on 20 Jure 2018 and
became Knights Group Heldings ple.

The Group consists ot Knights Group Holdings pic and al of its subsidiaries.
The principal activity and nature of operations of the Group is the provision of legal and professionat services. The address of its registered office is:

The Brarmpton
Newcastle-under-Lyme
Staffordshire

5T5 0QwW

2. Accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial staterments have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards adopted by the European Union {IFRSs;.

Applying TFRS requires the Directors to exercise judgement and use certain critical accounting estimates, the judgments and estimates that the
Directors deem significant in the preparation of these financial statements are explained in note 4,

The financial statements have bean prepared on the historical cost basis unless IFRSs requires an alternative treatment. Histarical cost is genarally
pased on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Monetary amounts are presented in Sterling, being the functional currency of the Group, rounded to the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.

The principal accounting poiicies adopted are set out below. These policies hiave been consistently applied to all petieds presented in the financial
statements, unless otherwise stated.

2.2 Going concern

The accounts ara prepared on & going cancern basis as, at the time of aporoving tha financial statements, the Okectors have a reasanable
expectation that the Group and Company have adequate resocurces to contimue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Group
has a strong trading performance, is cash generative and has barking facilities of £40,000,000 available until June 2023. The Group's forecasts
show sufficient cash generation, and headroom in banking facilities and covenants, in relation to anticipated future requirements to suppon the
Directors' conciusion that the assumption of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financia! statements is appropriate.

In the period since the pandemic arose and the UK entered lockdown at the end of March 2020, the Group has continuad 1o trade profitably

and cash generation has remained strong, but during the initial stages of lockdown there was a meaningful decline in the number of new instructions
ansing. This decline has levelled out and there are early indications of new instructions beginning to increase. However given the unprecedented
nature of the situation and the wider impact on the economic environment it is impossible to forecast the future impact on trading of the Group

and Gompany with any certainty. Therefore in order to satisfy the validity of the gaing concern assumption, a number of different trading scenarios
have been modelled and reviewsd. Some of thase scenarios foracast a significantly more negative trading performance than is expected. In all of
these scenarios the Group remained profitable and with significant headroom in its cash resources for the 12 months from the date of the approval
of the accounts.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial staterments incorporate the results of Knights Group Holdings plo and all of its subaidiarias. Subsidiaries rezults are
consolidated In the financiat statements from the earlier date that economic henefit is obtained @ comntrol commences untit the date that control ceases.

On 18 June 218, the whole of the share capital of Knights 1759 Lirmited was acquired by the Company via a share for share exchange agreement.
The acquisition is outside the scope of IFRS 3 hesause Knights Group Holdings Limited did not meet the definition of a businass, In tha absence of
specific guidance in IFRS, the Group has selected an appropriate accounting policy using the hierarchy described in paragraphs 1010 12 of 1AS 8,
which permits the consideration of other Financial Reporting Standards, The Group has adopted the principles of merger accounting from FRS 102,
Accordingly, the conselidated financial statements for the Group have been presented as if Knights 1759 Limited had been owned by Knights Group
Holdings pic throughout the preceding period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvernant with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power aver the entity. In assessing control, the Group takes inta
consideration potential voting rights that are currently exercisable. The acquisition date is the date on which contrat is Yransferred to the acquirer.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial staternents from the earlier date that control commences until
the date that cantral ceases.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

All intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group comipanies are eliminated on consolidation.
Unrealised losses are alse eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial information of subsidiaries to bring the accourting policies used into fine with those
used by the Group.
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Audit exemption of subsidiaries

The following subsidiaries are exempt from the requirements of the UK Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue
of s478A of the Act.

Name Registered number
Turner Parkinson LLP 0C312799
Spearing Waite LLP 0C361998
Cummins Solicitors Limited 07403259
BrockStreet Des Roches LLP OC317863
Dakeyne Emms Gilmore Liberson Limited 06850969
ERT Law Limited 09182964
Croftons Selicitors LLP 0C343375
Fraser Brown Solicitors N/A
Shulmars LLP 0OC348166
ASB Law LLP 0C351354
ASB Aspire LLP QC327667

The outstanding fiabilities at 30 April 2020 of the above named subsidiaries have been guaranteed by the Company pursuant to s479A to s479C
of the Act. In the opinion of the Directors, the possibility of the guarantee being called upon is remote since the trade, assets and majority of liabilities
of these subsidiaries were transferred to Knights Professional Services Limited before 30 April 2020.

2.4 Business combinations

The cost of a business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date, of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed.

The excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liakilities acquired
is recognised as goodwill,

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed as incurred.

2.5 Revenue

The Group earns revenue from the provision of legal and professional services. Revenue for these services is recognised over time in the
accounting period when services are rendered.

Fee arrangements for legal and professional services include fixed fee arrangements, unconditional fee-for-service arrangsments
(time and materials’), and variable or contingent fee arrangements.

For fixed fee arrangements, revenue is recognised based on the stage of complstion with reference to the actual services provided as
a propertion of the total services expected to be provided under the contract. The stage of completion is tracked on a contract-by-contract
hasis using the hours spent by fee-earners providing the services.

In fee-for-service contracts, revenue is recognised up to the amount of fees that the Group is entitled to bill for services performed to date
based on contracted rates.

Under variable or contingent fee arrangements, fees may be earned only in the event of a successful outcome of a client’s claim. Fees under
these arrangements may be fixed or may be variable based on a specified percentage of damages awarded under a claim.

For variable or contingent fee arrangements management makes a detailed assessment of the amount of revenue expected to be received
and the probability of success of each case. Variable consideration is recognised only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount
recognised will not be subject to significant reversal when the matter is cencluded. In such circumstances, a level of judgement is required

to determine the likelihood of success of a given matter, as well as the estimated amount of fees that will be recovered in respect of the matter.
Where the likelihood of success of a contingent fee arangement is less than highly probable, the value recognised in contract assets is further
reduced to reflect this uncertainty.

Certain contingent fee arrangements are undertaken on a partially funded basis. In such arrangements, the funded portion of fees is not contingent
on the successful outcome of the litigation and in these instances the revenue is recognised up to the amount of fees that the Group is entitled to bill
for services performed to date based on contracted rates. The remaining consideration is variable and conditional on the successful resolution of the
jitigation. The variable consideration is included in revenue only to the extent that it is highly probable that the amount recagnised will not be subject
to significant reversal when the uncertainty is resolved.

The Group's contracts with clients each comprise a single distinct performance obligation, being the provision of legal and professional services
in relation to a particular matter and the transaction price is therefore aliocated to this single performance obligation.

Estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which the circumstances that give rise
to the revision become known by management.

The Group has determined that no significant financing component exists in respect of the provision of legal and prefessional services because
the period between when the entity transfers its services to a client and when the client pays for that service will generaliy be one year or less.

Consideration for services provided under contingent or variable fee arrangements may be paid after a longer pericd. In these cases, no significant
financing component exists because the consideration promised by the customer is variable subject to the ocourrence or non-occurrence of a future
event that is not substantially within the control of the client or the Group.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 30 April 2020

2. Accounting policies continued

A receivable is recognised when a bill has been issued to the client, as this is the point in tirme that the consideration is unconditicnal because
only the passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Lntilied ravenue is recagnised as contract assets. Gosts incurred in fulfiling the futuwe perfarmance abligations of a contract are recagnised
as contract assets if the costs are expected ta be recovered.

Contract liabifities are recognised in respect of consideration bilied in advance of satisfying the performance obligation unider the contract.

2.6 Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax expenise and the deferred tax expense. Gurrent tax assets are recognised when the tax
paid exceeds the tax payable. Current fax is based on taxable profit for the year. Current tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in respect of all timing differences that exist at the reporting date. Timing differences are differences
between taxable profits and total comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in different
periods from their recognition in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that they wil!
he recovered by the reversal of deferred tax fiahilities or other future taxabie profits.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the value of assets [other than goodwill) and liabilities recognised in a business combination
and the amounts that can be deducted or assessed for tax. The deferred tax recognised is adjusted against goodwill,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if and conly i, there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and the entity intends either 1o settle on a net basis or 1o realise the asset and setlle the liabilty simuitaneously.

2.7 Intangible assets — Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the identifiable assets, liabllities and contingent liabilities of the entity recognised at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is inttially recognised
as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested annually by the Directors
for evidence of impairment.

2.8 Intangible assets — Other than goodwil!

Intangible assets purchased, other than in a business combination, are recognised when future aconomic benefits are probable and the cost
or value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets arising on a business combination, such as customer relationships, are recognised at estimated fair value, except where the
asset does not arise from legal or contractual rights, and there is no history or evidence of axchange transactions for the same or similar assets
and estimating the assets fair value would depend on immeasurable variables. The fair value represents the Directors best estimate of future
economic benefit to be derived from these assets discounted at an appropriate rate,

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost {which for intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at acquisition date)
and are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment Josses.

Intangible assets are amortised to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-ine basis over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Purchased computer software - 4 years
Customer relationships - 5-25 years
Brand - 100 years

Purchased computer software is amortised over a period of 4 years, being the minimum pericd expected to benefit from the asset.
Customer relationships are amortised over a period of 5-25 years being the average length of relationship with key clients for acquired entities.

Brand value is amortised over a period of 100 years based on the Directors’ assessment of the future life of the brand. This is supported by
a trading history dating back to 1759. Brand value relates fo the ‘Knights’ rand only. Other acquired brands are not recognised as an asset
as the acquired entities are rebranded as Knights and the impact of such recognition would not be material.

2.9 Property, plant and eguipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provisicn for impairment.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to write each asset down to its estimated residual value over
its expected useful life, as follows:

Expenditure on short leasehold property - 10% on cost
Office equipment - 25% on cost
Furniture and fittings - 10% on cost
Moter vehicles - 25% on cost
Right-of-use assets - Usefullife of the lease {between 1 and 21 vears)

Residual value is caiculated on prices prevalling at the reporting date, after estimated costs of disposal, for the asset as if it were at the age
and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.
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2.10 impairment of non-current assets

An assesament is made at each reporting date of whether there are indications that non-current assets may be impaired cr that an impairment
loss previously recognised has fully or partially reversed. If such indications exist, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or,
for goodwill, the recaverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

Shortfalls between the carrying value of non-current assets and their recoverable amcunts, being the higher of fair value less costs 1o sell and
value-in-use, are recognised as impairment losses. All other impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to apply. Reversals of impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. On reversal of an impairment loss, the depreciation or amortisation is adjusted
to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount (less any residual value) over its remaining usefu! life.

2.11 Provisions

In commeon with comparable practices, the Group is involved in a number of disputes in the erdinary course of business which may give rise

to claims. Provision is made in tha financial statements, within provisions for all claims where costs are likely to be incurred. This represents the
cost of defending and concluding claims and any excesses that may become payable. The Group carries professional indemnity insurance and
no separate disclosure is made of the cost of claims covered by insurance as to do so could seriously prejudice the position of the Group.,

2,12 Leases
The Group leases offices, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are for periods of between 3 and 25 years. Lease terms are negotiated

on a lease by lease basis and contain a variety of terms and conditions.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or confains a lease at inception of the contract, The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and

a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term |eases (defined as leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less} and leases of low-value assets (being thase assets with a value less than £4,000). For these short-term
and low-value leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. L ease liabilities include the net present value

of the following lease payments:

« fixed payments {including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

» variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate;

» amounts expected ta be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

» the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

» payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term assumed reflects the Group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be determined, the Group's incremental

borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the Group would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
in a similar economic environment with similar terms and conditions.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.

Right-of-use assets are recognised at commencement of the lease and initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, plus any
incrermental cost of obtaining the lease and any lease payments made at or before the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is reduced for payments made and increased to reflect interest on the lease liability {using the
effective interest method). The related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the term of the lease or, if shorter, the useful economic life of the leased
asset. The lease term shall include the period of an extension option where it is reascnably certain that the option wifl be exercised. Interest on

the lease liability is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

An estimate of the costs to be incurred in restoring the leased asset to the condition required under the terms and conditions of the lease
is recognised as part of the cost of the right-of-use asset when the Group incurs the obligation for these costs. The costs are incurred at the start
of the lease or over the lease term. The provision is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

* the lease term has changed or there is a significant change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;

« the lease payments change due to changes in anindex or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual value,
in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate {unless the lease
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used);

¢ alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

The Group did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.
The following acecunting policies were applied to leases in the year ended 30 April 2019:

Where assets are financed by leasing agreemants that give rights approximating to ownership (‘finance leases’), the assets are treated
as if they had been purchased outright. The amount capitalised is the present value of the minimum lease payments payable during the
lease term. The corresponding leasing commitments are shown as obligations to the lesser.

Lease payments are treated as consisting of capital and interest elements, and the interest is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Incame in proportion to the remaining balance outstanding.
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2. Accounting policies continued

All other leases are "operating leases’ and the annual rentals are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

During the year ended 30 April 2019, operating lease rentals of £2,104,000 were charged to other operating charges.

2.13 Retirement benefits
2.138 Defined contribution scherne

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme. The amaunt chargad to the Statennent of Comprehensive Income in respect of pension
rosts is the contributions payable in the year. Differences between contributions payable in the year and contributions actually paid are shown
as either accrued expenses or prepayments and other receivables.

2.13b Defined benefit pension scheme

For defined benefit schemes the amounts charged to operating prafit are the current service costs and gains and losses on settlaments and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs. Past service costs are recognised immadiately in the Statement of Comprehensive Incame
if the benefits have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period until vesting ocours. The interest
cost and the expected raturmn on as3ets are shown a8 a nat amount of other finance costs or credits adjacent 1o interest, Actuarial gains and
losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Defined benefit schemes are funded, with the assets of the scheme held separatety from those of the Group, in separate frustee administered
funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme
lizbilities. The actuartal valuations are obtained at feast triennially and are updated at sach batance sheet date.

Defined benefit assets are not recognised in the Statement of Financial Pesition on the basis that future economic benefits are not available
to the Group in the form of a reduction in future contributions or a cash refund.

For the 'With Profits Section’ contributions are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period to which they relate

as there is insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. A liability will be recognised based on the agreed share of the
Group in the scheme. N liability has been recognised as at 30 April 2020 as it is not desmed to be material and is as a resuit of a ternporary
timing difference.

2.14 Share-based payments

The cost of providing share-based paymerts tc employess is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive income over the vesting period

of the awards. The cost is based on the fair value of awards at the date of grant of the award using an appropriate valuation model. The amount
recognised as an expense will be adjusted to reflect differences between the expected and actual vesting levels. Further details of the schemes
are included in note 9.

2.15 Financial instruments

Financiat instruments are recognised on the date when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. Financial instruments are derecognised when the Group is no longer party

1o the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

Contract asseis and trade receivables

Contract assets and trade receivables which are receivable within one year are initially measurad at fair value. These assets are subsequently
measured at amartised cost, being the transaction price tess any amounts settled and any impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses ('ECL’} on contract assets and trade receivables. The expected credit
losses on trade recelvables includes specific provisions against known receivables and an estimate using a provision matrix by reference

to past experience and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position on the remaining balance. The expected credit losses on cantract
assets and other receivables is assessed based on historical credit loss experienced on these types of assets adjusted for known foresecable
estimated loases.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial instruments are classified as liabilities and equity instruments according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables due within one year are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, being the
transaction price less any amounts settled.

Deferred consideration

Deferred consideration is initially recognised at the fair value of the amounts payable and subsequently at amortised cost of the agreed payments
in accordance with the agreement. Any interest payable on the balance is reflected in the value of the Yiability and charged monthly to the Statement
of Comprehensive income as 1t arises.
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Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue costs associated with the borrowings.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised on the basis
of the effective interest method and is included in interest payable and other similar charges.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are settled, or substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are transferred to another party. A financial liability (or part therecf) is derecognised when the obligation specified
in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

3. Accounting developments

New and amended IFRSs that are effective for the current year

In the year, the Group adopted one new [FRS, issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that is effective for an annual
period that begins on or after 1 January 2019 (and has been endorsed for use within the EU). IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 ‘leases’.

- |IFRS5 16 Leases

The Group leases offices, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are for periods of between 3 and 25 years. Lease terms are negatiated
on a lease by lease basis and contain a variety of terms and conditions.

The main change on application of IFRS 16 is the accounting for ‘operating leases’ where rentals payable (as adjusted for lease incentives)
were previously expensed under 1AS 17 on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Under IFRS 16 a right-of-use asset and a {ease liability are recognised for all leases except 'low-value’ and ‘short-term’ leases where lease
payments are recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has applied IFRS 18 retrospectively to all leases but has elected to recognise the cumulative effect against opening reserves at
1 May 2019. Therefore the comparative figures are as previcusly reported under IAS 17. The Group has applied this approach subject to the
transition provisions as set out below:

* the use of a single discount rate for & portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

+ reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onercus at 1 May 2019 and reducing the right-of-use asset value by that amount;
+ initial direct costs have been excluded from the measurement of the right-of-use asset; and

= the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

On the Statement of Financial Position, a new category of fixed asset (right-cof-use) has been created to recognise the value of right-of-use
assets, whilst the full liability of leases has been recognised within both current and non-current liabitities. Over the life of the leases, the
right-of-use asset will be depreciated and interest will be charged on the liability; these charges will replace the cost of operating leases which
has previously been charged as part of administrative expenses. On the Statement of Cash Flows, payments of leases are treated as financing
activities; these payments previously formed part of operating cash flow.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease.

Operating leases under IAS 17, except ‘low-value’ and ‘short-term’ leases

The lease liability is measured and the present value of the remaining lease payments at 1 May 2019, discounted at the leasee’s
incremental borrowing rate at that date.

The right-of-use asset is either

¢ measured as if IFRS 16 had been applied from commencement of the lease, but using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate
at 1 May 2019 to discount future payments; or

* measured at the amount of the lease liability recognised in accordance with the measurement set out above, adjusted for acerued
or prepaid cperating lease payments at 1 May 2019.

This measurement has baen made on a 'lease by lease’ basis.

‘Low-value’ leases

When the value of an undertying asset (if new} at 1 May 2019 is £4,000 or less, the Group has confinued to recognise the lease payments
associated with those leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

‘Short-tenm’ leases

Where the lease ends before 30 April 2020, the Group has continued to recognise the lease payments associated with those leasaes
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

The impact of IFRS 16 is detailed further in note 37.
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3. Accounting developments continued

New and revised [FRS in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financial staternents, the Group has not applied the following new and revised [FRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective and in some cases have not yet been adopted by the EU:

Revised (FRS Effective date
IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1 January 2020
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021

The Directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group
in future perods.

4, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the appiication of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the Directors are required to make judgements, estirates and
assumpticns about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The gstimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period

in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future pericds.

Critical accounting judgements

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those invalving estimations (which are dealt with separateiy below}, that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised inthe
financial staterments,

Amounts recoverable on contracts - contingent fee arrangements

A level of judgement is required o defermine the fikelihood of success of a given matter for contingent fee arrangements. This is determined
on a contract-by-contract basis after considering the relevant facts and circumstances surrounding each matter. The valuation exercise

is conducted by experienced fee earners with detailed understanding of the cases, The carrying value of contingent fee arrangements work

in progress at 30 April 2020 was £4,114,000 (2019: £2,201,000).

IFRS 18

The Group has applied judgement in applying the following transition pravisions of IFRS 16:

- determining whether leases have similar characteristics to apply a single discount rate; and

- lease partfalios have baen grouped hatween leases of properties and office equipment. These classes of assets have similar lease terms.

In applying IFRS 18, the Group uses judgement 1o assess whether the interest rate implicit in the lease is readily determinable. When the interest
rate in the lease is not readily determinable, the Group estimates the incremental borrowing rate based on its external borrowings secured against
similar assets, adjusted for the term of the lease. An increase in the rate adopted of 2% would have the following impact on the reported results
for 30 April 2020:

Statement of Financial Position: Right-of-Use Assets ~ reduction of £2,190,000; Leasa iabilities ~ reduction of £2,096,000.
Statement of Comprehensive Income: Interest costs — increase of £260,000; Depreciation - reduction of £166,000.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty in the reporting period that may have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below,

IFRS 16

The Group makes estimaites of the cost of restoring leased assets 1o their original condition when required to do so under the terms and conditions
of the lease. Those estimates are based on the current condition of the leased assets and past experience of restoration costs.

Amounts recoverable on confracts - recoverable amounts

The valuation of amounts recoverable on cortracts ( AROC invoives the use of estimates of the likely recovery rate which will be made on the
gross value of chargeable time recorded to each matter.

This percentage represents management’s best estimate of future value following a line by line review of the matters by fee eamners.

The estimation process takes into account the progress of the case at the reporting date, the estimated eventual fee payable by the client and
the amount of time which will be incurred by fee earners in bringing the matter 1o a successful conclusicn. The amount recogrised in AROC
at the year end was £21,507,000 (2019: £11,112,000), a 3% change in the estimated recovery of all matters would impact the profit for the
period by approximately £890,000 (2019: £455,000}.
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Accounting for business combinations and valuation of intangibles

Business combinations are accounted for at fair value. The valuation of goodwill and acquired intangibtes is calculated separately on each
individual acquisition. In attributing value to intangible assets arising on acquisition, management has made certain assumptions in relation

to the expected growth rates, prefitability, langth of key customer relationships and the appropriate welghted average cost of capital (\WACC?)
or internal rate of return ('IRR’).

The value attributable to the intangible assets acquired on acquisitions also impacts the deferred tax provision relating to these items.
The total carrying value of acquired intangibies arising from business combinations in the year is £24,365,000 (2019: £27,247,000).

In order to assess the impact of the key assumptions on the values disclosed in the accounts the Directors have applied the following sensitivities
to the acquisitions the current year:

Annual profit  Value of intangible

Rate applied in the impact assets
Key assumption financial statements Sensitivity tested £'000 £'000
Long-term growth rate 0% 2% 4 30
WACC and IRR rate 16% - 33%!" 5% 126 (340
Length of customer relationships 5-15 years 5 years (165} (356)

{1) Each acquisition has been reviewead and, dependent upen the structure of the acquisition, an appropriate WACC or IRR rate has been applied. These sensitivities have been
calculated adjusting the adopted rates as noted above.

Growth rate are estimated based on the current conditions at the date of each acquisition with reference to independent surveys of future
growth rates in the legal profession in real, inflation adjusted terms.

The length of customer relationships is estimated by considering the length of time the acquiree has had its significant client relationships
up to the date of acquisition and historic customer attrition rates as appropriate.

The Directors consider the resulting valuations used give a reasonable approximation as to the value of the intangibles acquired and that
any reasonably possible change in any one of the estimations in isolation would not have a material impact on the financial statements.

The Directors undertake an annual impairment review of goodwill to assess whether the carrying value is still supperted by using a discounted
the cash flow model to derive the value in use of the cash generating unit ('CGU’). Cash flow forecasts are derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by management for the next two years and extrapciates cash using a terminal value calculation.

The key assumnptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates for the Group's revenue from
legal and professional services and the gross profit margin. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the CGU.

Revenue growth over the two years of the forecast period reflects, for 2021, the current run rate of revenue from the Group's existing business
and a full year of revenue from acquisitions made during the year ended 30 April 2020, with an element of growth in 2022. The long term growth
rate of 2% (2019: 3%) is based on UK economic growth forecasts for the legal services market.

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of the CGU value in use. A reduction in projected revenues for 2021
and 2022 of 10% per annum would result in the carrying value equalling the value in use.

5. Revenue

All revenue is derived from contracts with customers and is recognised over time. As more fully explained in note 6, the Group's legal and
professional services business operates as & single business unit so there are no relevant categeries into which revenue can be disaggregated.
The transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations of contracts at 30 April 2020 is not required to be disclosed because

it comprises contracts that are expected to have a duration of one year or less.

6. Segmental reporting

The Board of Directors, as the chief operating decision-making body, reviews financial information for and makes decisions about the Group's
overall legal and professional services business and has identified a single operating segment, that of legal and professional services operating
entirely in the UK.

The legat and professional services business operates through a number of different service lines and in different locations; however, management
effort is consistently directed to the firm cperating as a single segment. No segmental reporting disclosure is therefore previded as all revenue
is derived from this single segment.
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7. Other operating income

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 3D April 2019
£7000 £°000
Other income 495 253
Bark interest 399 182
£894 415
8. Stoff costs
The average monthly number of emnployees {including Executive Directors) of the Group was:
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Number Number
Fee earners 664 430
Other employeas 168 123
832 553
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Year ended Year ended
30 Aprit 2020 30 Aprit 2019
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 40,290 26,284
Social security costs 4,244 2,792
Cther pension costs 2,938 814
Cther employment costs 1,058 828
Aggregate remuneration of employees 48,530 30,318
One off redundancy costs analysed as non-underlying costs {note 13) (2,952) 712
Movement in contract assets relating 1o staff costs - {73}
Members' costs - 804
Underlying staff costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 45,578 30,137
Members’ costs relate to the rermuneration of members of the Group's LLPs,
Directors' remuneration
Companies Act disclosures
The total amounts for Directors' remuneration in accordance with Schedule 5 to the Accounting Regulations were as foliows:
Year ended Year ended
30 Aprit 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000
Salaries, fees, bonuses and banefits in kind 698 444
Money purchase pension contributions 10 5
708 449
The number of Directors to whom benefits are accruing under money purchase pension schemes is 2 {2019 3).
The remuneration of the highest paid Director was:
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000
Salaries, fees, bonuses and benéfits in kind 21 142
Money purchase pension contributions - 1
231 143
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9. Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to its employees. The Group recognised total expenses of £783,000 (2019: £356,000)
relating o equity-setiled share-based payment transactions in the year.

Any charges relating to schemes introduced as one-off schemes as part of the listing are included in non-underlying costs because the
directors view these schemes as a reward to employees for their past performance prior ta the IPO. All charges relating tc other recurring LTIP
of SAYE schemes are included as a normal operating expense.

The following schemes were in place during the period:

CGmnibus Plan
The Omnibus Plan is a discretionary share plan, which is administered, and the grant of awards is supervised by, the Remuneration Committee.
Three forms of award are available under the Omnibus Plan, as considered appropriate by the Remuneration Committee, as follows:

a) ‘Restricted Stock Awards’: Awards granted in the form of nil or nominal cost share options, subject to time-based vesting requirements

and continued employment within the Group. No performance targets will apply to Restricted Stock Awards.

=

‘Performance Share Awards’: Awards granted in the form of nil or neminal cost share options, whereby vesting is subject to satisfaction
of performance conditions and continued employment within the Group.

‘Share Opticns': Awards granted in form of a share option with an exercise price equal tc the market value of an Ordinary share at the
time of grant, subject to continued employment within the Group. Share Options may or may not be subject to performance conditions.

&

Restricted stock awards Performance share awards
Weighted Weighted
average average
axercise price exercise price
Number Pence Number Pence
Qutstanding at 1 May 2018 - - - -
Granted during the period 451,845 0.2 63,352 0.2
Qutstanding at 30 April 2019 451,845 0.2 63,352 0.2
Granted during the period 129,112 - 142,862 -
Forfeited during the pericd (11,104) - - -
Exercised during the pericd (28,967) - - -
Qutstanding at 30 April 2020 540,886 0.2 206,214 0.2
Exercisable at 30 April 2020 53,819 0.2 - -

The opticns outstanding at 30 April 202C had a weighted average exercise price of 0.2p and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 2.1 years.

In the pericd, the following restricted stock awards were granted : 21,353 options were granted on 9 July 2019, 31,250 options were granted
on 1 November 2019, 18,669 options were granted on 9 March 2020 and 57,840 options were granted on 24 April 2020. In addition 142,862
performance share awards were granted on 10 March 2020.

The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted on these dates is £1,051,000. The inputs into the valuation model are as follows:

Weighted average share price 387p
Weighted average exercise price 0.2p
Weighted average expected life 2.1 years
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9. Share-based payments continued
Share Incentive Plan (‘SIP’)

The SIP is an ‘all employee’ scheme under which every eligible employee within the Group was invited 16 participate. Eligible employees could
apply to invest up to £1,800 from pre-tax income in partnership shares; matching shares were awarded on the basis of 2 free matching shares
for each partnership share purchased. The matching shares are forfeited if the employee leaves within 3 years of the grant date.

Partnership Maiching

Shares Shares

Number Number

Cutstanding at 30 Aprii 2018 - -
Granted during the period 219,244 438,488
Withdrawn during the period (15,071) -
Forfeited during the period - (30,141)
Cutstanding at 30 Aprit 2619 204,173 408,347
Withdrawn during the period (22,649) -
Forfeited during the period - (45,298)
Qutstanding at 30 April 2020 181,524 363,049

Unrestricted at 30 April 2020 - -

Sharesave Scheme [‘SAYE)

This is an HMRC approved scheme and is open to any person that was an employee or officer of the Group at the launch date of each scheme.
Under the schems, members save a fixed amount each month for 3 years. Subject to remaining in employment by the Group, at the end of the
3-year period they are entitled to use these savings to buy shares in the Company at 80% of the market value at launch date.

The first scheme was launched in Novermber 2018 and a new SAYE scheme was launched in February 2020.

SAYE options

Weighted

average

exercise price

Number Pence
Qutstanding at 30 April 2018 - -
Granted during ihe pericd 900,785 162
Forfeited during the period (4,350) -
Qutstanding at 30 April 2019 896,435 162
Granted during the period 664,796 361
Forfeited during the period (188,681) 221
Exercised during the periad {12,361} 162
Quitstanding at 30 April 2020 1,360,189 251

Exercisable at 30 April 2020 - _

The options outstanding at 30 April 2020 had a weighted average exercise price of 251p and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.3 years,

November 2018 scheme

The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted is £500,000. The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

Exercise price 162p
Expected volatility 39.2%
Expected lite 3.1 years
Risk-free rate 14%
Expected dividend yield 1.1%
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February 2020 scheme

In the period, 664,796 options were granted on 21 February 2020. The aggregate of the estimated fair values of the options granted
is £1,163,000. The inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

Exercise price 361p
Expected volatility 34.3%
Expected life 3.1 years
Risk-free rate 1.1%
Expected dividend vield 0.7%

Expected volatility was determined by using historical share price data of the Company since it listed on 29 June 2018. The expected life used
in the model has been based on management’s best estimate after considering exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

Warrants
Warrants were issued to Numis Securities Limited on Admission in respect of their services and shall be exercisable for & period of five years.

Warrants
Weighted
average
exarcise price
Number Pence
Outstanding at 30 April 2019 706,897 1.7
Exercised during the pericd (706,897} -

Qutstanding at 30 April 2020 - -

The warrants were exercised in the period and raised £1,230,000.

10. Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined cantribution pension scheme for employees. The total cost charged to income of £2,931,000 (2019: £614,000)
represents contributions payable to the scheme by the Group. As at 30 April 2020, confributions of £281,000 (2019: £207,000) due in respect
of the reporting period had not been paid cver to the schemes.

The defined benefit impact is discussed in note 38. There were no charges against income in the year ended 30 April 2020.

1. Depreciation and amortisation charges

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2018

£'000 £°000

Depreciation 858 702
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 1,908 -
Amortisation 1,501 757
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 14
4,276 1,473

12. Other operating charges

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £000

Establishment costs 2,335 3,184
Short-term and low-value lease costs 161 -
Other overhead expenses 9,008 7,980
11,504 11,164
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For the year ended 30 April 2020

13. Non-undetlying operating costs

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £'000

Redundancy and reorganisation costs 2,952 712
Transaction costs 1,532 802
Loss of disposal 97 -
Share based payment charges 513 300
Caontingent cansideration 2,996 233
8,090 1,847

Noen-underlying costs relate ta redundancy costs to streamline the support function following acquisitions of the Group and in FY20 as a result

of recrganisation actions taken in relation to the impact of COVID-18, ransaction costs in respect of acquisitions, the placing of new shares during
the period and share-based payment charges relating to one-off share schemes offered 1o employees as part of the IPO. Contingent consideration
is included in non-underlying costs as it represents payments agreed under the terms of the sale and purchase agreements with vendars of certain
businesses acquired which are contingent on the continued employment of those individuals with the Group. The payments extend over periods of
1t 3 years and are designed to preserve the value of goodwill and customer refationships acquired in the business combinations. IFRS requires
such arrangemants to be treated as remuneration and charged ta tha Statement of Comprehensive Income. The individuals also receive market
rate sataries for their work, in line with other similar members of staff in the Group. The contingent earnout payments are significantly in excess of

thiese market salaries and wouid distort the Group's results it not separataly identified.

14. Finance costs

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 000
nterest an botrowings 628 895
Interest on leases T90 -
Bank arrangemert fees 71 39
Exit and release of arrangement fees arising on the repayment of debt at the IPO - 1,924
Interest on deferred consideration 41 114
Cther interest payable = 4
1,530 2,776
15. Auditor’s remuneration
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000
Fees payable to the parent company’s auditor and their associates for the audit of the parent company’s
annual accounts 29 21
Fees payable to the auditor and their associates for other services ta the Graup;
~The audit of the Company's subsidiaries 25 3B
Total audit fees 124 59
— Audit-related agsurance services 21 21
- Taxation advisory services - 7
- Corporate finance services - 80
- Qther advisory sawvices 3 63
Total non-audit fees 24 171

tr addition to the above in the year ended 30 April 2020, £5,000 of non-audit costs relating to tax services have been charged to the share premium
atcount in the year. For the year ended 30 April 2019 £95,000 was charged to the share premium account in refation to corporate finance services.

Fees payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit services to the Company are not required to be disclosed because the consclidated

financial statements disclose such fees on a conscfidated basis.
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16. Taxation
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £°000
Corporation tax:
Current year 1,915 1,327
Adjustments in respect of prior years (20} -
1,895 1,327
Deferred tax:

Crigination and reversal of tempaorary differences 343 (87)
Tax expense for the year 2,238 1,240
The charge for the period can be reconciled to the Statement of Comprehensive income as follows:

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £000

Profit before tax 4,058 5241
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%) ™ 995
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 1,487 245
Adjustment in respect of prior years (20) -
Tax expense for the year 2,238 1,240

The impact of non-undetlying costs on the effective rate of tax is set out below:
Year ended 30 April 2020 Year ended 30 April 2019
Non-

Total Underlying underlying Total Underlying Non-underlying

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £:000
Prefit before tax 4,058 13,616 (9,558) 5,241 9,819 (4,578)
Tax expense {2,238) {2,910} 672 {1,240} (1,678) 438
Effective rate of tax 55% 21% (7%0) 24% 17% (10%)
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17. Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share have bean caloulated using profit after tax and the weighted average number of Ordinary Shares

in issue during the period.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Number Nurmber
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 74,675,462 R8,533,004
Effect of dilutive potential Ordinary Shares:
Share options 724,543 194,389
Warrants - 117,350
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 75,400,004 668,844,833
£000 £'000
Profit after tax 1,820 4,601
Earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic earnings per share 244 5.84
Biluted earnings per share 241 5.81
The denominators for the purpeses of calcuiating both basic and diluted earnings per shars have been adjusted to reflect the Group
regrganisation with Knights 1759 Limited and the subdivision of Ordinary Shares in the period ended 30 Aprit 2018.
Adjusted earnings per share is calculated as an aiternative performance measure in note 36.
18. Dividends
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£°000 £000
Amgaunts recognised as distributions fo equity holders in the year:
Final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2019, paid September 2019 93 -
interim dividend for the year ended 30 Aprit 2020 of 1.10p per share, pad in March 2026 {(2019: 0.60p per share) 824 433
1,755 433
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2020 of Op per share {2019: 1.27p per share) - 931

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the resultant uncertainty of the effects on the UK economy the Board has decided not 1o propose

a final dividend for the year ended 30 April 2020,
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Purchased
Customer compuler
Goodwill Brand  relationships software Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 May 2018 12,244 5,401 2,196 256 20,397
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 14,363 - 12,884 - 27,247
Additions - - - 90 20
As at 30 April 2019 26,607 5,401 15,380 346 47,734
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 13,270 - 11,085 - 24,365
Adjustment in respect of consideration not payable (199} - - - (199}
Additions - - - 26 26
As at 30 April 2020 39,678 5,401 26,475 372 71,926
Amortisation and impairment
As at 1 May 2018 - 162 268 103 533
Amortisation charge - 54 639 64 757
As at 30 April 2019 - 216 907 167 1,200
Amortisation charge - 54 1,373 74 1,501
As at 30 April 2020 - 270 2,280 241 2,791
Canrying amount
At 30 April 2020 39,678 5,131 24,195 131 69,135
At 30 April 2019 26,607 5,185 14,473 179 46,444
At 1 May 2018 12,244 5,239 2,228 153 19,864

The carrying amount of goodwill of £39.7 million (2019: £26.6 miflion} has been allocated to the single cash generating unit (CGU) present
in the business, which is the provision of legal and professional services.

The recoverable ameount of the Group’s goodwill has been determined by a value in use calculation using a discounted cash flow medel.
The Group prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for the next 2 years
and extrapclates cash using a terminal value calculaticn based on an estimated growth rate of 2% {2019: 3%). This rate does not exceed

the expected average long-term growth rate for the UK legal services market.

The key assumptions for the value in use ca'culations are those regarding the discount rates and growth rates for the Group's revenues
from legal and professional services and the gress profit margin. Managsment estimatas discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU,

The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows is 19.4% (2019: 16.6%).

Revenue growth over the two years of the forecast period reflects, for 2021, the current run rate of revenue from the Group's existing

business and a full year of revenue from acquisitions made during the year ended 30 April 2020, with an element of growth in 2022.

The long-term growth rate is based on UK economic growth forecasts for the legal services market.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of the CGU value in use. A reduction in the projected revenues

for 2021 and 2022 of 10% per annum would result in the carrying value equalling the value in use.
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20. Acquisitions

Acquisitions summary

Ouring the year the Group has completed six acquisitions. The table below summarises the consideration paid and the net cash flow arising

on ali acquisitions in the period.

Total
£'000
Total identifiable assets and liabilities acquired 22,6828
Goodwil 13,270
Total consideration 35,898
Satisfied by:
Cash 21,424
Equity instruments (3,240,644 Crdinary Shares of Knights Group Heldings plc) 13,167
Deferred consideration arrangement 1,307
Total consideration transferred 35,898
Net cash outflows arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration {(net of cash acquired) 11,907
Net investing cash outflow arising on acquisition 11,807
Repayment of debt acquired 7,049
Net financing cash outflow arising on acquisition 7,049

Dietails for the individual acquisitions are included below

Dakeyne Emms Gilmore Liberson Limited (EGL)

On 1 November 2019, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire EGL, through the agreement to purchase the shares of the entity. This acquisition
completed or 29 Novemnber 2079, EGL is a law firm based in Birmingham and it was acquired to agsist the Group in entering the Birmingham legal

and professional sarvices market.

The amouris recogrised in respect of the idertifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.

Carrying Fair value
amaint adjustment Total

£'000 2000 2000
tdentifiable assets
Identifiable intangible assets - 1,448 1,428
Property, plant and equipment 45 (45) -
Contract assets 874 - g74
Trade and other receivables 992 - 992
Cash and cagh equivalents 2,524 - 2524
Liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,155) - (1,155)
Provisions 71 - 71)
Deferred tax (1) (246) 257)
Total identifiabie assets and habilities 3,198 1,157 4,355
Googwil 661
Total consideration 5,016
Satisfied by:
Cash 3,349
Equity instrumants (515,057 Qrdinary Shares af Knights Group Holdings plc 1,667
Total consideration transferred 5,016
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash corsideration (net of cash acquired) 1,125
Repayment of debt 82
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 1,267
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The goodwill of £661,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwilll is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average
share price for the 5 days prior to completion.

A contingent consideration arrangement was entered into as part of the acquisition. This is contingent on the sellers remaining in
employment by the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
on a straight-line basis over the 2-year post acquisition period. The maximum undiscounted amount of ali potential future payments under the
contingent consideration arangement is £1,667,000 and is payable fram 31 May 2020 to 31 October 2021 in regular instalments,

EGL contributed £1,890,000 of revenue to the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income for the pericd from 1 November 2019
to 30 April 2020. The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into
Knights Professional Services Limited from 29 November 2519,

ERT Law Limited (ERT)

On 3 January 2020, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire ERT, through the agreement to purchase the shares of the entity.
This acquisition completed on 17 January 2020. ERT is a law firm based in Birmingham and it was acquired to enhance the Groups
presence in the Birmingham legal and professional services market.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.

Carrying Fair value
armount adjustment Total
£'000 £000 £'000

Identifiable assets
Identifiable intangible assets - 906 906
Property, plant and equipment 29 (11} 18
Right-cf-use assets - 101 101
Contract assets 267 - 267
Trade and other receivables 419 - 419
Cash and cash equivalents 462 - 462
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 464) - (464)
Lease liabilities - (101} (101)
Provisions (100} - (100)
Deferred tax 0] (154} (155)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 612 741 1,353
Goodwill 644
Total consideration 1,997
Satisfied by:
Cash 1,097
Equity instruments (262,899 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc) 900
Total consideration transferred 1,997
Net cash outflow arising on acguisition:
Cash consideration {net of cash acquired) 635
Repayment of debt 143
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 778

The goodwill of £644,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average
share price for the 5 days prior t¢ completion.

ERT contributed £E778,000 of revenue to the Group’s Statement of Cemprehensive Income for the peried from 3 January 2020 to
30 April 2020. The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due te the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into
Knights Professicnal Services Limited from 17 January 2020.
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20. Acquisitions continued

Croftons Solicitors LLP {Croftons’)

On 31 January 2020, the Group acquired Croftons, by purchasing the controling membership interests of the entity. Groftons is a law firm
based in Manchester and it was acquired to further expand the Group’s legal and professional services offering in the Manchester market.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table beiow.

Carrying Fair value
amount adjustinent Total
£'000 £'000 £7000

Identifiable assets
ldentifizble intangible assets 300 483 783
Property, plant and equipment 174 (119) 55
Contract assets 296 - 296
Trade and other receivables 682 - 682
Gash and cash equivalents 980 - 980
Liabilities
Trade and other payables {4371 - 431}
Provisions 8) {81) 89}
Deferred tax - (133) (133)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 1,993 150 2,143
Goodwill 471
Total consideration 2,814
Satisfied by:
Cash 1,910
Equity instruments {183,086 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc) 704
Total consideration transferred 2,614
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration (net of cash acquired} 519
Repayment of debt 410
Met cash outflow arising on acquisition 929

The goodwill of £471,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible
far income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determinad on the basis of the volume weighted average share
price for the 5 days prior to completion.

A contingent consideration arrangement was entered into as part of the acquisition. This is contingent an the seliers remaining in emplayment

by the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised in the Statement of Gomprahensive lncome on a straight-lina
basis. The maximum undiscounted amount of all potential future payments under the contingent consideration arrangament is £704,000 and is
payable in equal installments over the 2 years post completion.

Crofions contribuied £821,000 of revenue to the Group's Slatement of Comprehensive Income for the period from 31 January 2020
to 30 April 2020. The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into
Knights Professional Services Limited from 31 January 2020,
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Fraser Brown Solicitors (Fraser Brown)

On 14 February 2020, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire Fraser Brown, through the agreement to purchase the controlling membership
interests of the partnership. This acquisition completed on 27 March 2020. Fraser Brown is a law firm based in Nottingham and it was acquired
te assist the Group in entering the Nottingham legal and professional services market.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.

Carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Total
£:000 £'000 £'000

Identifiable assets
Identifiable intangible assets - 1,492 1,492
Property, plant and equipment 762 591) 171
Right-of-use assets - 84 84
Contract assets 807 - 807
Trade and other receivables 1,293 {208) 1,085
Cash and cash equivalents 1,404 - 1,404
Liabilities
Trade and other payables (1,513) - (1,513)
Lease liabilities - (84) 84)
Borrowings 651) - (651)
Directors loan accounts 1,253 - 1,253
Provisions - (159) (159)
Deferred tax - (254) (254)
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 3,355 280 3,635
Goodwill 4,006
Total consideration 7,641
Satisfied by:
Cash 4,258
Equity instruments (680,911 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc) 3,033
Deferred consideration arrangament 350
Total consideration transferred 7,641
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration (net of cash acquired) 2,055
Repayment of debt 197
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 2,252

The goodwill of £4,006,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average
share price for the 5 days prior to completion.

A contingent consideration amangement was entered into as part of the acquisition. This is contingent on the sellers remaining in employment

by the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line
basis. The maximum undiscounted amount of all potential future payments under the contingent consideration arrangement is £2,066,000.

This is payable in installments from May 2020 to February 2022,

There are also deferred consideration payments totalling £350,000 outstanding. This is payable in installments on the first and second anniversary
of completion.

Fraser Brown contributed £1,674,000 of revenue to the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period from 14 February 2020
to 30 April 2020. The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into Knights
Professional Services Limited from 27 March 2020.
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20. Acquisitions continued

ASB Law (‘ASB’) and Aspire LLP (‘Aspire’)

Cn 5 March 2020, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire ASB and Aspire, through the agreernent to purchase the controling membership
interests of the entities. This acquisition completed on 17 April 2020. ASB and Aspire are law firms based in Maidstone and Crawley, they were

acquired to assist the Group in entering the legal and professicnal services market in the South East region.

The amaunts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acguired and liabilities assumead are as sat out in the table below,

Carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Total
£'000 £'000 £'000

Identifiable assets
tdantifiable intangible assets 616 1,168 1,784
Praperty, plant and equipment 186 11 175
Right-of-use assets - 1,204 1,204
Contract assets 3,274 - 3,274
Trade and other receivables 8,189 - £,189
Cash and cash equivalents 40 - 40
Liabilities
Trade and other payables {4,572} 109 {4,463)
Lease fiabilities - (1,204 {1,204}
Borrowings (2.477) - {2,477}
Provisions (155) - (155}
Deferred tax - {303) 303;
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 3,101 963 4,064
Goodwilt 1,438
Total consideration 5,502
Satisfied by
Cash 4,282
Equity instruments (181,675 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings pic) 770
Deferred consideration arrangement 450
Total consideration transferred 5,502
Net cash cutflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration {net of cash acquired) 1,508
Repayment of debt 5,212
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition 6,720

The goodwill of £1,438,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assernbled workforce. Nane of the gocdwill is expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average

share price for the 5 days prior to complefion.

Future payments under the deferred consideration arrangement total £450,000. This is payable in two egual instalments on the first and

second anniversary of completion,

ASB and Aspire contributed £2,445,000 of revenue to the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income for the period from 5 March 2020
t0 30 April 2020. The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated into

Knights Professional Services Limited from 17 April 2020.
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Financial Statements

On 5 March 2020, the Group exchanged contracts to acquire Shulmans, through the agreement to purchase the controlling membership interests
of the entity. This acquisition completed on 24 April 2020, Shulmans is a law firm based in Leeds and it was acquired to assist the Group in entering

the Leeds legal and professional services market.

The amounts recognised in respect of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are as set out in the table below.

Carrying Fair value
amount adjustment Total
£000 £'000 £'000

Identifiable assets
Identifiable intangible assets 1,068 3,608 4,676
Preperty, plant and equipment 745 {60} 685
Right-of-use assets - 3,126 3,126
Contract assets 2774 - 2,774
Trade and other receivables 3,185 (200} 2,985
Cash and cash equivalents 111 - 11
Liabilities
Tracke and other payables {(2,569) 468 (2,101)
Lease liabilities - (3,126) (3,126)
Borowings {1,005) - (1,005}
Provisions (10} {242 {252)
Defarred tax - {795) (795}
Total identifiable assets and liabilities 4,299 2,779 7,078
Goodwill 6,050
Total consideration 13,128
Satisfied by:
Cash 6,528
Equity instruments (1,437,016 Ordinary Shares of Knights Group Holdings plc) 6,093
Deferred consideraticn arrangement 507
Total consideration transferred 13,128
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Cash consideration (net of cash acquired) 6,065
Repayment of debt 1,005
Net cash outfiow arising on acquisition 7,070

The goodwill of £6,050,000 arising from the acquisition represents the assembled workforce, None of the goodwill is expected to be

deductible for income tax purposes.

The fair value of the Ordinary Shares issued as part of the consideration was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average

share price for the b days prior to completion.

A contingent consideration arrangement was entered intc as part of the acquisition. This is contingent on the sellers remairing in employment
by the Group so it has been excluded from the consideration and will be recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on & straight-line

basis. The maximum undiscounted amount of all potential future payments under the contingent consideration arrangement is £5,708,000.
This is payable in 2 instalments on the first and second anniversary of complation.

Future payments under the deferred consideration arrangement are £507,000, of which £125,000 is payable in May 2020, £225,000 is payable

on the first anniversary of the completion date and £127,000 is payable on the second anniversary.

Shulmans contributed £2,810,000 of revenue to the Group's Statement of Comprehensive Income for the pericd from 5 March 2020 to 30 April 2020.
The profit contributed is not separately identifiable due to the hive-up of its trade and assets being incorporated Into Knights Professional Services

Limited from 24 April 2020.
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21. Property, plant and equipment

Expenditure
on short Furniture
leasehold Office and Motor Right
property equipment fittings vehicles  of use assets Totat
£'000 £'00Q £'000 £'000 2000 £'000
Gost
As at 1 May 2018 1,401 1,192 825 5 - 3,423
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 9 155 210 - - 374
Additions 603 585 26 - - 1,214
Disposais 7) - (12) - - (19)
As at 30 April 2013 2,006 1,932 1,049 5 - 4,992
IFRS 16 - right-of-use assets - - - - 19,407 19,407
As at 1 May 2019 - after IFRS 16 transition 2,006 1,932 1,049 5 19,407 24,399
Acquisttions of subsidiaries 367 586 151 - 4,515 5,619
Additions 1,129 262 12 - 1,822 3,945
Disposals 1 (70} (217} {5 - (293}
As at 30 April 2020 3,501 3,430 095 - 25,744 33,670
Depreciation and impairment
As at 1 May 2018 169 643 158 ) - 975
Depreciation charge 238 307 157 - - Q2
Eliminated on disposal (1 - Q) - - )
As at 30 April 2019 406 950 312 5 - 1,673
Depreciation charge 250 494 4 - 1,995 2,853
Eliminated on disposal - (4} (158) {5) - (167}
As at 30 April 2020 656 1,440 268 - 1,995 4,358
Carrying amount
At 30 April 2020 2,845 1,960 727 - 23,749 29,311
At 30 April 2019 1,600 982 737 - - 3,318
At 1 May 2018 1,232 549 667 - - 2,448
Depreciation of £86,000 (2019: £nil) is included in non-underlying operating costs.
See note 37 for further details of the right-of-use assets.
22. Contract assets and liabilities
Contract Trade Contract
assets receivables liabilities
£'000 £'000 £'000
As at 30 April 2020 21,507 22,450 {177}
As at 30 April 2019 11,112 10,720 (120)

Cantract asgets
Contract assets consist of unbilled revenue in respact of legal and professicnal services performed to date.

Contract assets in respect of fee-for-service and fixed fee arrangements are hilled at appropriate intervals, normally on a maonthly basis in arrears,
in line with the performance of the services. Where such matters remain unbilled at the pericd end the assat is valued on a contraci-by-contract
basis at its expected recoverable amount,

The Group undertakes some matters based on contingent fee arrangements. These matters are billed when the claim is successfully settled.
For matters ongoihg at the pericd end, sach matter is valued hased on its specific circumstances. If the matter has agreed funding arrangements
in place, then it is valued based on the estimated amount recoverable from the funding depending on the stage of completion of the matter.

1 the matter has been admitted and performance obfigations satisfied, such that it is no fonger contingert, thase matters are vaiued based on the
expected recoverable amount. Due to the complex nature of these matters, they can take a considerabie time ta be finalised theretore perfarmance
obligations may be settled in one period but the matter not billed until a later financial period. The amount ot contingent fee work in progress at

30 April 2020 was £4,114,000 (2019; £2,201,000).

If the performance obligations for cantingent matters have not been satisfied at the repaorting date, these assets are valued on a cantract-
by-cantract basis taking into account the expected recoverable amount and the likelihood of success. Where the likelihood of success of a
cantingent fee arrangement is less than highly probable, the amount recognised in contract assets is further reduced to reflect this uncertainty.

During the year, contract assets of £8,292,000 (2019: £1,877,000) were acquired in business combinations.

An impairment (oss of £27,000 has been recognised in relation to contract assets in the year (2019: £57,000). This is based on the expected credit
koas under IFRS 9 of these types of assets. The contract asset loss is estimated at 0.2% (2019 0.5%) of the balance.
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Trade reveivaliles

Trade receivables are recognised when a bill has been issued to the client, as this is the point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because onty the passage of time is required before the payment is due. Trade receivables alsc includes disbursements.

Bills are payable within 30 days unless otherwise agreed with the client.

GContract liabilities

When matters are billed in advance or on the basis of a monthly retainer, this is recognised in contract Fabilities and released over time
when the services are performed.

23. Trade and other receivables
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£000 £:000

Trade receivables 23,003 10,960
Impairment provision — Trade receivables (553) (240)
Prepayments and cther receivables 4,596 3,008
Impairment provision — Prepayments and other receivables - (57)
27,046 13,671

Trade receivables

The average credit period taken on sales is 42 days as at 30 April 2020 (2019: 38 days). No interest is charged on trade receivables. The Group
uses appropriate methods to recover all balances once overdue. Once the expectation of recovery is deemed remote a debt may be written off.

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses ('ECL). The Group applies

the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime axpected loss provision
for all trade receivables. As the Group's historical credit loss experience does not show significantly different loss patterns for different client
segments, the provision for loss allowance is based on past due status.

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables (excluding disbursements) based on the Group’s provision matrix,

Not 31-60 days 61-90days 91-120days >120 days

30 April 2020 past due past due past due past due past due Total
Expected credit loss rate 0.03% 0.02% 1.39% 7.47% 16.77% 2.52%
Estimated total gross carrying amount £'000 9,868 4,233 1,454 370 2,449 18,374
Lifetime ECL £°000 3 1 20 28 411 463

In addition to the above on trade receivables a further £80,000 {2019: £39,000} impairment loss has been recognised against disbursement
balances. This is based on 100% impairment against all disbursements with no activity on the matter for over 12 months and 0.2% against
the remainder of the balance based upon the historical credit loss experience of this type of asset.

An impairment loss of £27,000 has been recognised on contract assets in the year (2019: £567,000). This is based on the expected credit loss
under IFRS 8 of these types of assels. The contract asset loss is estimated at 0.2% (2019: 0.5%).
Other receivables

As at 30 April 2020 other receivables includes £187,000 (2019: £513,000) of consideration paid in advance relating to the acquisition of GCummins
Solicitors Limited which is contingent on continued employment over a 2 year period. This is being released to the Statement of Comprehensive

Income over the 2 year period.

24. share capital

QOrdinary Shares

Number £'000
As at 1 May 2018 100,000 100
Changes during the period
Crdinary Shares of £1 each issued in respect of the share-for-share acquisition of Knights 1759 Limited - -
Subdivision of 100,000 Ordinary Shares of £1 each into 50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of 0.2p each 43,900,000 -
Crdinary Shares of (.2p each issued at Initiat Public Offering 20,689,656 41
Ordinary Shares of 0.2p each issued in respect of the Share Incentive Plan (see note 9) 657,732 2
Ordinary Shares of 0.2p each issued as consideration in the purchase of subsidiaries 1,978,031 4
As at 30 April 2018 73,325,419 147
Changes during the period
Ordinary Shares of 0.2p each issued at share placing 4,761,905 9
Ordinary Shares of 0.2p sach issued in respect of exercised share options 41,328 1
Ordinary Shares of 0.2p each issued in respect of exercised share options equivalent to dividend entitlement 138 -
Ordinary Shares of 0.2p each issued in respect of exercised share warrants 706,897 1
QOrdinary Shares of 0.2p each issued as consideration in the purchase of subsidiaries 3,240,644 6
At 30 April 2020 82,076,332 164
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25. Share premium
£°000
As at1 May 2018 -
Premium arising on issue of equity shares 34,327
Expenses of issue of equity shares {1,841)
As at 30 April 2019 32,486
Premium arising on issue of equity shares 34 475
Expenses of issue of equity shares (709) '
At 30 April 2020 66,252
26. Reserves
Merger Retained
reserve earnings
20600 2000
At 1 May 2018 3,536) 5,234
Profit for the period and total comprehensive income - 4,001
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments - 356
Dividends {note 18) - (433) '
Balance at 30 April 2019 {3,536} 10,158
IFRS 16 impact {note 37) - 2,058
As at 1 May 2019 - restated {3,536} 12,216
Profit far the period and tetal comprehensive income - 1,820
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based payments - 789
Dividends {note 18} - {1,755)
Balance at 30 April 2020 (3,536) 13,070

The merger reserve of £3,536,000 arose on the share for share exchange by Knights 1752 Limited and Knights Professional Services Limited.
The reserve is the difference between the nominal value of Knights 1759 Limited share capital and amounts paid to the shareholders as

part of the Group reorganisation in October 2016 and the share capital, share premium value and capital redemption of the shares acquired
in Knights Professional Services Limitad.

Retained earnings represents cumulative profits and losses of the Group net of distributions to members.

27. Borrowings
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000
Secured borrowings at amortised cost:
Bank loans 28,650 19,000
Total borrowings 28,650 19,000
Amount due for settlernent within 12 months - -
Amount due for settlernent after 12 months 28,650 19,000

All of the Group's borrowings are denominated in Sterling.

The Group has a credit facility of £40,600,000 in total {2019; £27,000,000) compromising term debt and revolving credit facilities. The previous
facility that was due to expire an 25 June 2023 was increased in the year to £40,000,00C. The facility remains available until 25 June 2023,

The new facility is a revolving credit facility and is renewed monthiy and is dus for final repaymert on 25 June 2023, The facility is secured by
afixed and floating charge over the Group’s assets. The facility carries an interest margin above LIBOR of between 1.65% and 2.45% depanding
on the leverage level. A commitment fee of one third of the applicable margin is payable on the undrawn amounts.
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30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £:000

Non-current liabilities
Deferred consideration 127 1,611
127 1,611

Current liabilities

Deferred consideration 2,723 1,628
2,723 1,628

Deferred consideration as at 30 April 2020 relates to the acquisitions of Turner Parkinson LLP, Fraser Brown, ASB Law LLP and Shulmans LLP

and is not contingent.

In addition the Group has contingent cansideration accrued and included within trade and other payables relating to acquisitions. This is contingent
based upon continued employment and is being accrued on a monthiy basis in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in accordance with the
terms of the agreement. It is expected that employment will continue for the terms of the agreement and, therefore, the contingent consideration

will be payable in full.

29, Deferred tax

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and {assets) recognised by the Group and movements therecn during the current

and prior reparting period.

Accelerated
capital Intangible  Share-based
allowances assets payments IFRS 16 Total
£'000 £:000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 1 May 2018 109 1,275 - - 1,384
Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 2,190 - - 2,190
Charge/(credit} for the year 92 (118) (60) - (88)
As at 30 April 2019 201 3,347 {60} - 3,488
IFRS 16 impact - - - (299) {299)
Charge/{credit) for the prior year 87 (5) 9 - (83)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries - 1,897 - - 1,897
Charge/{credit) for the year 282 308 {156) 8) 426
As at 30 April 2020 396 5,547 (207) (307) 5,429
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The following is the analysis of the
deferred tax balances after offset for financial reporting purposes:
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000
Deferred tax assets {814) 60)
Deferred tax liabilities 5,943 3,548
5,429 3,488
30. Trade and other payables
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000
Trade payables 3,033 1,442
Other taxation and social security 6,180 3,511
Other payables 2,817 1,868
Accruals 7,989 5,284
20,019 12,105

Trade payables and accruals principatly comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs. The average credit period
taken for trade purchases is 25 days (2019: 26 days). No interest is charged on the trade payables.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.
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31. Provisions

Onercus Professional

Dilapidation contract indemnity
provision provision provision Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
As at 30 April 2018 161 - - 161
1 May 2018 - Transferred in from accruals - - 284 284
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 231 272 - 503
Addiional provision in the year 81 202 284 567
Utilisalion of pravision - 39) 29 68}
As at 30 April 2019 473 435 539 1,447
IFRS 16 reallocation - (435) - (435)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries 852 - 264 916
Additional provision in the year 546 - 20 636
Utilisation of provision {123) - {295} 418)
As at 30 April 2020 1,548 - 598 2,146

The dilapidations provision relates to the potential rectification of leasehold sites upon expiration of the Jeases, This has been based
on a surveyor's valuation of the schedule of works included in the lease, of in absence of a surveyor’s estimate, is based on the Directors’
estimate of potential liabilities.

The anerous contract provision relates to vacant offices where the Group is the lessee. The Group is actively marketing these leases for
reassignment. The provision represents the Directors’ estimate of the future lease payments to be paid by the Group prior to reassignment

of the leases. The onerous contracts provision also includes contracts acquired via acquisition that are non-cancellable, The provision represents
the remaining payments under the terms of the lease. Future lease payments are offset against the provision. This provigion has been transferred
to right-of-Use assets in accordance with IFRS 16 during the year.

The professional indemnity provision {transferred from accrued expenses on 1 May 2018), relates to a number of disputes in the ordinary course
of business for all claims where costs are likely to be incurred and represents the cost of defending and concluding claims and any excess that
may become payable. The Group carries professional indemnity insurance and no separate disclosure is made of the cost of claims covered

by insurance as to do so0 could seriously prejudice the position of the Group.

32. Financial instruments

Categories of financial instruments

30 Apri! 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £°000
Financial assets
Amortised cost
Contract assets 21,507 11,112
Trade and other receivables {excluding prepayments} 23,425 11,706
Cash and cash equivalents 12,741 4,904
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost
Borrowings 28,650 19,600
Deferred consideration 2,850 3,239
Trade and ather payables 12,872 8,448
Fair vaiue
Trade and other payables 957 146

Financial risk management ohjectives

The Group's finance function maonitors and manages the financial risks relating to the oparations of the Group. These risks include market

risk {interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest rates (see below). Market risk exposures are measured

using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured,

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk because the Group borrows funds at floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group

by keeping the level of borrowings at 2 manageable level.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Tha sensitivity analysis belaw has hean determined baged on the exposure ta interest rates for financial instruments at the end of the reparting
period. For floating rate fiabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period

was outstanding for the whaole year.
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If interest rates had been 0.5% higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 30 April 2020
would decrease/increase by £143,000 (2019: decrease/increase by £35,000). This is attributable to the Group’s exposure 1o interest rates
on its variable rate borrowings.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the current year mainly due to the increase in the borrowings of the Greup.

Credit risk management

Note 23 details the Group's maximum exposure te credit risk and the measurement bases used to determine expected credit losses.

The risk of bad debts is mitigated by the Group having a policy of performing credit checks or receiving payments on account for new clients
when practical and ensuring that the Group’s exposure to any individual client is tightly controlled, through credit control policies and procedures.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises from the Group's management of working capital and the financial charges on its debt instruments and repayments of principal.
There is a risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due or not meet its required covenants. The Group

manages this risk and its cash flow requirements through detailed annual and monthly cash flow forecasts. These forecasts are reviewed regularly
to ensure that the Group has sufficient working capital to enable it to meet all of its short-term and leng-term cash flow needs.

The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities. The amounts
disclosed in the takble are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

<1 year 1-2vyears
30 April 2020 £000 £'000
Borrowings - -
Deferred consideration 2,723 127
Trade and other payables 13,839 -

< 1vyear 1-2vyears 2-5Syears Total
30 April 2019 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowings - - 19,000 19,000
Deferred consideration 1,628 1,611 - 3,239
Trade and other payables 8,594 - - 8,594

The Group has met its covenant tests during the year.

Capital management

The capital structure of the Group consists of borrowings {as disclosed in note 27) and equity of the Group (comprising issued capital, reserves,
and retained earnings as disclosed in the Statement of Changes in Equity).

In managing its capital, the Group's primary objective is to provide a return for its equity shareholders through capital growth and future dividend
inceme. The Group seeks to maintain a gearing ratio that balances risk and returns at an acceptable level and alse to maintain a sufficient funding
base to enable the Group to meet its working capital and strategic investment needs and objectives.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the year end is as follows:

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £:000

Borrowings (note 27} 28,650 19,000
Cash and cash equivalents (12,741) (4,904;
Net debt 15,909 14,096
Equity 75,950 39,255
Y% %

Net debt to equity ratio 21 36

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting pelicies and methods adopted {including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the bases
for recognition of income and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial ligbility and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2.

33. Capital commitments
As at 30 April 2020 there is a capitat commitment of £82,000 {2019: £425,000] in relation to an ongoing office refurbishment.
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34. Reconciliation of profit to net cash generated from operations

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 2000
Profit before taxation 4,058 5,241
Adjjustments for:
Amaortisation 1,501 757
Depreciation - property, plant and equipment 858 702
Depreciation - Right of use assats (net of £82,000 includad in non underlying costs) 1,909 -
Loss on disposal of equipment (net of £97,000 included in non underlying costs) 8 14
Contingent consideration not payable - 30
Contingent consideration expense 2,996 233
Non-underiying operafing costs 4,581 1314
Share based payments 861 358
Interest income {399} {162)
Interest expense 1,530 2,776
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 17,903 11,201
Increase in contract assets {2,103} {1,788)
Increase in trade and other receivables (1,188} (171
{Decrease)Increase in provisions (183} 782
Increase in contract liabilities 57 18
(Decrease)increase in trade and ather payables {697) 2,664
Cash generated from operations 13,7M 11,706

35. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, including koth cash and non-cash changes,
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash fiows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s Censalidated
Staternent of Cash Flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Borrowings

2000

As at 1 May 2019 19,000
Repayment of borrowings {35,150)
Proceeds of new borrowings 44,800
As at 30 April 2020 28,650

36. Alternative performance measures

This Annual Report contains both statutory measures and alternative performance measures. In management's view the underlying performance
of the business provides a more meaningful comparison of how the Group’s business is managed and measured on a day-to-day basis.

The Group’s alternative performance measures and key performance indicators are aligned to the Group’s strategy and together are used
to measure the performance of the business.

Alternative performance measures are non-GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) measures and provide supplementary information

to assist with the understanding of the Group’s financial results and with the evaluaticn of operating performance for all the periods presented.
Alternative performance measures, however, are not a measure of financial performance under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSY
as adopted by the European Union and should not be considered as a substitute for measuras determined in accordance with IFRS. As the Group’s
alternative perfarmance measures are not defined terms under IFRS they may therefore not be comparable with similarly titied measures reported
by other companies.

Reconciliations of alternative performance measures to the most directly comparable measures reported in accordance with IFRS are shown
on the adjacent page.
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a} Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is presented as an alternative performance measure to show the underlying operating performance of the Group excluding

the effects of depreciation, amortisation and non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£000 £'000

Cperating profit 5,588 8,017
Depreciatior: and amertisation charges 4,276 1,473
Non-underlying costs (note 13) 8,090 1,847
Adjusted EBITDA 17,954 11,337

b} Adjusted profit before tax {PBT)

Adjusted PBT is presented as an alternative performance measure to show the underlying performance of the Group excluding the effects

of amortisation of intangibie assets and non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£000 £'000
Profit before tax 4,058 5,241
Amortisation (adjusted for amortisation on computer software) 1,427 693
Non-underlying costs (note 13) 8,090 1,847
Non-recurring finance costs 41 2,038
Adjusted profit before tax 13,616 9,819

Non-recurring finance costs relate to exit fees and arrangement fees expensed due to the refinancing of the Group during the year and accrued

interest on deferred consideration.

c} Adjusted profit after tax {PAT} and adjusted earnings per share {(EPS)

Adjusted PAT and EPS are presented as alternative performance measures to show the underlying performance of the Group excluding the effects

of amortisation of intangible assets, share-based payments and non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000
Profit after tax 1,820 4,001
Amortisation (adjusted for amortisation on computer software) 1,427 693
Non-underlying operating costs 8,090 1,847
Non-recurring finance costs 41 2,038
Tax in respect of the above {672) (438)
Adjusted profit after tax 10,706 8,141
Adjusted earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic adjusted earnings per share 14.33 11.88
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 14.20 11.83

Tax has been calculated at the corporation tax and deferred tax rate of 19% (2019: 19%).

d) Free cash flow and cash conversion %

Free cash flow measures the Group's underlying cash generation. Cash conversion % measures the Group's conversion of its adjusted PAT into
free cash flows. Free cash flow is calculated as the total of net cash from aperating activities after adjusting for tax paid and the impact of IFRS 16
{to be comparable with the treatment of leases costs in the prior year). Cash conversion % is calculated by dividing free cash flow by adjusted

profit after tax, which is reconciled to profit after tax above.

Previously free cash flow was calculated as the total of net cash from operating activities, interest paid and net cash flows on capital expenditure
after excluding cash flows in respect of non-underlying costs. However the Group considers that the revised methed is a more accurate reflection

of the cperating cash flow of the business.
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36. Alternative performance measures continued

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£000 £'000
Cash generated from operations (note 34} 13,791 11,706
Tax paid (2,907) (1,076)
Total cash cutflow for [FRS 16 leases {2,366) -
Free cashffow 8,518 10,630
Adjusted profit after tax 10,706 8,141
Cash conversion (%) 80% 131%
Previously reported cash conversion - 115%

37.lease liabilities - IFRS 16 Leases

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities recognised at 1 May 2012 is 3.60%. Incremental borrowing
rates applied to individual leases ranged between 2.40% and 6.49%.

During transition prepayments of £185,000 were released against the right-of-use asset. Rent free accruals of £1,758,000 and deferred
tax of £299,000 were adjusted against opening reserves.

The table below sets out the impact on the Cansolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 April 2020 and 1 May 2019:
30 April 2020 1 May 2019

£000 £'000
Right-of-use assets
Property 22,649 19,267
Equipment 1,100 140
23,749 19,407
Lease HKability
> year 21,078 17,894
< 1 year 2,766 1,272
23,844 19,166

The table below shows the impact on the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for 12 months to 30 April 2020 compared with
reporting under IAS 17;

12 months

ended

30 April 2020

£000

Profit before tax under IFRS 16 4,058
Depraciation on right-of-use assets 1,895
Finance costs 812
6,865

Rental costs under I1AS 17 {2,265)
Profit before tax under IAS 17 4,600

Whilst the cash flows of the Group have not been affected by the adoption of IFRS 16, during the period ended 30 April 2020 cash outflows
from financing activities presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows increased by £1,576,000 for cash payments of the principal
portion and £790,000 for cash payments of the interest porticn of leases recognised within lease liabilities under IFRS 18, Cash generated frem
operations reflects the cotresponding reduction of £2,366,000 of payments for leases previcusly classified as operating feases under IAS 17.

Differences between the operating lease commitrments disclosed at 30 April 2019 under IAS 17 discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
at 1 May 2019 and lease liabilties recognised at 1 May 2019 shown on the adjacent page.
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Propetty Equipment Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Operating lease commitments at 30 April 2019 24,893 1,347 26,240
Impact of discounting 8,573) (8) {6,581)
Leases not yet commenced at 1 May 2019 - (1,108) {1,108)
Short-term leases recognised as an expense (4} (68) (72)
Long-term leases expiring before 30 April 2020 {116) 37 {153)
impact of rent increase 834 - 834
Other reconciling items (net) - 6 6
Lease liability opening balance 1 May 2019 19,034 132 19,166
The table below shows lease liabilities maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows at 30 April 2020:
Property Equipment Total
£000 £°000 £°000
Less than one year 3,424 565 3,989
One to five years 11,015 850 11,865
More than five years 15,009 - 15,098
29,538 1,415 30,953
The table below shows amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for leases exempt from IFRS 16 as at 30 April 2020:
Year ended
Property Equipment 30 April 2020
£000 £'000 £'000
Expenses relating to shott-term leases 143 18 161
Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low-value assats - - -
143 161
The total minimum lease payments at 30 April 2019 under non-cancellable operating lease rentals were:
30 April 2019
£'000
Less than one year 2,302
In the second to fifth year inclusive 9,408
After five years 14,530
26,240

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for office properties, motor vehicles and office equipment.
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38. Defined benefit pension schemes

The Stonehams Pension Scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension arrangement, the Stonehams Pension Schemae {the ‘Scheme’). The Scheme provides benefits
based on salary and length of service on retirement, feaving service, or death. The following disclosures exclude any allowance for any other
pensicn schemes operated by the Group.

The scheme was acquired as part of the acquisition of ASB Law where contracts were exchanged on 5 March 2020. Therafore the disclasures
balow represent the period of ownership from 5 March 2020 to 30 April 2020. The Scheme is closed and provides benefits for A3 legacy employees
{now pensioners and deferred members).

The Scheme is subject to the Statutory Funding Objective under the Pensions Act 2004. A valuation of the Scheme is carried out at least ance
every 3 years to determine whether the Statutory Funding Objective is met. As part of the process the Group must agree with the Trustees of the
Scheme the contributions to be paid to address any shortfali against the Statutory Funding Objective.

The most recent comprehensive actuarial valuation of the Scheme was caied out as at 31 December 2018, The results of that valuation were
updated to 30 Apri) 2020 allowing for cash flows in and out of the Scheme and changes 1o assumptions over the period.

From January 2020 the employers started to make annual contributions of £35,000 per annum {owards administration expenses. Administration
expenses from 1 November 2017 to 31 December 2019 have been met directly from the assets of the Scheme. The Group will separately meet
the cost of the PPF fevy.

The Scheme typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and longevity risk,

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liabifity is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference
to high-quality corporate bond yields; if the return on plan assets is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Currently assets are invested in very low risk funds, which will reduce vofatility. The investment approach is reviewed
every 3 years as part of the valuation process.

Interest risk There ts some hedping in the asset portfolio, but at a tow level.

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liabiiity but this will be partially offset by an increase
in the return on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants both during and after thelr employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants
will increase the plan’s liability.

The average duration of the Schemaes gbligations is 16 years.

Explanation of amounts in the finangial statements
Actuarial assumptions

Principal actuarial assumpticns

30 April 2020

%

Discount rate 1.58
Retail Pricas Index {RP! inflation 2.85
Consumer Price Index ‘CPI’) Inflation 1.95
Pension increase (LP| 5%) 2.80
Pension increase (LPI 2.5%} 2.03
Post retirement morality A0%/100% {m/A) S2PA CMI_2017

projections (with standard smoothing
parameter of 7.5) using a long-term
fmprovement rate of 1.0% pa

Commutation 80% of members are assumed to take
the maximum tax-free cash possible
using current comrmutation factors

Life expectancy at age 65 of male aged 45 23.6
Life expectancy at age 65 of male aged 65 226
Life expectancy at age 85 of female aged 45 252
Life expectancy at age 65 of female aged 65 241

The average duration of the Schemes cbligations is 16 years.
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Asset
allocation at
30 April 2020
Equities and growth assets 20%
Bonds, LDl and cash 80%
Value as at
30 April 2020
£000
Fair value of assets 3,384
Present value of funded obligations {2,732
Surplus in scheme 652
Deferred tax -
Net defined benefit surplus after deferred tax 652
30 April 2020
£000
The fair value of the assets at 30 Aprit 2020 can be analysed as follows:
Low-risk investrment funds 692
Credit Investment funds 1,434
Matching funds 998
Cash 260
Fair value of assets 3,384
30 April 2020
£'000
Current service costs -
Past service costs -
Administration costs
Interest on liapilities 1
Interest on assets 3)
Total charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income -
Remeasurements over the period since acquisition
30 April 2020
£'000
Loss on assets in excess of interest (145)
Tetal remeasurements (145}
The change in value of assets
30 April 2020
£'000
Fair value of assets as at acquisition 3,534
Interest on assets 8
Group contributions -
Benefits paid (11}
Administration costs (2
Loss on assets in excess of interest (145)
Fair value of assets 3,384
Actual return on assets (137}
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38. Defined benefit pension schemes continued

Change in value of liabilities

30 April 2020
£000
Value of Iiabilities as at acquisition 2,737
Interest cost 6
Benefits paid {11)
Value of latilities 2,732
Sensitivity of the value placed on the liabilities
Approximate
effect
on liability
£000
Discount rate
Minus 0.50% 208
Inflation
Plus 0.50% 161
Life expectancy
Plus 1.0 years 123

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, inflation rate and mortality.
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as # is unlikely
that the changes in assumptions would occur in isclation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

The With Profits Section of the Cheviot pension

Allocation of liabilities between employers

The With Profits Section was acguired as part of the acquisition of ASB Law where contracts wera exchanged on 5 March 2020.

The Trustee has discretion under the contribution rule on how the cost of providing the benetits of the With Profits Section is allocated
between employers. The contribution rufe applies until the earlier of the discharge of the emplayer by the Trustee and the termination
of the With Profits Section. The Trustee's current paiicy is not to discharge employers. Employers therefore remain liable under the
contribution rule even if their last member dies cr transfers out.

The Trustee has been considering how best to ensure all smployers bear an appropriate share of the With Profits Section’s obligations
whilst ensuring fairness between employers and a practicat and transparent methodology for the future.

As discussed at the Employers’ Maeting on 8 July 2017, the Trustae has decided to fix the aliocation betwean employers on the basis
of the promised benefits just before the Section was reclassified in 2014 {the valuation as at 31 December 2013). The allocation to each

employer will be expressed as a percentage of the tota) Scheme liabilities. The intention is to apply this percentage to any funding, buyout

or IFRS deficit in the future to calculate any contribution that may be due or any accounting liability.

The estimated percentage in relation to Knights Professional Services Limited is 0.790%.

This approach enables each employer to calcutate the extent of their obligation to the Section on the basis of the funding level at any time.
Cheviot will publish funding updates on the website: quarterly, on the scheme funging basis, which includes an allowance for future investment

retuins; and arnnually, on an estimated buyout basis, which looks at the position should all benefits be secured with an external provider.

Estimated funding position as at 30 April 2020:

Scheme

funding basis

As at 30 April 2020 £'000

Total assets 94,400
Total liabilities excluding expenses (97,200}
Deficit (2,800}

Funding level 97%
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Allocation to the Group
The estimated share cf the Scheme liabifities is 0.790%.

Over the year to 30 April 2020, the Section’s funding position worsenad from a small surplus to a small deficit.

30 April 2020

£'000
Estimated cost of providing benefits (768)
Value of assets 746
Resulting shortfall (22)
Funding fevel 97%

The deficit has not been recognised as management consider this to be temporary and not material.
The Trustee continues to monitor the funding position.

The Trustee reserves the right to withdraw, replace or amend the policy for the allocation between employers in the future.

39. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consclidation
and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions between the Group and its other related parties are disclosed below.

KPV Propco Ltd is a Company controlled by Mr DA Beech, a person with significant influence over the Group and a member
of key management personnel.

The Group leases a property from KPV Propco Ltd. During the year rents of £367,000 (2019: £343,000) were charged by KPV Prepco Ltd
to the Group.

During the year Knights Professional Services Limited charged KPV Propco Ltd for professional services totalling £98,000 (2019: £nil).
At 30 April 2020, there was an amount of £246,000 (2019: £229,000} owed to KPV Propco Ltd by the Group.

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the key managament personnel of the Group, Is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified
in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £'000
Short-term employee benefits and social security costs 1,174 829
Pension costs o3 14
Share-based payments 181 106
1,378 949

Key management personnel includes Board mermnbers and Directors.

Transactions with Directors

Dividends totalling £787,000 (2019: £202,000) were paid in the year in respect of Ordinary Shares held by the Company’s Directors.
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Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 April 2020

30 April 2020 30 April 2019

Note £000 £'000
Assets '
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 43 1,145 356
Amounts receivable from subsidiaries 44 69,118 34,010

70,263 34,366

Current assets
Trade and other receivables 48 14
Total assels 70,311 34,380
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 45 164 147
Share premium 45 56,252 32,486
Share-based payment reserve 46 1,145 356
Other reserve 46 (100} (100}
Retained earnings 46 2,565 1,363
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 70,026 34,252
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 58 1
Corporation tax liability 227 127
Total liabilities 285 128
Total equity and liabilities 70,311 34,380

Under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company is exempt from the requirement 1o present its awn Statement of Comprenensive Income.
The Company reported a profit for the year ended 30 April 2020 of £2,958,000 (2019; £1,796,000}.

The financial statements were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 21 July 2020 and are signed on its bebalf by

|
Q Wloeis
Kate Lewis

Director

Registered No. 11290101

né



Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the perind ended 30 April 2020

Financial Statements

Share  Share-based Retained
Share capital premium payments Other reserve eamings Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
As at 4 April 2018 - - - - - -
Profit for the period and total comprehensive
income - - - - 1,796 1,796
Transactions with owners in their capacily as
Qwhners.
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based
paymerts - - 356 - - 356
Issue of shares 147 32,186 - - - 32,633
Other Reserve (|AS 27:13} - - - {100) - (100)
Dividends paid - - - - (433) 433)
At 30 April 2019 147 32,486 356 {100} 1,363 34,252
Profit for the period and total comprehensive
income - - ~ - 2,957 2,957
Transactions with owners in their capacily as
owners:
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based
payments - - 789 - - 789
Issue of shares 17 33,766 - - - 33,783
Dividends paid - - - - {1,755) {1,755)
Balance at 30 April 2020 164 66,252 1,145 (100} 2,565 70,026
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

40. Accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2008. The Company meets
the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 ‘Application of Financial Reparting Requirements' issued by the FRC. Accordingly.
these financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework'.

As permmitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation
to share-based payments, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain
assets, presentation of a cash-flow statement, standards not yet affective and certain related party transactions.

Where reguired, equivalent disclosures are given in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same
as those set out in note 2 ta the cansolidated financial statements except as rioted helow.

Investments in subsidiaries

investments in subsidianies and associates are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

On 18 June 2018, the whole of the share capital of Knights 1759 Limited was acquired by the Company via a share for share exchange
agreement. This was a Group reorganisation satisfying the criteria of IAS 27:13. The investment cost is measured at £nil because the carrying
amount of the equity fterns shown in the separate financial statements of Knights 1758 Limited was negative at the date of the reorganisation.

Investments in subsidiaries includes capital contributions to subsidiaries as a result of the issue of equity-setiled share-based
payments to employees of subsidiaries. The accounting policy for share-based payments is set out in note 2.14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

41. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 40, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readlly apparent from other sources, The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an engeing basis. Revisions ta accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revisicn and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

There are no mafor accounting judgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying ameunts of the Company’s assets and liabllities within the next financial year.

42. Profit for the year

As permitted by 5408 of the Companies Act 2006, no separate Statement of Comprehensive Income is presented in respect of the parent Company.
The profit atiributable to the Company is disclosed in the factnate ta the Company’s Statemeant of Financial Pasition,

The auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The average monthly number of employees comprised of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors and was 6 (2019: 6). Their aggregate
remuneration borne by the Company was £nil 2019: £nif).

43. Investments in subsidiaries

£000
Cost and net book value
At 4 April 2019 -
Capital contribution in respect of equity-settled share-based payments 356
At 30 April 2019 356
Capital contribution in respect of equity-settled share-based payments 789
At 30 April 2020 1,145

Further infarmation about share-based payment transactions is provided in note 8 fo the consolidated financial statements.
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Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 30 April 2020 are as follows:

Financial Statements

Proportion  Proportion of
Place of business and Class of ownership  voting power
Name registered office address Principal activity of shares interest % held %
Knights 1759 Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Holding company Ordinary 100%" 100%*
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Knights Professional The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Provision of legal and Ordinary 100% 100%
Services Limited Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW professional services
Turner Parkinson LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant** N/A 9%.99% 99.99%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Spearing Waite LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant™ N/A 99.99% 99.99%
Lyme, Staffordshire, 8TS 0QW
Darbys Solicitors LLP Midland House West Way, Botley,  Dormant** N/A 93.99% 99.99%
Oxford, OX2 OPH
Knights Salicitors LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant N/A 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Cummins Solicitors Limited  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant** Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
BrookStreet des Roches LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Business Support Services N/A 99.99% 99.98%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
K&S Secretaries Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant QOrdinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Knights Trustee Company The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
No 1 Limited Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Knights Trustee Company The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
No 2 Limited Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
K&S Directors Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under- Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Turner Parkinson Nominees  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dermant Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited Lyme, Staffordshire, STS DQW
T.RD.D Limited The Brampton, Newcastie-under- Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
K&S (Nominees) Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordirary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 DQW
K&S (560) Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%™
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 DQW
Charden Enterprises Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%**
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Four Below Zero Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 10026
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 CAW
Endzin Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%™
Lyrme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
BDB Consulting Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%™
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Wingelock Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%™
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
ASB Aspire LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
ASB Law LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Edward Cursham Limited The Brampton, Newcastie-under- Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Patrick Wood Limited The Brampten, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Gavin White Limited The Brampten, Newcastie-under- Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%

Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

43. investments in subsidiaries continued

Proportion Proportion of

Place of business and Class of ownership  voting power
Name registered office address Principal activity of shares interest % held %
Donald Peel Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant OGrdinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, 3T5 00W
Christopher Barnes Limited  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Richard Wollacott The Brampton, Newcastle-under- Dormant QOrdinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Thomas Gray Law Limited  The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordirary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
John Tansur Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyrme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Wendy Hooley Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Adrian Slater Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under- Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Laura Mackin Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Crdinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Anthony J Ogley Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffardshire, ST5 0QW
Erin Vickers Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under- Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0OW
Ficna Boswell Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Crdinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW
Clive Day Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Edward Capes Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
ERT Law Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Arthur Chapman Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant A Qrdinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshive, STS QQW
Simon Leighton Limited The Brampton, Newcastle-under- Dormant A Ordinary and 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS 0QW B Ordinary
Beb Agnew Limited The Brampton, Newcastie-under-  Dormant A Ordinary 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Croftons Sclicitors LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant N/A 100% 100%
Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 QQW
Croftons Legal Services The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant OCrdinary 100% 100%
Limited Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW
Dakeyne Emms Gllmore ‘The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant D Ordinary 100% 100%
Liberson Limited Lyme, Staffordshire, ST5 0QW E Ordinary
G Ordinary
L Ordinary
Helix EGL Limited Lancaster House, 67 Newhall Street, Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Birmingham, B3 1NQ
Shulmans LLP The Brampton, Newcastle-under-  Dormant N/A 99.9% 93.9%
Lyme, Staffordshire, STS QQW
SLS Trust Corporation C/0 Shulimans LLP, 10 Wellington  Dormant Ordinary 100% 100%
Limited Place,

Leeds, England, LS1 4AP

* Held directly by Knights Professional Services Limited
* The atquired entities were active during the financial year, but re dormant as at 30 April 2020

“**Legal title held on behalf of nominess
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44, Amounts receivables from subsidiaries

30 April 2020 20 April 2019
£'000 £°000

Amounts receivable from subsidiaries 69,118 34,010

Amounts receivable from subsidiaries are repayable on demand. Interest is charged at a rate of 3.5% per annum and is payable annually
on 30 April each year. Unpaid interest on 30 April each year is added to the principal of the loan.

The balances are considered recoverable from the future cash flows of profitable trading subsidiaries. They are classified as non-current assets
because they are not expected to be realised within 12 months of the reporting period.

The Company measures the loss allowance for intra-Group receivables at lifetime expected credit losses ('ECL). The ECL is estimated
using a probability-weighted analysis of all possible cutcomes with reference o the debtors’ financial position and forecasts of future
economic conditions. The resultant estimated ECL is not considered material to the financial statements, therefore the Company has
recognised a loss allowance of £nil (2019; £nil) against amounts receivable from subsidiaries.

45, Share capital and share premium account

The movements on these items are disclosed in notes 24 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

46. Reserves

The Share-Based Payment Reserve is a non-distributable reserve representing the total credits to equity in respect of equity-setiled
share-based payment charges recognised as capital centributions within investments.

The Other Reserve arose as a resuft of applying the requirements of IAS 27:13 to the share-for-share exchange acquisition
of Knights 1759 Limited because the total equity of Knights 1759 Limited was less than the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
as consideration.

Retained Earnings represents cumulative profits and losses of the Company net of distributions to members,
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Glossary of Terms

Financial Performance Measure

This document contains certain financial measures that are net
defined or separately recognised under IFRS. These measures

are used by the Board and other users of the accoumts to evaluate

the Group's underlying trading performance excluding the impact of
any non-recurring items and items that do not refiect the underlying
day-to-day trading of the Group. These measures are not audited and
are not standard measures of financial performance under IFRS, There
ara na genarally accepted principles governing the calculation of these
measures and the criteria upor which these measures are hased can
vary from company to cormpany. Accordingly these measures should
be viewed as supplemental to, not as a substitute for, the financial
measures calculated under IFRS.

Underlying EBITDA

Underlying EBITDA is presented as an alternative performance
measure to show the underlying operating performance of the
Group excluding the effects of depreciation, amortisation, and
non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended

3¢ April 2020 30 April 2019

£'000 £000

Operating profit 5,588 8,017

Depreciation and

amortisation charges 4,276 1,473
Non-underlying costs (note 13} 8,080 1,847
Underlying EBITDA 17,954 11,337

Underlying Profit Before Tax (PBT)

Underlying PBT is presented as an alternative performance measure
to show the underlying performance of the Group excluding the effects
of amortisation of intangible assets, and non-underlying items.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000
Profit before tax 4,058 5,241
Amortisation 1,427 693
Nan-underlying costs 8,090 1,847
Non-underfying finance costs - 1,924
Effective interest on deferred
consideration 41 114
Underlying profit
before tax 13,616 9,819
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Non-recurring finance costs

Non recurring finance costs relate to the exit fees and release
of arrangement fees arising on the repayment of debt at the
IPO and interest on deferred consideration payable as part
of the consideration on acquisitions.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£'000 £'000
Exit fees and release of
arrangement fees - 1,924
Interest on deferred consideration 41 114
Non-recurring finance costs 41 2,038

Underlying Profit After Tax (PAT) and Adjusted Earnings
per Share (EPS}

Underlying PAT and adjusted EPS are presented as alternative
performance measuras ta show the underlying performance of
the Group excluding the effects of amortisation of intangible
assets and non-underlying ftems.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000

Profit after tax 1,820 4,001

Amertisation on acquisition

related intangibles 1,427 B33
Non-underlying operating costs 8,090 1,847
Nen-underdying finance costs - 1,924

Effective interest on
deferred consideration 41 114

Tax in respect of the above 672) 438)
Undertying profit after tax 10,706 8,141
Adjusted earnings per share Pence Pence
Basic adjusted earnings per share 14.33 11.88
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 14.20 11.83




Free Cash Flow and Cash Conversion %

Free cash flow measures the Group's underlying cash generation.
Cash conversion % measures the Group's conversion of its adjusted
PAT into free cash flows. Free cash flow is calculated as the total

of net cash from operating activities, tax paid and cash outflows for
IFRS 18 leases (tc ensure comparability with 2019}. Cash conversion
% is calculated by dividing free cash flow by adjusted profit after
tax, which is reconciled to profit after tax above.

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
£000 £'000
Cash generated from
operations {note 34) 13,791 11,706
Tax paid (2,807) (1,076)
Total cash outflow for
IFRS 16 leases (2,386) -
Free cash flow 8,518 10,630
Underlying profit after tax 10,706 8,141
Cash conversion (%} B80% 131%
Working Capital
Working capital is calculated as:
30 April 2020 30 April 2019
Current assets £'000 £'000
Contract assets 21,507 11,112
Trade and other
receivables 27,046 13,671
48,553 24,783
Current liabilities
Trade and other
payables 20,019 12,105
Contract liabilities 177 120
Corporation tax liability 675 796
20,871 13,021
Net working capital 27,682 11,762

Financial Statements

Other Definitions

Colleague/Talent Retention/Employee Turnover

Churn is calculated based on the number of qualified fee earners
whao had been employed by the Group for more than one year.
Churn is calculated taking the number of leavers in the above group
over the financial year as a percentage of the average number of
colleagues for the year. Retention is 1009 less the churn rate.

Fee Earner Concentration

This is calcuiated taking the largest fees allocated to an individual
fee earner as a percentage of the total turnover for the year and
demonstrates the Group's reliance on the fee earning potential

of an individual fee earner.

Client Concentration

On an individual basis this is calculated as the percentage
of total turnover for the financial year that arises from fees
of the largest client.

For the top 10 client concentration calculation this takes the
fes inceme from the 10 largest clients for the year as a percentage
of the total turnover for the year.

Client Satisfaction

Net Promoter Score (NPS) measures the loyalty of a client

to a company and can be used to gauge client satisfaction.
NPS scores are measured with a single question survey and
repeorted with a number from -100 to +100, the higher the score,
the higher the client loyalty/satistaction.

Colleague Satisfaction

Employee Net Promoter Score (ENPS) measures the loyalty of
amployees to a company and how likely they are to recommend
their employer as a place to work, which can also be used to gauge
employee salisfaction. ENPS scores are measured with a single
question survey and reported with a number from -100 to +100,
the higher the score the higher the employee loyalty.

Fee Earners

When referring to the number of fee earners in the Group we include
all individuals working in the Group on a mainly fee earning basis.
This includes professionals (legal and non-legal) of all levels including
paralegals, trainees and legal assistants.

When referring to the number of fee earners in the business this
will refer to the absolute number of individuals working in the Group.

When using the number of fee earners to calculate the average fees
or profit per fee earner or the ratio of fee earners to support staff these
calculations are based on the number of full-time equivalent (FTE)
individuals to reflect that a number of individuals chcose to work

an a part-time basis.

Non-Fee Earners/Support Staff
This includes all employees that are not fee earning.
Recurring Revenue

This is calculated based on the amount cf revenue in a year that
reoccurs in the following year from the same clients.

123



Glossary of Terms continued

Lack Up Reported Comparable
This is caloulated as the combined debtor and WIF days f;ﬁ ;g inde f;Er? ;g
as at a point in time. . 5 '
Underlying PAT £°000 £000
Debtor days are caiculated on a count back basis using the gross Profit after tax
debtors at the period end and compared with the total fees raised - as reported 1,820 4,001
over prior morths. IFRS 16 adjustments
{see finance review) - (392)

WIP (work in progress) days are cakulated based on the gross -
IFRS 16 adjusted

work in progress (excluding that relating to clinical negligence claims) - e
and calculating how many days bifling this relates to based on average Kxﬁ:‘lf;:'ildg 1,820 8,809
fees (again excluding clinical negligence fees) per month for the acqiir:ed i’r?tar? gibles 1427 593
1
last 6 months. Non underlying
operating costs 13 8,090 1,847
Non undetlyin
Total Shareholder Return (TSR) finance COS’{S g 14 41 2,098
Total shareholder return is calculated as: Tax in respect of above 16 672) {aze}
Share price at 30 April 2020 £3.575 Underlying profit after tax 10,706 7,749
Share price at listing {£1.450) Basic EPS 244 5.27
Dividend paid in pericd £0.024 Underlying EPS 1433 11.31
Gain on shares in period £0.769 "
As a percentage of opening price 27.2% Diluted EPS 14.20 11.28
Financial Performance Measure Comparable Under IFRS 16
Underlying EBITDA

Underlying Profit Before Tax (PB
nderlying Profit Before Tax (PBT) Underlying EBITDA is calculated as reported operating profit after

Underlying PBT is calculated before amortisation of acquired intangible  adjusting for the impact of the reclassification of leases costs under
assels; non-underlying costs relating to the placing, acquisitions IFRS 18 and is provided on an IFRS 18 basis in the prior period.
and restructuring, contingent consideration payrments, non-recurring

finance costs, sharg based payments related to the {PO and

acquisitions and is provided on an IFRS 16 basis in the prior period. Reported Comparable
IFRS 16 under IFAS 18
April 20 April 19
Reported Comparabie Underlying EBITDA Note £'000 £'000
IFRS16  underFRS 16 Operating profit - as
April 20 April 19 reparted 5,588 8,017
Underlying PBT Note £'000 £000 IFRS 16 adiustments
Profit before tax (see finance review) - 1,603
- as reported 4,058 5241 IFRS 16 adjusted
IFRS 16 adjustments operating profit 5,588 9,620
{see finance review) - (392) Depreciation and
IFRS 16 adjusted profit amartisation charges 11 4,276 1,473
before tax 4,058 4,849 Non-underiying costs 13 8,090 1,847
Amartisation on
acquired intangibles 1,427 693 Underlying EBITDA 17,954 12,340
Non undertying
operating costs 13 8,090 1,847 Cash convarsion is calculated as the total of net cash from operations,
Nan underlying tax paid and payments of lease interest and lease finance liabilities
finance costs 14 M 2,038 under IFRS 18 for periods from 1 May 2019, divided by the underlying
Underlying profit profit after tax, which is calcufated from profit after tax by adding back
before tax 13,616 9,427 amortisation on acquired intangible assets, non-underlying costs
and finance costs, contingent consideration payments, share-based
Undertying PAT is calculated as above after taking account of the payment charges related to the IPO and acquisitions and the tax
tax charge and is provided on an IFRS 16 basis in the prior period. in respect of these costs.
Reported Camparahle
IFRS 16  under IFRS 16
Underlying Profit After Tax (PAT) and Adjusted Earnings April 20 April 19
per Share (EPS) Underlying EBITDA Note £000 £'000
Underlying EPS is calculatad from profit after tax by adding back Free cash flow
amortisation of acquired intangible assets, non-underlying costs - as reported 36 8,518 10,630
relating to the placing, acquisitions and restructuring, contingent Underlying profit after tax 10,706 7,749
consideration payments, non-recurring finance costs and share-based 0% 1379

payment charges related to the IPQ and acquisitions and the tax in
respect of these costs and it is provided on an IFRS 16 basis in the
prior period.
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BS Jehal @ppointed 1 June 2018)

S Dolton (@ppeinted 1 June 2018)

J Pateman (appointed 14 January 2019)

Secretary

L Bridgwood (appointed 1 June 2018}

Registered office

The Brampton
Newcastle-Under-Lyme
Staffordshire

STh 00w

Registered number

11290101

Independent auditor

RSM UK Audit LLP
Chartered Accountants
Festival Way
Stoke-on-Trent
Staffordshire

ST15BB

Nomad and Broker

Numis Securities Limited

The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square

London

ECAM 4LT

Financial Public Relations

MHP

6 Agar Street
London
WC2N 4HN

Financial Staterments

Bank

Allied Irish Bank (GB)
Vantage Point
Hardman Street
Spinningfields
Manchester

M3 3PL

HSBC UK Bank plc
Building 2

Eturia Office Village
Forge Lane

Festival Park
Stoke-on-Trent

§T1 5RQ

Registrar

Computershare Investor Services
The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road

Bristol

BS13 8AE

Legal

DLA Piper UK LLP
160 Aldersgate Street
London

EC1A 4HT
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KnightsolC

Registered Office
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Newcastle-Under-Lyme
Staffordshire

STS 0QW
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